
Language Academy of Sacramento/Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Public Charter School/Una Escuela Pública de Inmersión Dual en Español 

2850 49th Street, Sacramento, CA 95817 

Agenda/Agenda 

BOARD MEETING/ REUNIÓN DE LA MESA 

Friday, January 27, 2023/viernes, 27 de enero del 2023 

5:30pm (accessible via Zoom only)/5:30pm (Solamente accesible por medio de Zoom) 

This meeting will be by teleconference pursuant to Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20. The Board of Directors (“Board”) and employees of the Language Academy 
of Sacramento shall meet via the Zoom meeting platform.  

Members of the public who wish to access this Board meeting may do so at: 

Zoom Link You may also call in using the Zoom phone number: (669) 900-6833; 

Meeting ID: 912 0068 0381  Passcode: 777292  

Members of the public who wish to comment during the Board meeting may use the “raise hand” tool on the Zoom platform. Members of the public calling in will be 

given the opportunity to address the Board during the meeting. Individual comments will be limited to three (3) minutes. If an interpreter is needed for comments, they 

will be translated to English and the time limit shall be six (6) minutes. The Board may limit the total time for public comment to a reasonable time. The Board reserves 
the right to mute or remove a participant from the meeting if the participant unreasonably disrupts the Board meeting (see additional information regarding (IIA) Oral 

Communications below. 

I. PRELIMINARY/PRELIMINARIO

A. CALL TO ORDER/Convocatoria

Meeting was called to order by/La junta fue convocada por ________________________at ____:____p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL/Asistencia

Name/Nombre Role/Miembro 
Present/ 

Presente 

Absent/ 

Ausente 

1. Cristian García Parent/Padre (20-23) 

2. Nailah Kokayi Parent/Madre (21-24) Vice President/Vice Presidenta 

3 Jose Luis Rodríguez Parent/Padre(22-25) 

4. Laura Lomelí Staff/Personal (20-23) Secretary/Secretaria 

5. Brenda Luna Teacher/Maestra (21-24) 

6. Clark Graham Teacher/maestre (19-22) 

7. Nina Sylvains Community Member/Miembro Comunitario (20-23) 

8. Vacant/vacante Community Member/Miembro Comunitario (22-25) 

9. Vacant/vacante Community Member/Miembro Comunitario (21-24) 

10. Student Representative Student Council President/Presidente del Concilio Estudiantil 

11. Teejay Bersola Director of Academic Accountability/Directora de 

Responsabilidad Académica 

12. Judy Morales Director of Business and Operations /Directora de negocios y 

operaciones 

13. Eduardo de León Executive Director/Director Ejecutivo 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA/Aprobación de la Agenda

It is recommended that the Board discuss and/or approve Agenda Item/Se recomienda que la Mesa 

Directiva discuta y/o apruebe. 

Motion:____    Second:____    Vote:___ 

D. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES/Aprobación de las Minutas de la Mesa Directiva

a. December 2, 2022 minutes/minutas del 2 de diciembre de 2022

It is recommended that the Board discuss and/or approve Agenda Item/Se recomienda que la Mesa Directiva 

discuta y/o apruebe. 

Motion: ____    Second: ____    Vote: ___ 

1

https://zoom.us/j/91200680381?pwd=QmNra0NLaG1PdVU4c0E5anVONlkyQT09


 

 

E. MISSION/Misión 
The LAS mission is to create a learning community where students: utilize bilingualism and biliteracy (Spanish and English) to 

achieve academic excellence and apply skills in real-world situations and diverse settings; develop and exhibit positive self-esteem, 

pride, confidence and respect for themselves and others; demonstrate leadership skills in order to build bridges between 

communities and apply critical thinking skills to solve problems, promote social justice, and create change in society.  

 
La misión de LAS es crear una comunidad de aprendizaje donde los estudiantes: utilizan el bilingüismo y la alfabetización bilingüe  

(español e inglés) para alcanzar la excelencia académica y aplicar destrezas en situaciones del mundo real y en diversos entornos; 

desarrollan y exhiben una autoestima positiva, orgullo, confianza y respeto por sí mismos y otros; demuestran habilidades de 

liderazgo con el fin de establecer puentes  entre comunidades y aplicar habilidades de pensamiento crítico para resolver 

problemas, fomentar la justicia social, y crear un cambio en la sociedad. 
 

 

II.  COMMUNICATIONS NORMS/NORMAS DE COMUNICACION 
 

A. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS/Comunicaciones Verbales: Non-agenda items: no individual presentation shall be for 

more than three (3) minutes and the total time for this purpose shall not exceed fifteen (15) minutes.  Board members will not respond 

to presentations and no action can be taken. However, the Board may give direction to staff following a presentation./Temas no 

presentados en la agenda: Ningún individuo presentará por más de tres (3) minutos y el tiempo total para este segmento no pasará 

de quince (15) minutos.  Los miembros de la Mesa Directiva no contestarán preguntas y ningún voto tomará acabo.  Sin embargo, 

los Miembros de la Mesa Directiva pueden dar instrucciones al personal presentando los temas. 
 

1. Public Comments (maximum of three (3) minutes per speaker)/Comentarios Públicos (máximo de 3 

minutos por persona)  

 

III. CLOSED SESSION/Sesión cerrada: Student Attendance Hearing / Audiencia de asistencia de estudiante– 

Education Code 48918; cf. 5144 – Student Discipline -  School Leadership (15 min) 

 

IV. OPEN SESSION/Sesión abierta: Announcement of Closed Session Board Action/ Anuncio de la acción tomada 

durante la sesión cerrada – School Leadership (5 min.) 

 

V. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/ARTICULOS DE INFORMACION  

 

1. Parent Council/Association/Concilio y asociación de padres – Representative/representante (5 min) 

2. Student Council/Concilio estudiantil – Representative/representante (5 min) 

 

VI. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION – ARTICULOS PROGRAMADOS PARA 

DISCUSIÓN Y/O ACCIÓN 

 

A. School Accountability Report Card (SARC) –Reporte de progreso de responsabilidad escolar (SARC) – School 

Leadership (10 min.) 

i. Public Comments (maximum of three (3) minutes per speaker)/Comentarios Públicos (máximo de 3 minutos por 

persona)  

It is recommended that the Board discuss and/or approve Agenda Item/Se recomienda que la Mesa 

Directiva discuta y/o apruebe. 
 

Motion:____    Second:____    Vote:___     

 

B. First Interim Report/Primer Reporte Intermedio – School Leadership/Liderazgo (10 min) 

i. Public Comments (maximum of three (3) minutes per speaker)/Comentarios Públicos (máximo de 3 minutos por 

persona)  

It is recommended that the Board discuss and/or approve Agenda Item /Se recomienda que la Mesa 

Directiva discuta y/o apruebe. 
 

Motion:____    Second:____    Vote:___      

 

 

 

 

 

 
2



 

 

C. Annual Fiscal Audit/Auditoría fiscal anual – EdTec/Morales (15 min)i. Public Comments (maximum of three (3) 

minutes per speaker)/Comentarios Públicos (máximo de 3 minutos por persona)  

It is recommended that the Board discuss and/or approve Agenda Item /Se recomienda que la Mesa 

Directiva discuta y/o apruebe. 

 

Motion:____    Second:____    Vote:___      

 

D. November - December Check Registers/Registros de la cuenta bancaria de noviembre a diciembre – School 

Leadership/Liderazgo (5 min) 

i. Public Comments (maximum of three (3) minutes per speaker)/Comentarios Públicos (máximo de 3 minutos por 

persona)  

It is recommended that the Board discuss and/or approve Agenda Item /Se recomienda que la Mesa 

Directiva discuta y/o apruebe. 
 

Motion:____    Second:____    Vote:___      

 

E. CALSTRS Pension 2 403(b) Plan/Plan de 403(b) de CALSTRS Pension 2 – Morales (10 min) 

i. Public Comments (maximum of three (3) minutes per speaker)/Comentarios Públicos (máximo de 3 minutos por 

persona)  

It is recommended that the Board discuss and/or approve Agenda Item /Se recomienda que la Mesa 

Directiva discuta y/o apruebe. 

 

Motion:____    Second:____    Vote:___      

 
F. Board Development: Nominations and Elections Update; Executive Member Interim Elections / Desarrollo 

de la mesa directiva: Actualización de nominaciones y elecciones; Elecciones provisionales de miembros 

ejectutivos - (20 min.)  

i. Public Comments (maximum of three (3) minutes per speaker)/Comentarios Públicos (máximo de 3 minutos por 

persona)  

It is recommended that the Board discuss and/or approve Agenda Item/Se recomienda que la Mesa 

Directiva discuta y/o apruebe. 
 

Motion:____    Second:____    Vote:___     

 

G. Resolution Authorizing Use of Remote Teleconferencing Provisions Pursuant to AB 361/ Resolución que 

autoriza el uso de teleconferencias remotas de conformidad con AB 361 –School Leadership (5 min.)  

i. Public Comments (maximum of three (3) minutes per speaker)/Comentarios Públicos (máximo de 3 minutos por 

persona)  

It is recommended that the Board discuss and/or approve Agenda Item/Se recomienda que la Mesa 

Directiva discuta y/o apruebe. 
 

Motion:____    Second:____    Vote:____     

 

VII. FUTURE MEETINGS/Próxima Junta  
A.) Regular Meeting: Friday, February 24, 2023 at 5:30pm – viernes, 27 de febrero de 2023 a las 5:30pm  

 

VI. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/Temas para agendas futuras 

 

VII.      ADJOURNMENT/Clausura 

 

The meeting was adjourned at ____:_____p.m./La junta terminó a las ____:_____ p.m. 

 

 
 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and upon request, the School may furnish reasonable auxiliary aids and services to qualified individuals with disabilities. Individuals 

who require appropriate alternative modifications of the agenda in order to participate in Board meetings are invited to contact the LAS office. En conformidad con la Acta de Americanos 

Incapacitados (ADA) y con el pedido formal, la escuela puede proveer servicios o la ayuda a individuos con incapacidades.  Individuos que requieren servicios especiales para participar en la 

junta de la Mesa Directiva están invitados comunicarse con la directora para hacer arreglos. 

 Motion: __________                                       Second: _________                                                     Vote: ____________ 

3



 

   Language Academy of Sacramento/Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Public Charter School/Una Escuela Pública de Inmersión Dual en Español 

2850 49th Street, Sacramento, CA 95817 

 

Minutes/Minutas 

BOARD MEETING/REUNIÓN DE LA MESA DIRECTIVA 

Friday, December 2, 2022/ viernes, 2 de diciembre del 2022 

5:30 pm through Zoom/ 5:30PM a través de Zoom 

 

I. PRELIMINARY/PRELIMINARIO 
I.A Meeting was called to order by Cristian García at 5:34 PM.  Roll call was taken./ La junta fue convocada por Cristian 

García a las 5:34 PM. Se tomó lista. 

I.B Name/ Nombre Role/ Papel Present/ Presente Absent/ Ausente 

1. Cristian García Parent/Padre (20-23)  X  

2. Nailah Kokayi Parent/Madre (21-24) Vice President/Vice 

Presidenta 

X  

3. José Luis Rodríguez Parent/Padre (22-25) X  

4. Clark Graham  Teacher/Maestre (19-22)  X  

5. Laura Lomelí Staff/Personal (20-23) 

Secretary/Secretaria 

X  

6. Brenda Luna Teacher/Maestra (21-24) X  

7. Nina Sylvains  Community Member/Miembro 

Comunitario (20-23) 

X  

8. Vacant/vacante Community Member/Miembro 

Comunitario (21-24) 

 

 

 

9. Vacant/vacante Community Member/Miembro 

Comunitario (22-25) 

  

10. Student Representative Student Council President/Presidente del 

Concilio Estudiantil 

X  

11. Teejay Bersola Director of Academic 

Accountability/Directora de 

Responsabilidad Académica 

X  

12. Judy Morales Director of Business and 

Operations/Directora de Negocios y 

Operaciones 

X  

13. Eduardo de León Executive Director/Director Ejecutivo X  

Agenda/Agenda Action/Acción 
I.C Approval of Agenda  

Aprobación de la Agenda 

A motion was made to approve the December 2, 2022 agenda 

Se hizo una moción para aprobar la agenda del 2 de diciembre 

de 2022  

 

1st Motion/1a Moción: Laura Lomelí  

2nd Motion/2a Moción: Brenda Luna 

Absences/Ausencias: Graham, Kokayi 

Abstentions/Abstenciones: None/ninguna 

The motion passed with five votes. / La moción pasó con cinco 

votos. 

I.D.a. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 

Aprobación de los minutos de la mesa directiva 

A motion was made to approve the August 26, 2022 minutes 

Se hizo una moción para aprobar las minutas del 26 de agosto 

de 2022  

 

1st Motion/1a Moción: Brenda Luna 

2nd Motion/2a Moción: Cristian García 

Absences/Ausencias: Graham, Kokayi 

Abstentions/Abstenciones: José Luis Rodríguez 

The motion passed with four votes. / La moción pasó con cuatro 

votos. 

I.E Mission  

Misión 

The mission was read aloud. / La misión fue leída en voz alta. 

4



 

II. COMMUNICATIONS NORMS/NORMAS DE COMUNICACIÓN 
II.A. Public Comments 

Comentarios Públicos 

None/Ninguno 

 

III.   INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/ARTICULOS DE INFORMACION 
III.1.  Parent Council/Association/Concilio y asociación de 

padres – Representative/representante 

Brenda Luna shared the report.  

Brenda Luna compartió el reporte.  

 Public Comments 

Comentarios Públicos 

None/Ninguno 

 

III.1.  Student Council/Concilio de estudiantes – 

Representative/representante 

Maestras Rosío Pérez and Graciela Castañeda, along with 

Student Council executive members, provided a report.   

Maestras Rosío Pérez y Graciela Castañeda, juntas con los 

miembros ejecutivos del concilio de estudiantes, compartieron 

el reporte.  

 Public Comments 

Comentarios Públicos 

None/Ninguno 

 

IV.   ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

ARTÍCULOS PROGRAMADOS PARA DISCUSIÓN Y/O ACCIÓN 

IV.A.  Academics 101: Academic Performance 

Report/Reporte de progreso académico – School 

Leadership 

Teejay Bersola shared the Annual Progress Report, including an 

overview of the LAS accountability system and CAASPP 

analysis. 

Teejay Bersola compartió el Informe Anual de Progreso, que 

incluye una descripción general del sistema de responsabilidad 

de cuentas LAS y el análisis CAASPP. 

 Public Comments 

Comentarios Públicos 

None/Ninguno 

 

IV.B.  Independent Study Policy/ Póliza de estudios 

independientes - School Leadership/Liderazgo 

Escolar 

Judy Morales shared proposed revisions to the Independent 

Study policy.  

Judy Morales compartió las revisiones propuestas a la póliza de 

estudio independiente. 

 

A motion was made to approve the revised Independent Study 

policy. 

Se hizo una moción para aprobar la póliza de estudio 

independiente con revisiones. 

 

1st Motion/1a Moción: Cristian García 

2nd Motion/2a Moción: Laura Lomelí 

Absences/Ausencias: none/ninguno  

Abstentions/Abstenciones: none/ninguna 

The motion passed with seven votes. / La moción pasó con siete 

votos. 

 Public Comments 

Comentarios Públicos 

None/Ninguno 

 

IV.C.  Universal Prekindergarten Planning and 

Implementation Grant Program/Programa 

Universal de Subsidios para la Planificación e 

Implementación de Prekínder– School 

Leadership/Liderazgo Escolar 

Teejay Bersola presented the LAS Universal Prekindergarten 

Plan  

Teejay Bersola presentó el Plan Universal de Prekínder de LAS 

 

A motion was made to approve the LAS UPK Plan. 

Se hizo una moción para aprobar el plan de UPK de LAS. 

 

1st Motion/1a Moción: Laura Lomelí  

2nd Motion/2a Moción: Cristian García 

Absences/Ausencias: none/ninguno  

Abstentions/Abstenciones: none/ninguna 

The motion passed with seven votes. / La moción pasó con siete 

votos.  

 Public Comments 

Comentarios Públicos 

None/Ninguno 

 

 

5



IV.D.  Monthly Financials/ Financieros mensuales – 

EdTec/Morales 

Judy Morales shared he monthly financials with the board.  

Judy Morales compartió las finanzas mensuales con la mesa 

directiva. 

  

 Public Comments 

Comentarios Públicos 

None/Ninguno 

 

 

IV.E.  September - October Check Registers/Registros de 

la cuenta bancaria de septiembre a octubre – School 

Leadership/Liderazgo 

School Leadership shared the September and October check 

registers with the board. 

El liderazgo escolar compartió los registros de septiembre y 

octubre con la mesa directiva. 

 

A motion was made to approve the September check register. 

Se hizo una moción para aprobar el registro de septiembre.  

 

1st Motion/1a Moción: Laura Lomelí 

2nd Motion/2a Moción: Clark Graham  

Absences/Ausencias: none/ninguno 

Abstentions/Abstenciones: none/ninguno 

The motion passed with seven votes. / La moción pasó con siete 

votos. 

 

A motion was made to approve the October check register. 

Se hizo una moción para aprobar el registro de octubre.  

 

1st Motion/1a Moción: Brenda Luna 

2nd Motion/2a Moción: Clark Graham  

Absences/Ausencias: none/ninguno 

Abstentions/Abstenciones: none/ninguno 

The motion passed with seven votes. / La moción pasó con siete 

votos. 

 Public Comments 

Comentarios Públicos 

None/Ninguno 

 

IV.F.  STRS 403(b) Plan/Plan de 403(b0 de STRS – 

Morales 

School Leadership presented the CALSTRS Pension2 403(b) 

plan to the board for a first read.  

El liderazgo escolar presentó el plan de CALSTRS Pension2 

403(b) a la mesa directiva para una primera lectura. 

 Public Comments 

Comentarios Públicos 

None/Ninguno 

 

IV.G.  Board Development: Nominations and Elections 

Update/ Desarrollo de la mesa directiva: 

Actualización de nominaciones y elecciones – School 

Leadership/Liderazgo 

School Leadership shared information with the board. 

El liderazgo escolar compartió información con la mesa 

directiva. 

 

 Public Comments 

Comentarios Públicos 

None/Ninguno 

 

IV.H.  Resolution Authorizing Use of Remote 

Teleconferencing Provisions Pursuant to AB 361/ 

Resolución que autoriza el uso de teleconferencias 

remotas de conformidad con AB 361 –  School 

Leadership 

School Leadership shared the resolution with the board. 

El liderazgo escolar compartió la resolución con la mesa 

directiva. 

 

A motion was made to approve the resolution. 

Se hizo una moción para aprobar la resolución.  

 

1st Motion/1a Moción: Brenda Luna 

2nd Motion/2a Moción: Clark Graham  

Absences/Ausencias: none/ninguno 

Abstentions/Abstenciones: none/ninguno 

The motion passed with seven votes. / La moción pasó con siete 

votos. 

 Public Comments 

Comentarios Públicos 

 

None/Ninguno 

 

6



VII. FUTURE MEETINGS/PRÓXIMA JUNTA

a. Regular Meeting: Friday, January 24, 2023 at 5:30pm – viernes, 24 de enero de 2023 a las 5:30pm

VIII. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/TEMAS PARA AGENDAS FUTURAS

IX. ADJOURNMENT/CLAUSURA
A motion was made to adjourn the board meeting. / Se hizo una moción para terminar la reunión de la Mesa. 

1st Motion/1a Moción: Cristian García 

2nd Motion/2a Moción: Laura Lomelí 

Absences/Ausencias: None/ninguna 

Abstentions/Abstenciones: None/ninguna 

The motion passed with seven votes. / La moción pasó con siete votos. 

The board meeting was adjourned at 7:28 PM. / La reunión de la Mesa se terminó a las 7:28PM. 

7



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

Agenda Item #V1  

 

 

Board Meeting Date:  January 27, 2023 

 

Subject: Parent Council  

 

☒ Information Item Only 

☐ Approval on Consent Agenda 

☐ Conference (for discussion only) 

☐ Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated:  ) 

☐ Conference/Action 

☒ Action 

 

Committee: Parent Council, Parent Association 

Parent Council: The Parent Council met on Wednesday, December 14, 2022 

 

 Administration Updates- Funding regarding field trips, and balances for each grade level 

(Winter Festival Sales Total was shared). Each grade level has received the amount for their 

fieldtrip account.  

 PC Update- The budget was shared, along with Box Top Funds.  

 Parent Involvement Policy- A. Mlakar and X. Laredo will presented the document. The PIP 

was approved by the Grade-level representatives. 

 STEM Night - PC will sell food during the STEM Night on February 1st, 2023. $500 was 

approved out of the PC Budget for the purchase of food items. PC is working on asking for 

donations from the surrounding markets.  

 Miscellaneous/Reminders/Questions: There will be a follow-up meeting to distribute the 

planning task for the event. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

Agenda Item #V1 

 

Board Meeting Date:  27 de enero de 2023 

 

Subject: Concilio de padres   

 

 

☒ Information Item Only 

☐ Approval on Consent Agenda 

☐ Conference (for discussion only) 

☐ Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated:  ) 

☐ Conference/Action 

☐ Action 

 

Commité: Parent Council 

Concilio de padres: El Concilio de Padres se reunió el miércoles 14 de diciembre 

 

 Actualizaciones de administración: financiación con respecto a excursiones y saldos para 

cada nivel de grado (se compartió el total de ventas del festival de invierno). Cada nivel de 

grado ha recibido la cantidad para su cuenta de excursión. 

 Actualización de PC: Se compartió el presupuesto, junto con Box Top Funds.Póliza de 

participación de los padres: A. Mlakar y X. Laredo presentarón el documento. El PIP fue 

aprobado por los representantes a nivel de grado. 

 Noche STEM: el PC venderá alimentos durante la Noche STEM el 1 de febrero de 2023. Se 

aprobaron $500 del presupuesto del PC para la compra de alimentos. PC está trabajando para 

solicitar donaciones de los mercados circundantes. 

 Varios/Recordatorios/Preguntas: Habrá una reunión de seguimiento para distribuir la tarea 

de planificación del evento. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

Agenda Item#V2 

Board Meeting Date: January 27, 2023 

 

Subject:  Student Council   
 

(X)    Information Item Only 

(   )    Approval on Consent Agenda 

(   )    Conference (for discussion only) 

(   )    Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated:    ) 

(   )    Conference/Action 

(   )    Action 

 

 

Committee: Student Council  

 

Student Council Reports:  

 

The Student Council (SC) meeting called to order and began with the Treasurer's report. SC Treasurer Anahi 

Gomez announced a report of our academic calendar budget (2,013.85).  

 

Public comments raised the possibility of having a teachers versus 8th grade volleyball game and the 

possibility of wearing comfortable clothing during benchmark testing. 

 

On December 9th, SC successfully held its first Pop-Up event at the Winter Festival. Eight vendors were 

present and SC raised $400. 

 

With the community's support, SC was able to fill 87 stockings for the Stocking Drive. The donations were 

delivered to Loaves & Fishes on December 14th. 

 

SC created a bathroom vandalism presentation to share with all students. 

 

Student council members voted on the t-shirt design for the 2022-2023 Student Council. 

 

A Basketball Rally took place on Thursday, January 26th to present the team members and wish them luck on 

their final games.  

 

January’s Spirit Day will be Jersey Day on Friday, January 27th.  

 

Meeting was adjourned at 4:02 p.m. 

 

Future items on the agenda: 
 Spirit day yearlong plan 

 Pennies for Patients 

 

 

 

 

10



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

Agenda Artículo # V2 

Fecha de la reunión: 27 de enero de 2023 

 

Tema: Concilio estudiantil 
 

(X)    Artículo de información 

(   )    Aprobación en la Agenda de Consentimiento 

(   )    Conferencia (solo para discutir) 

(   )    Conferencia/Primera lectura (Acción Anticipado:        ) 

(  )    Conferencia/Acción 

(   )    Acción 

 

Comité: Concilio estudiantil  

 

Informes del concilio estudiantil: 

 

La junta del Concilio Estudiantil (SC) fue llamada a orden y comenzó con el informe del Tesorero. SC 

Tesorero Anahi Gómez anunció un informe de nuestro presupuesto calendario académico (2,013.85).  

 

Los comentarios del público plantearon la posibilidad de tener un juego de voleibol de maestr@s contra 

estudiantes de 8vo grado y la posibilidad de usar ropa cómoda durante las pruebas de MAP. 

 

El 9 de diciembre, SC celebró con éxito su primer evento “Pop-Up” en el Festival de invierno. Ocho 

vendedores estuvieron presentes y SC recaudo $400. 

 

Con el apoyo de la comunidad, SC fue capaz de llenar 87 medias para el “Stocking Drive”. Las donaciones 

fueron entregadas a Loaves & Fishes el 14 de diciembre. 

 

SC creó una presentación de vandalismo en los baños para compartir con todos los estudiantes de LAS. 

 

Los miembros del concilio estudiantil votaron sobre el diseño de la camiseta para el Concilio Estudiantil 

2022-2023. 

 

Un “rally” de baloncesto se llevó a cabo el jueves, 26 de enero para presentar a los miembros del equipo de 

LAS y desearles suerte en sus últimos partidos.  

 

El día de espíritu de enero será el Día de “Jersey” el viernes, 27 de enero.  

 

Se culmina la sesión a las 4:02 p.m. 

 

Futuros puntos en la agenda: 
 Calendario  para los  día del espíritu del año 

 Pennies for Patients 

 

11



Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language  Academy  of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 

A California Public School 

 
Board Meeting Date:  January 27, 2023 

 
Subject: School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 

 

Agenda Item# V1.A 

 

Information Item Only 

Approval on Consent Agenda 

Conference (for discussion only) 

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated:  ) 

Conference/Action 

Action 

 
Committee: School Leadership 

 
Summary: 

Since November 1988, state law has required all public schools receiving state funding to prepare and distribute a SARC. 

A similar requirement is also contained in the federal Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA). The purpose of 

the report card is to provide parents and the community with important information about each public school. A SARC 

can be an effective way for a school to report on its progress in achieving goals. The public may also use a SARC to 

evaluate and compare schools on a variety of indicators. 

 

Although there is great variation in the design of school report cards, they generally begin with a profile that provides 

background information about the school and its students. The profile usually summarizes the school's mission, goals, 

and accomplishments. State law requires that the SARC contain all of the following:  

 
o Demographic data 

o School safety and climate for learning 

information 

o Academic data 

o School completion rates 

o Class sizes 

o Teacher and staff information (Per CDE available after 

2/28/23) 

o Curriculum and instruction descriptions 

o Postsecondary preparation information 

o Fiscal and expenditure data 

 
Recommendation: 

It is recommended that the Board review and approve the 

attached SARC. 

 

Documents Attached: 

1. LAS SARC v012323 

 

 

 
 

LAS SARC  

 
 
Members 

A
y

e 

N
a

y
 

A
b

st
a

in
 

A
b

se
n

t 
Sylvains, Nina      

     

     

Kokayi, Nailah     
Rodríguez, José 
Luis  

    

Garcia, Cristian      

Graham, Clark     

Lomeli, Laura     

Luna, Brenda     

Totals:     

Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 min 

Submitted By: Bersola 

Date: 01.23.23 

Pertinent Pages in 

( ) Charter, pages   

(  )  MOU, pages   

12



Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language  Academy  of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 

A California Public School  

Agenda Artículo# VI.A 
 

Fecha de la Reunión: 27 de enero de 2023 

 

 
Tema: Reporte de progreso de responsabilidad escolar (SARC, por sus siglas en inglés) 

 

Artículo de información 

Aprobación en la Agenda de Consentimiento 

Conferencia (solo para discutir) 

Conferencia/Primera lectura (Acción Anticipado:  ) 

Conferencia/Acción 

Acción 

 
Comité: Liderazgo escolar 

 
Resumen: 

Desde noviembre de 1988, la ley estatal ha requerido que todas las escuelas públicas que reciban fondos estatales 

preparen y distribuyan un reporte de progreso de responsabilidad escolar (SARC por sus siglas en ingles). Un requisito 

similar también está incluido en el acta federal de educación primaria y secundaria (ESEA por sus siglas en ingles). El 

propósito de este reporte de progreso es de darles a los padres y la comunidad información importante sobre cada 

escuela pública. Un SARC puede ser una madera efectiva de que las escuelas demuestren el progreso hecho hacia sus 

metas. El público también puede usar SARC para evaluar y comparar las escuelas en una variedad de indicadores.  

 
Aunque hay gran variación entre los diseños de los reportes de progreso, generalmente comienzan con un perfil que 

presenta información básica sobre la escuela y sus estudiantes. El perfil usualmente da un resumen de la misión, metas y 

logros de la escuela. La ley estatal requiere que el SARC contenga los siguientes:  

 

 Información demográfica 

 Información sobre la seguridad  

 escolar y el clima de aprendizaje 

 Información académica 

 Tasas de finalización 

 Tamaños de las clases 

 Información sobre los maestros y el 

personal 

 Descripciones del curriculum y la 

instrucción 

 Preparación para después de la 

secundaria 

 Tasa fiscal y de gastos 

Recomendación 

El liderazgo escolar recomienda que la Mesa Directiva revise y apruebe el SARC 

 
Documentos adjuntos 

1. SARC 

 

Tiempo estimado para la presentación: 10 min. 

Entregado por: Bersola 

Fecha: 1.23.23 

Páginas pertinentes en: 

( )  La constitución, páginas   

(  )  MOU, páginas   

13



Page 1 of 22 

14



Page 2 of 25 

The Language Academy of Sacramento (LAS) School Accountability Report Card  
2021–22 School Year 

California Department of Education (v012723) 

Address:  2850 49th St, Sacramento, CA 95817-2303 Phone: 916-277-7137 
Principal: Mr. Eduardo De Leon,  Grade Span:TK-Gr8 
 Executive Director/Superintendent 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to publish a School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains information about the condition and 
performance of each California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all 
local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan 
(LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with 
specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to 
be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

➢ For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year reports, see the 
California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

➢ For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

➢ For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community members 
should contact the school principal or the district office. 

DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this school and 
comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic 
system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, 
dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 

California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects 
California’s new accountability and continuous improvement system and provides information 
about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. 
The Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student 
groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, and 
areas in need of improvement. 
 

Internet Access 

Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly accessible 
(e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and public locations is 
generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use restrictions may include the 
hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation may be used (depending on 
availability), the types of software programs available on a workstation, and the ability to print 
documents. 

Throughout this document the letters DPL refer to data provided by the LEA,  
and the letters DPC refer to data provided by the CDE. 
  

15

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/


Page 3 of 22 

About This School 

TABLE 1 NAME: District Contact Information (School Year 2022–23) 

Entity Contact Information 

District Name Sacramento City Unified 

Phone Number (916) 643-9000 

Superintendent  Jorge Aguilar 

Email Address superintendent@scusd.edu 

Website  www.scusd.edu 

TABLE 2 NAME: School Contact Information (School Year 2022–23) 

Entity Contact Information 

School Name The Language Academy of Sacramento 

Street 2850 49th St. 

City, State, Zip Sacramento, CA 95817-2303 

Phone Number (916) 277-7137 

Principal Mr. Eduardo De Leon, Executive 
Director/Superintendent 

Email Address edeleon@lasac.info 

Website www.lasac.info 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 34-67439-0160898 

TABLE 3 NAME: School Description and Mission Statement 
(School Year 2022–23) 

The LAS mission is to create a learning environment where students: 1) Utilize bilingualism and 
biliteracy (Spanish and English) to achieve academic excellence and apply skills in real-world 
situations and diverse settings. (BILITERACY); 2) Develop and exhibit positive self-esteem, 
pride, confidence, and respect for themselves and others. (CONFIDENCE AND LIFE SKILLS); 
and, 3) Demonstrate leadership skills in order to build bridges between communities and apply 
critical thinking skills to solve problems, promote social justice, and create change in society. 
(LEADERSHIP AND CRITICAL THINKING) 

TABLE 4 NAME: Student Enrollment by Grade Level (School Year 2021–22) 

Grade Level Number of Students 

Kindergarten 85 

Grade 1 66 

Grade 2 66 

Grade 3 66 

Grade 4 66 

Grade 5 66 

Grade 6 67 

Grade 7 66 

Grade 8 66 

Total Enrollment 614 

16



Page 4 of 22 

TABLE 5 NAME: Student Enrollment by Student Group (School Year 2021–22) 

Student Group Percent of 
Total Enrollment 

Female 51.5 

Male 48.5 

Asian  0.3 

Black or African American  1.8 

Filipino  0.2 

Hispanic or Latino 94.1 

Two or More Races  1.0 

White  2.6 

English Learners 46.4 

Homeless 0.2 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 74.1 

Students with Disabilities 10.7 

 
A. Conditions of Learning 

State Priority: Basic 

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 
subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 

TABLE 6 NAME: Teacher Preparation and Placement (School Year 2020–21) The 2021-22 
date is anticipated to be posted by the end of February 2023 (per CDE) 

Authorization/ 
Assignment 

School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) 
Credentialed for Subject and 
Student Placement (properly 
assigned) 

      

Intern Credential Holders 
Properly Assigned 

      

Teachers Without Credentials 
and Misassignments 
(“ineffective” under ESSA) 

      

Credentialed Teachers 
Assigned Out-of-Field  
(“out-of-field” under ESSA) 

      

Unknown       

Total Teaching Positions       

Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one 
staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 
50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as a position that an educator is 
assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services 
that an educator is authorized to provide to students. 
  

17



Page 5 of 22 

TABLE 7 NAME: Teacher Preparation and Placement (School Year 2021–22) The 2021-22 
date is anticipated to be posted by the end of February 2023 (per CDE)

Authorization/ 
Assignment 

School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) 
Credentialed for Subject and 
Student Placement (properly 
assigned) 

Intern Credential Holders 
Properly Assigned 

Teachers Without Credentials 
and Misassignments 
(“ineffective” under ESSA) 

Credentialed Teachers 
Assigned Out-of-Field  
(“out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Unknown 

Total Teaching Positions 

Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one 
staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 
50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as a position that an educator is 
assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services 
that an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

TABLE 8 NAME: Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 
(considered “ineffective” under ESSA) The 2021-22 date is anticipated to be posted by 
the end of February 2023 (per CDE) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020–21 
Number 

2021–22 
Number 

Permits and Waivers 

Misassignments 

Vacant Positions 

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 

TABLE 9 NAME: Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field 
(considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) The 2021-22 date is anticipated to be posted by 
the end of February 2023 (per CDE) 

Indicator 2020–21 
Number 

2021–22 
Number 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 

Local Assignment Options 

Total Out-of-Field Teachers 

18



Page 6 of 22 

TABLE 10 NAME: Class Assignments The 2021-22 date is anticipated to be posted by the 
end of February 2023 (per CDE) 

Indicator 2020–21 
Percent 

2021–22 
Percent 

Misassignments for English Learners (a percentage of all 
the classes with English learners taught by teachers that 
are misassigned) 

  

No credential, permit or authorization to teach (a 
percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no 
record of an authorization to teach) 

  

Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 
 
TABLE 11 NAME: Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional 
Materials (School Year 2022–23) 

Year and month in which the data were collected: October 2022 

Subject Textbooks and Other Instructional 
Materials/year of Adoption 

From Most 
Recent 

Adoption? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 

Reading/Language 
Arts 

GrK-5 McmillanMcGraw Hill 
Treasures, Columbia University 
Teacher's College Reading and 

Writing Projects (TCRWP) Units of 
Study Curriculum 

Gr6-Gr8 McDougal Littell, TCRWP 
Units of Study, ERWC 

Yes 0% 

Mathematics GrTK-5 Eureka Math 
Gr6-Gr8 College Preparatory 

Mathematics 

Yes 0% 

Science GrTK-Gr5 Mystery Science, Amplify 
(Pilot) 

Gr6-Gr8 Stem Scopes 

Yes 0% 

History-Social 
Science 

Gr4-Gr5 Harcourt Brace 
Gr6-Gr8 McDougal Littell 

Yes 0% 

Foreign Language Spanish Literacy: 
GrK-Gr6 Macmillan McGraw Hill 
Tesoros, TCRWP Units of Study 

Gr7-Gr8 McDougal Littell (Language 
and AP Literature), TCRWP Units of 

Study, ERWC 

Yes 0% 

Health   0% 

Visual and 
Performing Arts 

  0% 

Science Laboratory 
Equipment (grades 
9-12) 

N/A N/A  

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 

19

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


Page 7 of 22 

TABLE 12 NAME: School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

Core building areas (classrooms A-Q, MP, kitchen, office and bathrooms) are in fair to poor 
condition. LAS rehabilitation and new construction area are on great condition. 

Site require a number of improvements beginning with, but not limited to, 1. Replacement of 
Mammoth rooftop air handlers. Air chillers are old and in poor condition and should be replaced. 
2. Air handlers are old, weathered and in desperate need of replacement. The existing electric 
resistance heating is very costly to the school.3. Replacement of single ply roofing is necessary. 
Several areas throughout the core site have had water leaks with ceiling collapsing during peak 
rain months.4. Poor drainage, as a result grass and weeds grow along the roof top creating a 
spongy feel under roofing.5. Increase water efficiency surrounding core building, including 
replacement of drinking fountains in poor condition.6. Kinder play structure requires shade, ADA 
compliant ramp, replacement of wood fiber and hardtop. 7. Boys, Girls and in desperate need of 
modernization, including but not limited to leaking faucets, floor mounted stalls (non-compliant), 
upgrading of fixture for water and energy efficacy. 8. Adult bathrooms in desperate need of 
modernization, current stalls are non CBC complaint, fan in bathrooms in poor condition (no-air 
flow). 9. Multi-purpose room Entry ways are no CBC Compliant, water damage throughout, 
serving counter needs to be modernized to be accessible. 

LAS seeks the monetary support of the district to rehabilitate and modernize the remaining Core 
building areas: HVAC and roof. This is heightened importance due to COVID-19. 

Rehabilitation and modernization of the Core building, Library, boy’s bathroom and girls 
bathroom is currently until further notice. 

TABLE 13 NAME: School Facility Good Repair Status 

Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 
• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

Year and month of the most recent FIT report: November, 2022 

20



Page 8 of 22 

System Inspected Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor 

Repair Needed and Action 
Taken or Planned 

Systems: Gas Leaks, 
Mechanical/HVAC, 
Sewer 

 Fair  
Core building HVAC needs 

modernization updates. 

Interior: Interior 
Surfaces 

 Fair   

Cleanliness: Overall 
Cleanliness, Pest/ 
Vermin Infestation 

Good    

Electrical: Electrical Good 

  

Core building needs to be 
modernized to align with 

increasing technology use in the 
classroom. 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ 
Fountains 

Good 
   

Safety: Fire Safety, 
Hazardous Materials 

Good 
   

Structural: Structural 
Damage, Roofs 

 Fair  
Core building roofing needs to be 

modernized. 

External: 
Playground/School 
Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

Good    

Overall Facility Rate 

Year and month of the most recent FIT report: November, 2022 

TABLE 14 NAME: Overall Rating 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

 Good   

  

21



Page 9 of 22 

B. Pupil Outcomes 

State Priority: Pupil Achievement 

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and 
Progress [CAASPP] System includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments 
for students in the general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in 
grades three through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible students may participate in 
the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with alternate achievement 
standards, which are linked with the Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students 
with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 

The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 

1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades 
three through eight and grade eleven. 

2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in 
grades three through eight and grade eleven. 

3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, 
and once in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 

• College and Career Ready: The percentage of students who have successfully 
completed courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the University of 
California and the California State University, or career technical education sequences 
or programs of study. 

Table 15: CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven taking and completing a state-
administered assessment 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

Subject School 
2020–21 

School 
2021–22 

District 
2020–21 

District 
2021–22 

State 
2020–21 

State 
2021–22 

English Language 
Arts/Literacy  
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

2021-22 35 N/A 38 N/A 47 

Mathematics  
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

2021-22 31 N/A 27 N/A 33 

Note: Where it was the most viable option, in 2020–21, LEAs were required to administer the 
statewide summative assessment in ELA and mathematics and where a statewide summative 
assessment was not the most viable option for the LEA, LEAs were permitted to report results 
from a different assessment that meets the criteria established by the California State Board of 
Education on March 16, 2021. The 2020–21 data cells for the school, district, state have N/A 
values because these data are not comparable to  
2021–22 data. 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either 
because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect 
student privacy. 

22



Page 10 of 22 

Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment 
and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment 
plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3–Alternate) on the 
CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 

Table 16: CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group for students taking and 

completing a state-administered assessment 

Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2021–22) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not 

Tested 

Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students 397 394 99.24 0.76 34.77 

Female 210 209 99.52 0.48 36.84 

Male 187 185 98.93 1.07 32.43 

American Indian or 
Alaska Native 

0 0 0 0 0 

Asian -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African 
American  

-- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino 369 369 100 0 33.06 

Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander 

0 0 0 0 0 

Two or More Races -- -- -- -- -- 

White 12 9 75 25 -- 

English Learners 147 147 100 0 11.56 

Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless 0 0 0 0 0 

Military 0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

299 296 99 1 28.72 

Students Receiving 
Migrant Education 
Services 

0 0 0 0 0 

Students with 
Disabilities  

46 46 100 0 8.7 

 

Note: ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  
The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or 
exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number 
of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3–Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either 
because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect 
student privacy. 

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether 
they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested is not the number that was 
used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement level percentages are 
calculated using only students who received scores.  

23



Page 11 of 22 

Table 17: CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
for students taking and completing a state-administered assessment 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2021–22) 

Student Group Total 
Enrollment 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students 397 394 99.24 0.76 30.96 

Female 210 209 99.52 0.48 26.32 

Male 187 185 98.93 1.07 36.22 

American Indian or 
Alaska Native 

0 0 0 0 0 

Asian -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African 
American  

-- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino 369 369 100 0 30.08 

Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander 

0 0 0 0 0 

Two or More 
Races 

-- -- -- -- -- 

White 12 9 75 25 -- 

English Learners 147 147 100 0 11.56 

Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless 0 0 0 0 0 

Military 0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

299 296 99 1 23.99 

Students 
Receiving Migrant 
Education 
Services 

0 0 0 0 0 

Students with 
Disabilities  

46 46 100 0 4.35 

 

Note: Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the 
CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who 
met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total 
number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3–Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either 
because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect 
student privacy. 

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether 
they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested is not the number that was 
used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement level percentages are 
calculated using only students who received scores.  

24



Page 12 of 22 

Table 18: CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

Subject School 
2020–21 

School 
2021–22 

District 
2020–21 

District 
2021–22 

State 
2020–21 

State 
2021–22 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 
and high 
school) 

NT 19.85 NT 25.03 28.5 29.47 

 

Note: Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the 
CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3–Alternate) 
on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Note: For any 2020–21 data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test students 
using the CAASPP for Science. 

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether 
they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested is not the number that was 
used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement level percentages are 
calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Table 19: CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

Grades Five, Eight, and High School (School Year 2021–22) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent  
Not  

Tested 

Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students 132 131 99.24 0.76 19.85 

Female 68 67 98.53 1.47 17.91 

Male 68 67 98.53 1.47 21.88 

American Indian or 
Alaska Native 

0 0 0 0 0 

Asian 0 0 0 0 0 

Black or African 
American  

-- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino 122 122 100 0 17.21 

Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander 

0 0 0 0 0 

Two or More Races -- -- -- -- -- 

White -- -- -- -- -- 

English Learners 45 45 100 0 0 

Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless 0 0 0 0 0 

Military 0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

108 107 99.07 0.93 14.02 

Students Receiving 
Migrant Education 
Services 

0 0 0 0 0 

Students with 
Disabilities  

16 16 100 0 0 

25



Page 13 of 22 

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either 
because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect 
student privacy. 
 

Table 20: Career Technical Education Programs (School Year 2021–22) Not Applicable to 

LAS  

Table 21: Career Technical Education (CTE) Participation (School Year 2021–22) Not 
Applicable to LAS  

Table 22: Course Enrollment/Completion of University of California (UC) and/or California 
State University (CSU) Admission Requirements Not Applicable to LAS  

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education 

Table 23: California Physical Fitness Test Results (School Year 2021–22) 

Percentage of Students Participating in each of the five Fitness Components 

Grade  Component 1: 
Aerobic  
Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength 
and Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

5   100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

7   100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 

Note: Due to changes to the 2021–22 PFT administration, only participation results are required 
for these five fitness areas. 

Note: Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the 
number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

C. Engagement 

State Priority: Parental Involvement 

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement 
(Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions regarding the 
school district and at each school site 

Table 24: Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2022–23) 

Governing Board 

26



Page 14 of 22 

The Governing Board is responsible for adopting a school-wide vision with programmatic goals, 
aligned school policies and procedures, and the yearly budget. The Board is composed of nine 
voting members elected by their peers and/or the LAS Community: three community members, 
three parent representatives, and three teacher/staff representatives. The combination of staff, 
parent, and community membership ensures that the voice of each group of stakeholders is 
taken into consideration. The Governing Board meets monthly; Board agendas are posted at 
the school office, on the school website (www.lasac.info), hard copies are available upon 
request at the school. Parents and community members are encouraged to attend Board 
meetings. Information on how to give input at Board meetings is available at all Board meetings. 

Parent Council/Parent Association 

The Parent Council is the elected body representing LAS parents and the organization 
responsible for involving parents in the activities of the school for the purpose of strengthening 
the LAS community. The Parent Council consists of non-voting officers such as President, Vice-
President, Secretary, Treasurer that are elected by the existing Parent Council Members. In 
addition, voting classroom representative for each grade level that are elected by Language 
Academy parents. A language balance is sought within the Parent Council. All parents are 
encouraged to attend Parent Council meetings. Parent Council events will be attended by the 
School Administration, teachers, parents, and students. 

All parents of LAS students are members of the Parent Association. The sole purpose of the 
Parent Association is to support the mission of the Language Academy of Sacramento. Parent 
Association meetings will be held monthly, and will be planned and led by School Leadership 
and the Parent Council. The Parent Council will generate topics of interest from parents for 
these meetings. These meetings will provide an opportunity for parents to communicate with 
school staff and get to know other parents.  

Academic and artistic events will be developed and organized by the administrators, the 
teachers, the Parent Council, and other volunteers. Examples of academic and artistic events 
include: Family Literacy Night, Winter Festival, Health and Science Fair, Día del Niño, Student 
Enrichment Presentations, as well as others.  

Participation in Advisory Councils 

A parent or guardian has the right to participate as a member of the English Language Advisory 
Committee, a Parental Council, School Site Council or Governing Board in accordance with the 
rules governing parent or guardian memberships in those organizations. 

English Learners Advisory Committee 

The Language Academy of Sacramento, in conjunction with other parent and school advisory 
councils, annually convenes the English Learners Advisory Committee (ELAC). The ELAC 
serves as the advisory body on the development of English Learners’ curriculum, progress, 
training of teachers and attendance policies. The school works with the parents of English 
Learners and English speaking students to develop and adopt policies and strategies. 

State Priority: Pupil Engagement 

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Engagement 
(Priority 5): 

• High school dropout rates;

• High school graduation rates; and

• Chronic Absenteeism.

27



Page 15 of 22 

Table 25: Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate)                    Not 
Applicable to LAS  

Table 26: Graduation Rate by Student Group (Four-Year Cohort Rate)(School Year 2021–
22) Not Applicable to LAS  

For information on the Four-Year Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate (ACGR), visit the CDE 
Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/acgrinfo.asp. 
 
Table 27: Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 
(School Year 2021–22) 

Student Group Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 

All Students 617 616 84 13.6 

Female 316 316 43 13.6 

Male 301 300 41 13.7 

American Indian or 
Alaska Native 

0 0 0 0 

Asian 2 2 0 0 

Black or African 
American  

11 11 1 9.1 

Filipino 1 1 0 0 

Hispanic or Latino 580 579 83 14.3 

Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander 

0 0 0 0 

Two or More Races 6 6 0 0 

White 17 17 0 0 

English Learners 292 291 50 17.2 

Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 

Homeless 1 1 0 0 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

459 458 77 16.8 

Students Receiving 
Migrant Education 
Services 

0 0 0 0 

Students with 
Disabilities  

71 71 16 22.5 

State Priority: School Climate 

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate 
(Priority 6): 

• Pupil suspension rates; 

• Pupil expulsion rates; and 

• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 
  

28

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/acgrinfo.asp


Page 16 of 22 

Table 28: Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019–20 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 
pandemic) 

Rate 
 

School 
2019–20 

District 
2019–20 

State 
2019–20 

Suspensions 0.65 3.7 2.45 

Expulsions 0 0.01 0.05 

 

Note: The 2019–20 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to other year 
data because the 2019–20 school year is a partial school year due to the COVID-19 crisis. As 
such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and 
expulsions in the 2019–20 school year compared to other school years. 

Table 29: Suspensions and Expulsions  
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2020–21 

School 
2021–22 

District 
2020–21 

District 
2021–22 

State 
2020–21 

State 
2021–22 

Suspensions 0.16 2.76 0.04 4.73 0.2 3.17 

Expulsions 0 0 0 0.01 0 0.07 

 

Note: Data collected during the 2020–21 school year may not be comparable to earlier years of 
this collection due to differences in learning mode instruction in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

Table 30: Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 
(School Year 2021–22) 
 
 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students 2.76 0 

Female 0 0 

Male 5.65 0 

Non-Binary 0 0 

American Indian or Alaska 
Native  

0 0 

Asian  0 0 

Black or African American  0 0 

Filipino  0 0 

Hispanic or Latino 2.93 0 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander  

0 0 

Two or More Races  0 0 

White  0 0 

English Learners 3.77 0 

Foster Youth 0 0 

Homeless 0 0 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

3.49 
0 

Students Receiving Migrant 
Education Services 

0 
0 

Students with Disabilities 5.63 0 

29



Page 17 of 22 

Table 31: School Safety Plan (School Year 2022–23) 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020–2021)  
The Language Academy of Sacramento has adopted and implemented a comprehensive set of 
health, safety, and risk management policies. These policies were developed in consultation 
with the school’s insurance carriers, applicable laws and regulations, and approved by the LAS 
Governing Board. 
IMMUNIZATIONS 
All LAS staff and students enrolled shall be required to provide records documenting 
immunizations as is required at public schools. Health and Safety Code Sections 120325-
120375, and Title 17, CA Code of Regulations Sections 6000-6075. 
SCREENINGS 
LAS adheres to the requirement regarding screening of pupils for vision, hearing, and scoliosis 
as applicable to grade levels served by the school. Ed Code 49450, et seq. 
ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATIONS 
LAS adheres to the requirement regarding administration of medication in school per the 
California Department of Education’s guidance and applicable law. Ed Code 49423. 
ZERO TOLERANCE FOR USE OF DRUGS AND TOBACCO 
LAS shall function as a drug, alcohol, marijuana, and tobacco free workplace. 
BACKGROUND CHECK 
LAS adheres to the requirement that each employee of the school submits to a criminal 
background check and furnishes a criminal record summary as required by Education Code 
Section 44237.  
MANDATED REPORTING 
LAS adheres to the requirement that all staff, including teachers and non-teachers, shall be 
mandated child abuse reporters, and will be required to complete training on “Child Abuse: 
Mandatory Reporting,” and will follow all applicable reporting laws. 
EARTHQUAKE AND NATURAL DISASTER PREPAREDNESS 
LAS adheres to the requirement that staff participate in school-wide training in response to 
natural disasters and other emergencies, including flood, civil unrest, fires, and earthquakes.  
BLOODBORNE PATHOGENS 
LAS adheres to the state and federal standards that address prevention of contact with 
bloodborne pathogens. 
STAFF TRAINING TO INCLUDE EMERGENCY AND FIRST AID RESPONSE 
LAS adheres to the requirement that staff are trained in emergency response, including 
appropriate “first responder” training or its equivalent. 
SAFETY TRAINING 
LAS shall comply with safety protocols such as conducting fire drills as required under Ed Code 
32001 and check that the sprinkler system, fire extinguishers and fire alarms are in operable 
conditions. LAS shall conduct fire drills per required by law. 
FACILITIES ADA COMPLIANCE AND SEISMIC SAFETY 
LAS leases its facility from SCUSD and receives certification through SCUSD that school 
facilities have received state Fire Marshal approval and have been evaluated by a qualified 
structural engineer who has determined that the facilities present no substantial seismic safety 
hazard. The school has facilities improvement plans to ensure that the school is accessible to all 
staff and students.  
TUBERCULOSIS  
LAS adheres to the requirement that all faculty and staff shall be tested/examined for 
tuberculosis prior to commencing employment. Ed. Code 49406 
 
COVID-19 Safety Protocols: Posted on the school website 

30



Page 18 of 22 

D. Other SARC Information 

The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state 
priorities for LCFF. 

Table 32: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) 
(School Year 2019–20) 
 
 

Grade 
Level 

 

Average Class  
Size 

Number  
of Classes*  

1-20 

Number  
of Classes*  

21-32 

Number  
of Classes*  

33+ 

K 21 1 3  

1 22  3  

2 22  3  

3 22  3  

4 22  3  

5 22  3  

6     

Other** 18 19 10 3 

 
*Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total 
students per class). 

** “Other” category is for multi-grade level classes. 

Table 33: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) 
(School Year 2020–21) 

Grade Level Average Class  
Size 

Number  
of Classes*  

1-20 

Number  
of Classes*  

21-32 

Number  
of Classes*  

33+ 

K 21 1 3  

1 22  3  

2 22  3  

3 22  3  

4 22  3  

5 22  3  

6     

Other** 18 20 24  

 
*Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total 
students per class). 

** “Other” category is for multi-grade level classes. 

 

 
 

31



Page 19 of 22 

 

Table 34: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) 
(School Year 2021–22) 
 

Grade 
Level 

Average  
Class  
Size 

Number of 
Classes*  

1-20 

Number of 
Classes*  

21-32 

Number of 
Classes*  

33+ 

K 21 1 3  

1 22  3  

2 22  3  

3 22  3  

4 22  3  

5 22  3  

6     

Other** 16 18 12  

*Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total 
students per class). 

** “Other” category is for multi-grade level classes. 

Table 35: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 
(School Year 2019–20) 

Subject Average 
Class 
Size 

Number of 
Classes*  

1-22 

Number of 
Classes*  

23-32 

Number of 
Classes*  

33+ 

English 21 5 2  

Mathematics 21 5 1  

Science 16 8   

Social Science 14 11   

 
*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total 
students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is reported by subject 
area rather than grade level. 

Table 36: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 
(School Year 2020–21) 

Subject Average 
Class 
Size 

Number of 
Classes*  

1-22 

Number of 
Classes*  

23-32 

Number of 
Classes*  

33+ 

English 21 5 2  

Mathematics 21 5 1  

Science 32  5 3 

Social Science 33  5 3 

 
*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total 
students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is reported by subject 
area rather than grade level. 

  

32



Page 20 of 22 

Table 37: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 
(School Year 2021–22) 

Subject Average 
Class 
Size 

Number of 
Classes*  

1-22 

Number of 
Classes*  

23-32 

Number of 
Classes*  

33+ 

English 17 10   

Mathematics 22 2 4  

Science 17 8   

Social Science 17 8   

 
*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total 
students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is reported by subject 
area rather than grade level. 

Table 38: Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2021–22) 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor* 614:1 

 

*One FTE equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff 
members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Table 39: Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2021–22) 

Title Number of FTE* 
Assigned to 

School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 1 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian) 0.80 

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist 1 

Social Worker  

Nurse  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist  

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)  

Other 3 

 

*One FTE equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff 
members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
  

33



Page 21 of 22 

Table 40: Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 
(Fiscal Year 2020–21) 

Level Total 
Expenditures 

Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site 10,174 3,266 6,909 58,890 

District N/A N/A N/A 83404 

Percent Difference – 
School Site and District 

N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 

State N/A N/A 6593.62 85368 

Percent Difference – 
School Site and State 

N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 

 

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 

Table 41: Types of Services Funded (Fiscal Year 2021–22) 
FY22 funding was directed to ensuring small group interventions are provided to students 
identified as academically at-risk based on state and MAP Growth data, prioritizing those who 
are socio-economically disadvantaged/low-income and ELs. Direct services to focus students 
will include: additional certificated staff supporting literacy and math, instructional aides in 
primary grades, as well as core-day, after-school and summer kick-off and summer school 
program certificated and classified staff. 

Table 42: Teacher and Administrative Salaries (Fiscal Year 2020–21) 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average 
For Districts 

In Same Category 

Beginning Teacher Salary 47335 51080.95 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary 52444 77514.16 

Highest Teacher Salary 102090 105763.6 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) 120748 133420.8 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) 127364 138593.8 

Average Principal Salary (High) 139247 153391.6 

Superintendent Salary 316011 298376.7 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 28.27 31.6 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 4.45 4.97 

 

For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & Benefits web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
  

34

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


Page 22 of 22 

Table 43: Advanced Placement (AP) Courses (School Year 2021–22) Percent of Students in 
AP Courses: Not Applicable to LAS

*Where there are student course enrollments of at least one student.

Table 44: Professional Development 

Measure 2020–21 2021–22 2022–23 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff 
Development and Continuous Improvement 

30 28 30 

35



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

Agenda Item# VIB 
Board Meeting Date:  January 27, 2023 
 
Subject: First Interim 2022 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated:  ) 
 Conference/Action 
 Action 

 
Committee: School Leadership 
 
Local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to file two reports during a fiscal year on the status of the 
LEA's financial health. Charter school are required to submit interim reports to the sponsoring district 
(SCUSD) and County Office of Education. 
 
First interim reports will be compared to adopted budgets (June 2022) and due December 15th. 
 
Second interim reports will be compared to first interim projections and is due March 17th. 
 
 
Recommendation:  
 
School Leadership requests that the Governing Board review and approve the First Interim. 
 
Documents Attached:  

1. First Interim 
 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

First Interim 

 
 
Members 

A
y

e 

N
a

y
 

A
b

st
a

in
 

A
b

se
n

t 

Nailah Kokayi     

Jose Luis Rodriguez     

Cristian García     

Brenda Luna     

Clark Graham     

Laura Lomelí     

Vacant     

Vacant     

Nina Sylvains     

Totals:     

Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 min 
Submitted By: EdTec/School Leadership 
Date:1.23.2023 

Pertinent Pages in  
(  ) Charter, pages   
(  )  MOU, pages    

36



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

 
 

Agenda Artículo#VIB 
Fecha de la Reunión: 27 de enero del 2023 

 

Tema: Primer Reporte Intermedio 2022 
 

Artículo de información 
Aprobación en la Agenda de Consentimiento 
Conferencia (solo para discutir) 
Conferencia/Primera lectura (Acción Anticipado:  ) 
Conferencia/Acción 
Acción 

 
Comité: Liderazgo Escolar  

  
Las agencias educativas locales (LEA) están obligadas a presentar dos informes durante un año fiscal sobre el 
estado de la salud financiera de la LEA. Las escuelas subvencionadas deben presentar informes provisionales 
al distrito patrocinador (SCUSD) y a la Oficina de Educación del Condado. 
 
Los primeros informes provisionales se compararán con los presupuestos adoptados (junio de 2022) y deben 
presentarse el 15 de diciembre. 
 
Los segundos informes provisionales se compararán con las primeras proyecciones provisionales y deben 
presentarse el 17 de marzo. 
 
 
Recomendación:  
 
El Liderazgo Escolar solicita que la Junta de Gobierno revise y apruebe el Primer Interino. 
 

37



LAS

Board Financial Update
BRIAN HOLMES & NICK MAWAD

JANUARY 27, 2023

38



2
2

1. 2021-22 Audit

A. 2021-22 Audit Recap

2. 2022-23

A. 1st Interim Report Overview

B. 1st Interim Budget

C. October vs. August Forecast

3. Looking Ahead

A. Next Steps

Contents

39



2021-22 Audit

40



4
4

Clean Audit; no weaknesses or findings

2021-22 Audit Recap

Revenue
•$8.8M total audited revenue

•Same as Unaudited Actuals

Expenses
•$7.7M total audited expenses

•Slight adjustment to A/P - $11,102

Net Income
•$1.13M

•Similar to Unaudited Actuals, with slight adjustment above 

Fund Balance •$11.6M

Conclusion
•No weaknesses identified in internal controls, compliance or other 

matters

•No findings
41



2022-23

42



6
6

The district and county’s first financial update

Includes financial data from July – October

Includes the October Forecast and Cash Flow

1st Interim Report Overview

What?

Due to the county by December 15th

Electronic file sent to district for review

Signature must be delivered to district
How?

When?

43



7
71st Interim Budget

2022-23 2022-23 Variance

Previous 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

LCFF Entitlement             7,178,148             7,178,311                         163 

Federal Revenue                955,665                949,818                    (5,847)

Other State Revenues             1,883,187             1,879,973                    (3,214)

Local Revenues                   48,300                   48,300                            -   

Fundraising and Grants                   35,000                   35,000                            -   

Total Revenue       10,100,300       10,091,402               (8,898)

Compensation and Benefits             6,313,594             6,109,085                 204,510 

Books and Supplies                479,445                479,445                            -   

Services and Other Operating             2,184,992             2,245,715                  (60,723)

Depreciation                508,172                508,172                            -   

Other Outflows                112,578                112,578                            -   

Total Expenses         9,598,781         9,454,995            143,786 

Operating Income            501,519            636,407            134,888 

Beginning Balance (Unaudited)           11,602,272           11,602,272                            -   

Operating Income                501,519                636,407                 134,888 

      12,103,791       12,238,679            134,888 

126.1% 129.4% 3.3%

Revenue

Expenses

Ending Fund Balance as % of  Expenses

Ending Fund Balance (incl.  Depreciation)

2022-23 Projected Operating Income of $636K

44



8
8October vs. August Forecast

CATEGORY
BOTTOM LINE 

IMPACT
NOTES

Previous Forecast 501,519 

Comp & Benefits 204,510 Staff member leaves, savings from vacant positions, benefits

LCFF 163 Increased funding for TK students, reduced ADA to 94% 

Other State Revenue (3,214) Slight reductions in SPED and Lottery revenue

Federal Revenue (5,847) Slight reductions in Title funding

Services & Other Ops (60,723) Updated CharterSafe contract; other small updates

Current Forecast 636,407 

45



Looking Ahead

46



10
10

Mid-year budget revision

2nd Interim Report due to district on 3/15

Next Steps

Forecast 
Updates

Governor’s January Proposal recently released

Going to track the state budget process

Will soon begin 2023-24 budget season

Draft in April/May; approval in June

2023-24 
LAS 

Budgeting

State 
Budget

Items to look out for in near future

47



Thank you!

ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS?  CONTACT US:

Brian Holmes:  Brian.Holmes@edtec.com

Nick Mawad: NMawad@edtec.com

510.663.3500 • askus@edtec.com  •  edtec.com
48

mailto:Brian.Holmes@edtec.com
mailto:Nmawad@edtec.com


Charter School Name:

(continued)

CDS #:

Charter Approving Entity:

County:

Charter #:

Fiscal Year:

This charter school uses the following basis of accounting:

X    Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Assets / Interest on Long-Term Debt / Long-Term Liabilities objects are 6900, 7438, 9400-9499, and 9660-9669)

   Modified Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Outlay / Debt Service objects are 6100-6170, 6200-6500, 7438, and 7439)

Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

A. REVENUES

1. LCFF Sources

State Aid - Current Year 8011 4,342,606.43     - 4,342,606.43    407,610.00       - 407,610.00       4,186,191.72    - 4,186,191.72     

Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 1,134,817.00     - 1,134,817.00    - - - 1,560,548.64    - 1,560,548.64     

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 1,280,643.57     - 1,280,643.57    - - - 1,431,570.43    - 1,431,570.43     

Other LCFF Transfers 8091, 8097 - - - - - - - - - 

Total, LCFFSources 6,758,067.00     - 6,758,067.00    407,610.00       - 407,610.00       7,178,310.80    - 7,178,310.80     

2. Federal Revenues

No Child Left Behind/Every Student Succeeds Act 8290 - 214,451.00       214,451.00       - 132,590.00     132,590.00       - 873,068.00     873,068.00        

Special Education - Federal 8181, 8182 - 76,625.00         76,625.00         - - - - 76,750.00       76,750.00 

Child Nutrition - Federal 8220 - - - - - - - - - 

Donated Food Commodities 8221 - - - 

Other Federal Revenues 8110, 8260-8299 - 663,412.00       663,412.00       - - - - - - 

Total, Federal Revenues - 954,488.00       954,488.00       - 132,590.00     132,590.00       - 949,818.00     949,818.00        

3. Other State Revenues

Special Education - State StateRevSE - 476,209.53       476,209.53       - 133,744.00     133,744.00       - 522,027.07     522,027.07        

All Other State Revenues StateRevAO 150,044.15        1,104,878.00    1,254,922.15    - 271,332.00     271,332.00       154,026.74       1,203,919.00 1,357,945.74     

         Total, Other State Revenues 150,044.15        1,581,087.53    1,731,131.68    - 405,076.00     405,076.00       154,026.74       1,725,946.07 1,879,972.81     

4. Other Local Revenues

All Other Local Revenues LocalRevAO 83,300.00          - 83,300.00         15,267.47         - 15,267.47         83,300.00         - 83,300.00 

Total, Local Revenues 83,300.00          - 83,300.00         15,267.47         - 15,267.47         83,300.00         - 83,300.00          

5. TOTAL REVENUES 6,991,411.15     2,535,575.53    9,526,986.68    422,877.47       537,666.00     960,543.47       7,415,637.54    2,675,764.07 10,091,401.61   

B. EXPENDITURES

1. Certificated Salaries

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,470,238.78     149,075.10       2,619,313.88    433,113.40       52,814.44       485,927.84       2,344,662.63    210,448.70     2,555,111.33     

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 - - - - - - - - - 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 130,884.87        392,779.17       523,664.04       46,717.04         79,522.99       126,240.03       130,884.87       388,408.11     519,292.98        

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 42,100.00          116,205.89       158,305.89       24,138.42         14,540.00       38,678.42         65,800.00         116,205.89     182,005.89        

Total, Certificated Salaries 2,643,223.65     658,060.16       3,301,283.81    503,968.86       146,877.43     650,846.29       2,541,347.50    715,062.70     3,256,410.20     

2. Non-certificated Salaries

Non-certificated Instructional Aides' Salaries 2100 96,431.32          159,700.80       256,132.13       25,938.49         37,539.41       63,477.90         133,156.80       127,668.06     260,824.86        

Non-certificated Support Salaries 2200 72,747.77          49,999.54         122,747.30       18,808.07         28,943.45       47,751.52         71,271.29         169,000.00     240,271.29        

Non-certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Sal. 2300 102,207.29        - 102,207.29       38,539.92         - 38,539.92         102,207.29       - 102,207.29        

Clerical and Office Salaries 2400 223,266.29        - 223,266.29       55,586.19         - 55,586.19         172,042.96       - 172,042.96        

Other Non-certificated Salaries 2900 165,848.09        155,641.24       321,489.33       71,578.63         60,958.78       132,537.41       229,594.70       253,766.53     483,361.22        

Total, Non-certificated Salaries 660,500.76        365,341.58       1,025,842.34    210,451.30       127,441.64     337,892.94       708,273.03       550,434.59     1,258,707.62     

3. Employee Benefits

CHARTER SCHOOL 

INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT - ALTERNATIVE FORM

First Interim Report - Detail

Language Academy of Sacramento

 Adopted Budget - July 1 Actuals thru 10/31 1st Interim Budget

34-67439-0106898

Sacramento City Unified School District

Sacramento

640

2022-23

49



STRS 3101-3102 504,855.72        125,689.49       630,545.21       97,590.75         22,398.34       119,989.09       485,397.37       136,576.98     621,974.35        

PERS 3201-3202 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

OASDI / Medicare / Alternative 3301-3302 88,855.05          37,490.50         126,345.55       23,515.75         12,888.94       36,404.69         91,032.43         50,368.16       141,400.59        

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 547,661.40        180,000.60       727,662.00       305,111.83       -                  305,111.83       555,108.23       174,681.43     729,789.67        

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 15,126.25          5,271.88           20,398.13         474.31              177.44            651.75              15,868.46         5,709.38         21,577.83          

Workers' Compensation Insurance 3601-3602 39,644.69          12,280.82         51,925.51         20,963.75         -                  20,963.75         38,995.45         15,185.97       54,181.41          

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 15,680.40          6,823.07           22,503.46         11,276.00         -                  11,276.00         20,198.94         4,844.03         25,042.97          

          Total, Employee Benefits  1,211,823.51     367,556.36       1,579,379.86    458,932.39       35,464.72       494,397.11       1,206,600.87    387,365.94     1,593,966.81     

 

4. Books and Supplies  

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 36,120.00          27,700.00         63,820.00         23,337.81         997.35            24,335.16         56,120.00         7,700.00         63,820.00          

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 108,500.00        -                    108,500.00       17,199.47         -                  17,199.47         61,750.00         46,750.00       108,500.00        

Materials and Supplies 4300 205,375.00        16,000.00         221,375.00       78,781.78         5,853.22         84,635.00         215,375.00       6,000.00         221,375.00        

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 85,750.00          -                    85,750.00         38,294.31         27,522.50       65,816.81         55,750.00         30,000.00       85,750.00          

Food 4700 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

          Total, Books and Supplies  435,745.00        43,700.00         479,445.00       157,613.37       34,373.07       191,986.44       388,995.00       90,450.00       479,445.00        

 

5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures  

Subagreements for Services 5100 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

Travel and Conferences 5200 55,000.00          -                    55,000.00         361.41              -                  361.41              55,000.00         -                  55,000.00          

Dues and Memberships 5300 15,000.00          -                    15,000.00         3,702.00           -                  3,702.00           15,000.00         -                  15,000.00          

Insurance 5400 51,000.00          -                    51,000.00         59,395.25         -                  59,395.25         106,049.00       -                  106,049.00        

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 208,000.00        12,000.00         220,000.00       49,077.00         -                  49,077.00         220,000.00       -                  220,000.00        

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncap. Improvements 5600 223,990.00        10,200.00         234,190.00       67,281.37         -                  67,281.37         234,190.00       -                  234,190.00        

Transfers of Direct Costs 5700-5799 -                    -                    -                     

Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expend. 5800 415,228.89        1,100,415.00    1,515,643.89    154,370.52       74,782.03       229,152.55       504,560.02       1,081,916.00 1,586,476.02     

Communications 5900 29,000.00          -                    29,000.00         12,096.78         -                  12,096.78         29,000.00         -                  29,000.00          

          Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures  997,218.89        1,122,615.00    2,119,833.89    346,284.33       74,782.03       421,066.36       1,163,799.02    1,081,916.00 2,245,715.02     

  

6. Capital Outlay  (Objects 6100-6170, 6200-6500 for modified accrual basis only)  

Land and Land Improvements 6100-6170 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major  

     Expansion of School Libraries 6300 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

Equipment 6400 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

Equipment Replacement 6500 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

Depreciation Expense (for accrual basis only) 6900 555,000.00        -                    555,000.00       -                    -                  -                    508,172.00       -                  508,172.00        

           Total, Capital Outlay  555,000.00        -                    555,000.00       -                    -                  -                    508,172.00       -                  508,172.00        

 

7. Other Outgo  

 Tuition to Other Schools 7110-7143 -                    -                    -                     

Transfers of Pass-through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 -                    -                    -                     

Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec. Ed. 7221-7223SE -                    -                    -                     

Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - All Other 7221-7223AO -                    -                    -                     

All Other Transfers 7281-7299 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

Debt Service:  

     Interest 7438 112,578.00        -                    112,578.00       -                    -                  -                    112,578.00       -                  112,578.00        

     Principal (for modified accrual basis only) 7439 -                      -                    -                    -                    -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     

          Total, Other Outgo  112,578.00        -                    112,578.00       -                    -                  -                    112,578.00       -                  112,578.00        

 

8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES  6,616,089.80     2,557,273.10    9,173,362.90    1,677,250.25    418,938.89     2,096,189.14    6,629,765.43    2,825,229.23 9,454,994.66     

 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND.  

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8)  375,321.35        (21,697.57)       353,623.78       (1,254,372.78)   118,727.11     (1,135,645.67)   785,872.11       (149,465.16)   636,406.95        

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES  

1. Other Sources 8930-8979 -                    -                    -                     

2. Less:  Other Uses 7630-7699 -                    -                    -                     

3. Contributions Between Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts

(must net to zero) 8980-8999 (21,697.57)         21,697.57         -                    -                    (149,465.16)     149,465.16     -                     

  

4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES  (21,697.57)         21,697.57         -                    -                    -                  -                    (149,465.16)     149,465.16     -                     

 

50



E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 353,623.78        0.00 353,623.78       (1,254,372.78)   118,727.11     (1,135,645.67)   636,406.95       (0.00) 636,406.95        

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1. Beginning Fund Balance

a. As of July 1 9791 10,999,296.79   - 10,999,296.79  11,602,272.27  - 11,602,272.27  11,602,272.27 - 11,602,272.27   

b. Adjustments to Beginning Balance 9793, 9795 - - - - - - - - - 

c. Adjusted Beginning Balance 10,999,296.79   - 10,999,296.79  11,602,272.27  - 11,602,272.27  11,602,272.27 - 11,602,272.27   

2. Ending Fund Balance, June 30 (E + F.1.c.) 11,352,920.57   0.00 11,352,920.57  10,347,899.49  118,727.11     10,466,626.60  12,238,679.22 (0.00) 12,238,679.22   

Components of Ending Fund Balance :

a. Nonspendable

Revolving Cash (equals object 9130) 9711 - - - 

Stores (equals object 9320) 9712 - - - 

Prepaid Expenditures (equals object 9330) 9713 - - - 

All Others 9719 - - - 

b Restricted 9740 - 118,727.11     118,727.11       - 

c. Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 - - - 

Other Commitments 9760 - - - 

d. Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 - - - 

e Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainities 9789 275,200.89        275,200.89       62,885.67         62,885.67         283,649.84       283,649.84        

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 11,077,719.68   0.00 11,077,719.69  10,285,013.82  - 10,285,013.82  11,955,029.38 11,955,029.38   

51



(continued)

This charter school uses the following basis of accounting:

X    Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Assets / Interest on Long-Term Debt / Long-Term Liabilities objects are 6900, 7438, 9400-9499, and 9660-9669)

   Modified Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Outlay / Debt Service objects are 6100-6170, 6200-6500, 7438, and 7439)

Totals for Totals for

              Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Total 2023-24 2024-25

A. REVENUES  

1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources  

State Aid - Current Year 8011 4,186,191.72 0.00 4,186,191.72 4,545,976.28 4,786,261.18

Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 1,560,548.64 0.00 1,560,548.64 1,662,001.18 1,728,814.62

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 1,431,570.43 0.00 1,431,570.43 1,446,799.91 1,446,799.91

    Other LCFF Transfers 8091, 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

          Total, LCFF Sources  7,178,310.80 0.00 7,178,310.80 7,654,777.37 7,961,875.70

 

2. Federal Revenues  

No Child Left Behind/Every Student Succeeds Act 8290 0.00 873,068.00 873,068.00 873,068.00 209,656.00

Special Education - Federal 8181, 8182 0.00 76,750.00 76,750.00 77,125.00 77,125.00

Child Nutrition - Federal 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Federal Revenues 8110, 8260-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

          Total, Federal Revenues  0.00 949,818.00 949,818.00 950,193.00 286,781.00

 

3. Other State Revenues  

Special Education - State StateRevSE 0.00 522,027.07 522,027.07 474,637.87 478,956.53

All Other State Revenues StateRevAO 154,026.74 1,203,919.00 1,357,945.74 1,360,223.84 1,360,800.30

         Total, Other State Revenues  154,026.74 1,725,946.07 1,879,972.81 1,834,861.70 1,839,756.83

 

4. Other Local Revenues  

All Other Local Revenues LocalRevAO 83,300.00 0.00 83,300.00 83,300.00 83,300.00

          Total, Local Revenues  83,300.00 0.00 83,300.00 83,300.00 83,300.00

CHARTER SCHOOL 

MULTI-YEAR PROJECTION - ALTERNATIVE FORM

First Interim Report - MYP

Charter School Name: Language Academy of Sacramento

CDS #: 34-67439-0106898

Charter Approving Entity: Sacramento City Unified School District

County: Sacramento

Charter #: 640

Fiscal Year: 2022-23

FY 2022-23

52



   

5. TOTAL REVENUES  7,415,637.54 2,675,764.07 10,091,401.61 10,523,132.08 10,171,713.54

 

B. EXPENDITURES  

1. Certificated Salaries  

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,344,662.63 210,448.70 2,555,111.33 2,728,785.06 2,810,648.61

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 130,884.87 388,408.11 519,292.98 575,839.14 593,114.32

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 65,800.00 116,205.89 182,005.89 187,466.07 193,090.05

          Total, Certificated Salaries  2,541,347.50 715,062.70 3,256,410.20 3,492,090.27 3,596,852.98

 

2. Non-certificated Salaries  

Non-certificated Instructional Aides' Salaries 2100 133,156.80 127,668.06 260,824.86 268,649.61 276,709.09

Non-certificated Support Salaries 2200 71,271.29 169,000.00 240,271.29 247,479.42 75,611.71

Non-certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Sal. 2300 102,207.29 0.00 102,207.29 105,273.51 108,431.71

Clerical and Office Salaries 2400 172,042.96 0.00 172,042.96 177,204.25 182,520.38

Other Non-certificated Salaries 2900 229,594.70 253,766.53 483,361.22 497,862.06 512,797.92

          Total, Non-certificated Salaries  708,273.03 550,434.59 1,258,707.62 1,296,468.85 1,156,070.82

Totals for Totals for

              Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Total 2023-24 2024-25

3. Employee Benefits  

STRS 3101-3102 485,397.37 136,576.98 621,974.35 666,989.24 686,998.92

PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

OASDI / Medicare / Alternative 3301-3302 91,032.43 50,368.16 141,400.59 147,096.59 139,248.91

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 555,108.23 174,681.43 729,789.67 770,045.12 800,846.92

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 15,868.46 5,709.38 21,577.83 21,639.28 17,311.97

Workers' Compensation Insurance 3601-3602 38,995.45 15,185.97 54,181.41 57,462.71 57,035.09

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 20,198.94 4,844.03 25,042.97 25,794.26 26,568.08

          Total, Employee Benefits  1,206,600.87 387,365.94 1,593,966.81 1,689,027.19 1,728,009.89

 

4. Books and Supplies  

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 56,120.00 7,700.00 63,820.00 63,974.00 64,131.08

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 61,750.00 46,750.00 108,500.00 108,800.00 76,606.00

Materials and Supplies 4300 215,375.00 6,000.00 221,375.00 204,153.00 173,698.56

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 55,750.00 30,000.00 85,750.00 85,750.00 85,750.00

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

          Total, Books and Supplies  388,995.00 90,450.00 479,445.00 462,677.00 400,185.64

 

5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures  

Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Travel and Conferences 5200 55,000.00 0.00 55,000.00 55,000.00 55,000.00

Dues and Memberships 5300 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,300.00 15,606.00

FY 2022-23

53



Insurance 5400 106,049.00 0.00 106,049.00 114,204.30 116,488.39

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 220,000.00 0.00 220,000.00 224,400.00 228,888.00

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncap. Improvements 5600 234,190.00 0.00 234,190.00 162,373.80 165,621.28

Transfers of Direct Costs 5700-5799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expend. 5800 504,560.02 1,081,916.00 1,586,476.02 1,603,649.89 1,619,387.34

Communications 5900 29,000.00 0.00 29,000.00 29,500.00 30,010.00

          Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures  1,163,799.02 1,081,916.00 2,245,715.02 2,204,427.99 2,231,001.00

  

6. Capital Outlay (Obj. 6100-6170, 6200-6500 for mod. accr. basis only)  

Land and Land Improvements 6100-6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major  

     Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Depreciation Expense (for accrual basis only) 6900 508,172.00 0.00 508,172.00 508,172.00 508,172.00

           Total, Capital Outlay  508,172.00 0.00 508,172.00 508,172.00 508,172.00

 

7. Other Outgo  

 Tuition to Other Schools 7110-7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfers of Pass-through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec. Ed. 7221-7223SE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - All Other 7221-7223AO 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Other Transfers 7280-7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Debt Service:  

     Interest 7438 112,578.00 0.00 112,578.00 114,829.56 117,126.15

     Principal (for modified accrual basis only) 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

          Total, Other Outgo  112,578.00 0.00 112,578.00 114,829.56 117,126.15

 

8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES  6,629,765.43 2,825,229.23 9,454,994.66 9,767,692.86 9,737,418.47

 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND.  

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8)  785,872.11 (149,465.16) 636,406.95 755,439.22 434,295.06

Totals for Totals for

              Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Total 2023-24 2024-25

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES  

1. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2. Less:  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3. Contributions Between Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts

(must net to zero) 8980-8999 (149,465.16) 149,465.16 0.00 0.00 0.00

  

4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES  (149,465.16) 149,465.16 0.00 0.00 0.00

 

FY 2022-23

54



E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4)  636,406.95 (0.00) 636,406.95 755,439.22 434,295.06

  

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES  

1. Beginning Fund Balance

a. As of July 1 9791 11,602,272.27 0.00 11,602,272.27 12,238,679.22 12,994,118.43

 b. Adjustments to Beginning Balance 9793, 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00

c. Adjusted Beginning Balance  11,602,272.27 0.00 11,602,272.27 12,238,679.22 12,994,118.43

2. Ending Fund Balance, June 30 (E + F.1.c.)  12,238,679.22 (0.00) 12,238,679.22 12,994,118.43 13,428,413.50

Components of Ending Fund Balance:  

a. Nonspendable

Revolving Cash (equals object 9130) 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores (equals object 9320) 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Expenditures (equals object 9330) 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

b. Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

c. Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

d Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 283,649.84 0.00 283,649.84 293,030.79 292,122.55

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 11,955,029.38 0.00 11,955,029.38 12,701,087.65 13,136,290.95

55



Language Academy
Income Statement

As of Oct FY2023
Yes

Aug Sep Oct Actual YTD

Approved 

Budget v1 

Previous 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Previous 

Forecast vs. 

Current 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast 

Remaining

% Current 

Forecast 

Spent

SUMMARY

Revenue

LCFF Entitlement -                    407,610        -                    407,610        6,758,067       7,178,148       7,178,311       163                 6,770,701       6%

Federal Revenue -                    -                    132,590        132,590        954,488          955,665          949,818          (5,847)             817,228          14%

Other State Revenues 25,256          139,289        218,127        405,076        1,731,132       1,883,187       1,879,973       (3,214)             1,474,897       22%

Local Revenues 5,106            6,494            1,480            13,757          48,300            48,300            48,300            -                      34,543            28%

Fundraising and Grants 1,447            64                 -                    1,511            35,000            35,000            35,000            -                      33,489            4%

Total Revenue 31,809          553,457        352,197        960,543        9,526,987       10,100,300     10,091,402     (8,898)             9,130,858       10%

Expenses

Compensation and Benefits 172,457        514,052        587,856        1,483,136     5,906,506       6,313,594       6,109,085       204,510          4,625,948       24%

Books and Supplies 73,625          43,917          29,359          191,986        479,445          479,445          479,445          -                      287,459          40%

Services and Other Operating Expenditures 74,637          93,717          141,838        404,818        2,119,834       2,184,992       2,245,715       (60,723)           1,840,897       18%

Depreciation -                    -                    -                    -                    555,000          508,172          508,172          -                      508,172          0%

Other Outflows 8,304            1,652            (3,592)           12,656          112,578          112,578          112,578          -                      99,922            11%

Total Expenses 329,023        653,339        755,461        2,092,597     9,173,363       9,598,781       9,454,995       143,786          7,362,397       22%

Operating Income (297,214)       (99,882)         (403,263)       (1,132,054)    353,624          501,519          636,407          134,888          1,768,461       

Fund Balance

Beginning Balance (Unaudited) 10,999,297     11,602,272     11,602,272     

Audit Adjustment -                      -                      11,102            

Operating Income 353,624          501,519          636,407          

Ending Fund Balance 11,352,921     12,103,791     12,249,781     

Fund Balance as a % of Expenses 124% 126% 130%

Actual YTD Budget

56



Language Academy
Income Statement

As of Oct FY2023
Yes

Aug Sep Oct Actual YTD

Approved 

Budget v1 

Previous 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Previous 

Forecast vs. 

Current 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast 

Remaining

% Current 

Forecast 

Spent

Actual YTD Budget

KEY ASSUMPTIONS

Enrollment Summary

K-3 286                 286                 286                 -                  

4-6 199                 199                 199                 -                  

7-8 132                 132                 132                 -                  

Total Enrolled 617                 617                 617                 -                  

ADA %

K-3 95.0% 95.0% 94.0% -1.0%

4-6 95.0% 95.0% 94.0% -1.0%

7-8 95.0% 95.0% 94.0% -1.0%

Average ADA % 95.0% 95.0% 94.0% -1.0%

ADA

K-3 271.70            271.70            268.84            (2.86)               

4-6 189.05            189.05            187.06            (1.99)               

7-8 125.40            125.40            124.08            (1.32)               

Total ADA 586.15            586.15            579.98            (6.17)               

57



Language Academy
Income Statement

As of Oct FY2023
Yes

Aug Sep Oct Actual YTD

Approved 

Budget v1 

Previous 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Previous 

Forecast vs. 

Current 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast 

Remaining

% Current 

Forecast 

Spent

Actual YTD Budget

REVENUE

LCFF Entitlement

8011 Charter Schools General Purpose Entitlement - State Aid - 407,610 - 407,610        4,342,606       4,455,134       4,186,192       (268,942)         3,778,582       10%

8012 Education Protection Account Entitlement - - - - 1,134,817       1,276,214       1,560,549       284,335 1,560,549       0%

8096 Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes - - - - 1,280,644       1,446,800       1,431,570       (15,229) 1,431,570       0%

SUBTOTAL - LCFF Entitlement - 407,610 - 407,610        6,758,067       7,178,148       7,178,311       163 6,770,701       6%

Federal Revenue

8181 Special Education - Entitlement - - - - 76,625 76,750 76,750 - 76,750 0%

8290 No Child Left Behind - - 132,590        132,590        - - 663,412 663,412 530,822 20%

8291 Title I - - - - 176,501 177,021 171,428 (5,593) 171,428 0%

8292 Title II - - - - 24,917 25,181 24,768 (413) 24,768 0%

8294 Title IV - - - - 13,033 13,301 13,460 159 13,460 0%

8299 All Other Federal Revenue - - - - 663,412 663,412 - (663,412) - 

SUBTOTAL - Federal Revenue - - 132,590        132,590        954,488 955,665 949,818 (5,847) 817,228 14%

Other State Revenue

8381 Special Education - Entitlement (State 22,404          40,328          40,622          125,758        476,210 476,210 474,523 (1,686) 348,765 27%

8382 Special Education Reimbursement (State 2,852 2,567 2,567 7,986 - 47,504 47,504 - 39,518 17%

8550 Mandated Cost Reimbursements - - - - 10,460 10,460 10,460 - 10,460 0%

8560 State Lottery Revenue - - - - 139,584 145,094 143,567 (1,527) 143,567 0%

8590 All Other State Revenue - - - - 36,495 36,495 36,495 - 36,495 0%

8593 Expanded Learning Opportunities Program - 96,394 174,938        271,332        864,901 963,942 963,942 - 692,610 28%

8596 Other State Revenue 6 - - - - 203,482 203,482 203,482 - 203,482 0%

SUBTOTAL - Other State Revenue 25,256          139,289        218,127        405,076        1,731,132       1,883,187       1,879,973       (3,214) 1,474,897       22%

Local Revenue

8636 Uniforms 4,611 579 584 5,935 12,000 12,000 12,000 - 6,065 49%

8638 Merchandise Sales - - - - 1,300 1,300 1,300 - 1,300 0%

8660 Interest 495 591 896 2,498 9,000 9,000 9,000 - 6,502 28%

8670 Fees and Contracts - - - - 6,000 6,000 6,000 - 6,000 0%

8693 Field Trips - - - - 15,000 15,000 15,000 - 15,000 0%

8699 All Other Local Revenue - 5,324 - 5,324 5,000 5,000 5,000 - (324) 106%

SUBTOTAL - Local Revenue 5,106 6,494 1,480 13,757          48,300 48,300 48,300 - 34,543 28%

Fundraising and Grants

8801 Donations - Parents 1,447 - - 1,447 5,000 5,000 5,000 - 3,553 29%

8802 Donations - Private - - - - 5,000 5,000 5,000 - 5,000 0%

8803 Fundraising - 64 - 64 25,000 25,000 25,000 - 24,936 0%

SUBTOTAL - Fundraising and Grants 1,447 64 - 1,511 35,000 35,000 35,000 - 33,489 4%

TOTAL REVENUE 31,809          553,457        352,197        960,543        9,526,987       10,100,300     10,091,402     (8,898) 9,130,858       10%

58



Language Academy
Income Statement

As of Oct FY2023
Yes

Aug Sep Oct Actual YTD

Approved 

Budget v1 

Previous 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Previous 

Forecast vs. 

Current 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast 

Remaining

% Current 

Forecast 

Spent

Actual YTD Budget

EXPENSES

Compensation & Benefits

Certificated Salaries

1100 Teachers Salaries 10,242          240,893        224,965        476,099        2,156,606       2,488,700       2,365,231       123,469 1,889,132       20%

1101 Teacher - Stipends - - 3,250 3,250 56,788 87,788 77,788 10,000 74,538 4%

1102 Title I/SES Tutoring - - - - 22,500 22,500 22,500 - 22,500 0%

1103 Teacher - Substitute Pay - 880 5,699 6,579 89,593 89,593 89,593 - 83,014 7%

1111 Teacher - Elective - - - - 293,827 - - - -

1300 Certificated Supervisor & Administrator Salaries 12,294          12,294          12,294          49,176          145,428 145,428 145,428 - 96,252 34%

1311 SPED Certificated 2,847 31,574          34,689          77,064          378,236 408,574 373,865 34,709 296,801 21%

1920 Other Cert - Summer - - - 14,540          42,100 65,800 65,800 - 51,260 22%

1940 Other Certificated Supervisor & Admin Salaries - 11,721 12,418          24,138          116,206 116,206 116,206 - 92,067 21%

SUBTOTAL - Certificated Salaries 25,383          297,361        293,314        650,846        3,301,284       3,424,588       3,256,410       168,178 2,605,564       20%

Classified Salaries

2100 Classified Instructional Aide Salaries 2,780 8,951 14,045          25,938          119,671 123,150 123,150 - 97,212 21%

2103 SPED Classified 7,546 11,479          18,514          37,539          136,461 137,675 137,675 - 100,135 27%

2200 Classified Support (Intervention Tutoring) 2,574 6,441 38,736          47,752          72,748 40,127 240,271 (200,144)         192,520 20%

2202 Classified Support Salaries - Custom 2 - - - - 50,000 200,144 - 200,144 - 

2300 Classified Supervisor & Administrator Salaries 10,221          9,735 9,292 38,540          102,207 102,207 102,207 - 63,667 38%

2400 Classified Clerical & Office Salaries 13,682          13,091          19,976          55,586          223,266 223,403 172,043 51,360 116,457 32%

2601 Classified Stipends - - - 3,175 - - 10,000 (10,000) 6,825 32%

2900 Classified Other Salaries 4,717 3,967 5,951 18,602          - - 51,360 (51,360) 32,758 36%

2905 Other Classified - After School 11,319          14,422          22,563          51,724          155,641 180,327 180,327 - 128,603 29%

2908 Enrichment - ELO-P - - - - - 73,440 73,440 - 73,440 0%

2925 Other Classified - Childcare - - - - 2,400 1,280 1,280 - 1,280              0%

2930 Other Classified - Maintenance/Grounds 13,114          14,478          21,908          59,037          163,448 166,955 166,955 - 107,918 35%

SUBTOTAL - Classified Salaries 65,954          82,563          150,986        337,893        1,025,842       1,248,708       1,258,708       (10,000) 920,815 27%

Employee Benefits

3100 STRS 4,836 56,321          55,441          119,989        630,545 654,096 621,974 32,122 501,985 19%

3300 OASDI-Medicare-Alternative 5,510 10,973          16,521          36,405          126,346 143,074 141,401 1,674 104,996 26%

3400 Health & Welfare Benefits 65,131          63,907          64,156          305,112        727,662 740,428 729,790 10,638 424,678 42%

3500 Unemployment Insurance 56 254 290 652 20,398 21,578 21,578 - 20,926 3%

3600 Workers Comp Insurance 2,995 - 2,995 20,964          51,926 56,080 54,181 1,898 33,218 39%

3900 Other Employee Benefits - - 11,171 11,276          22,503 25,043 25,043 - 13,767 45%

SUBTOTAL - Employee Benefits 81,120          134,129        143,557        494,397        1,579,380       1,640,299       1,593,967       46,332 1,099,570       31%

Books & Supplies

4100 Approved Textbooks & Core Curricula Materials 2,359 456 751 23,338          56,120 56,120 56,120 - 32,782 42%

4101 SPED Textbooks - 997 - 997 7,700 7,700 7,700 - 6,703              13%

4200 Books & Other Reference Materials 1,320 2,039 2,719 12,972          93,500 93,500 93,500 - 80,528 14%

4201 Library Resources - - 47 4,227 15,000 15,000 15,000 - 10,773 28%

4315 Custodial Supplies 2,112 2,909 5,832 11,383          30,000 30,000 30,000 - 18,617 38%

4320 Educational Software 9,468 20,919          3,506 35,979          70,000 70,000 70,000 - 34,021 51%

4325 Instructional Materials & Supplies 6,713 7,171 1,743 16,928          49,475 49,475 49,475 - 32,547 34%

4330 Office Supplies 3,488 1,827 2,313 10,949          32,500 32,500 32,500 - 21,551 34%

59



Language Academy
Income Statement

As of Oct FY2023
Yes

Aug Sep Oct Actual YTD

Approved 

Budget v1 

Previous 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Previous 

Forecast vs. 

Current 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast 

Remaining

% Current 

Forecast 

Spent

Actual YTD Budget

4335 PE Supplies 2,241 1,587 127 3,955 9,000 9,000 9,000 - 5,045 44%

4340 Professional Development Supplies 213 - - 213 3,000 3,000 3,000 - 2,787 7%

4352 Garden - - - - 2,000 2,000 2,000 - 2,000 0%

4354 ASES Materials 2,180 462 26 2,668 6,000 6,000 6,000 - 3,333 44%

4355 Summer Preschool - - - - 9,400 9,400 9,400 - 9,400 0%

4356 SPED Consumables 731 1,388 443 2,562 10,000 10,000 10,000 - 7,438 26%

4410 Classroom Furniture, Equipment & Supplies 15,278          6,295 214 22,700          15,750 15,750 15,750 - (6,950) 144%

4420 Computers: individual items less than $5k 27,523          (1,071) - 26,451          50,000 50,000 50,000 - 23,549 53%

4423 Classroom Noncapitalized items 1 - - - - 10,000 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 0%

4430 Non Classroom Related Furniture, Equipment & Supplies - (1,061) 11,639          16,666          10,000 10,000 10,000 - (6,666) 167%

SUBTOTAL - Books and Supplies 73,625          43,917          29,359          191,986        479,445 479,445 479,445 - 287,459 40%

Services & Other Operating Expenses

5210 Conference Fees - - - 50 25,000 25,000 25,000 - 24,950 0%

5215 Travel - Mileage, Parking, Tolls 163 73 24 311 5,000 5,000 5,000 - 4,689              6%

5220 Travel and Lodging - - - - 25,000 25,000 25,000 - 25,000 0%

5305 Dues & Membership - Professional - - 3,702 3,702 15,000 15,000 15,000 - 11,298 25%

5450 Insurance - Other 9,330 - 9,330 59,395          51,000 51,000 106,049 (55,049) 46,654 56%

5515 Janitorial, Gardening Services & Supplies 5,000 - - 9,846 120,000 120,000 120,000 - 110,154 8%

5535 Utilities - All Utilities - - 39,231          39,231          100,000 100,000 100,000 - 60,769 39%

5605 Equipment Leases 2,624 3,099 - 8,286 34,640 34,640 34,640 - 26,354 24%

5610 Rent 23,513          15,675          - 39,189          102,000 102,000 102,000 - 62,811 38%

5615 Repairs and Maintenance - Building 16,400          435 485 19,426          75,000 75,000 75,000 - 55,574 26%

5616 Repairs and Maintenance - Computers - - - - 20,000 20,000 20,000 - 20,000 0%

5617 Repairs and Maintenance - Other Equipment - 381 - 381 2,550 2,550 2,550 - 2,169              15%

5803 Accounting Fees - - - - 26,000 26,000 26,000 - 26,000 0%

5804 Parent Trainings - - - - 1,020 1,020 1,020 - 1,020 0%

5805 Administrative Fees - 1,500 - 9,163 10,000 10,000 10,000 - 838 92%

5806 Assemblies - 500               - 500 3,000 3,000 3,000 - 2,500 17%

5809 Banking Fees - - - - 500 500 500 - 500 0%

5812 Business Services - 13,400 7,650 21,050          84,420 84,420 89,900 (5,480) 68,850 23%

5813 Board Development - - - - 5,600 5,600 5,600 - 5,600 0%

5818 SPED Legal Fees - - - - 5,600 5,600 5,600 - 5,600 0%

5824 District Oversight Fees - - - - 77,480 82,296 82,551 (255) 82,551 0%

5827 ELO-P Expenses - - 18,156          18,156          864,901 890,502 890,502 - 872,346 2%

5830 Field Trips Expenses - 4,727 3,123 7,850 56,000 56,000 56,000 - 48,150 14%

5833 Fines and Penalties 17 - - 17 - - - - (17) 

5836 Fingerprinting - 505 528 1,033 3,000 3,000 3,000 - 1,967 34%

5839 Fundraising Expenses 1,445 5,265 25,164          39,466          36,700 36,700 36,700 - (2,766) 108%

5845 Legal Fees - - 120 120 10,200 10,200 10,200 - 10,081 1%

5851 Marketing and Student Recruiting - - - - 1,224 1,224 1,224 - 1,224 0%

5857 Payroll Fees 1,142 1,299 1,624 5,572 15,300 15,300 15,300 - 9,728 36%

5860 Printing and Reproduction - 3,287 3,934 7,351 25,000 35,000 35,000 - 27,649 21%

5861 Prior Yr Exp (not accrued - 252 790 1,137 - - - - (1,137) 

5863 Professional Development 1,484 250 343 3,162 50,000 55,000 55,000 - 51,839 6%

5869 Special Education Contract Instructors 1,724 33,170          18,256          55,004          163,914 163,914 163,914 - 108,910 34%

5872 Special Education Encroachment - - - - - 19,741 19,680 60 19,680            0%

5874 Sports - - - - 16,000 16,000 16,000 - 16,000 0%

5875 Staff Recruiting - - - - 1,300 1,300 1,300 - 1,300              0%

60



Language Academy
Income Statement

As of Oct FY2023
Yes

Aug Sep Oct Actual YTD

Approved 

Budget v1 

Previous 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast

Previous 

Forecast vs. 

Current 

Forecast

Current 

Forecast 

Remaining

% Current 

Forecast 

Spent

Actual YTD Budget

5878 Student Assessment - 1,340 - 12,265          12,485 12,485 12,485 - 220 98%

5881 Student Information System - - - 9,715 11,000 11,000 11,000 - 1,286 88%

5887 Technology Services 7,770 8,490 3,536 21,026          35,000 35,000 35,000 - 13,974 60%

5899 Miscellaneous Operating Expenses 320 - - 320 - - - - (320) 

5910 Communications - Internet / Website Fees 1,444 40 56 3,588 7,000 7,000 7,000 - 3,412 51%

5915 Postage and Delivery 270 30 227 958 4,000 4,000 4,000 - 3,042 24%

5920 Communications - Telephone & Fax 1,991 - 5,560 7,551 18,000 18,000 18,000 - 10,449 42%

SUBTOTAL - Services & Other Operating Exp. 74,637          93,717          141,838        404,818        2,119,834       2,184,992       2,245,715       (60,723) 1,840,897       18%

Capital Outlay & Depreciation

6900 Depreciation - - - - 555,000 508,172 508,172 - 508,172 0%

SUBTOTAL - Capital Outlay & Depreciation - - - - 555,000 508,172 508,172 - 508,172 0%

Other Outflows

7438 Long term debt - Interest - - - - 112,578 112,578 112,578 - 112,578 0%

7999 Uncategorized Expense 12,656          - - 12,656          - - - - (12,656) 

SUBTOTAL - Other Outflows 8,304 1,652 (3,592) 12,656          112,578 112,578 112,578 - 99,922 11%

TOTAL EXPENSES 329,023        653,339        755,461        2,092,597     9,173,363       9,598,781       9,454,995       143,786 7,362,397       22%

61



Language Academy
Monthly Cash Forecast

As of Oct FY2023

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Forecast Remaining

Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Balance

Beginning Cash 6,469,836     6,199,351     5,487,040     7,103,765     6,436,640     6,677,575     6,599,361     6,907,624     7,096,771     7,062,824     7,576,309     7,782,326     

REVENUE

LCFF Entitlement -                -                407,610        -                557,005        557,005        940,664        557,005        579,023        1,074,507     568,907        568,907        7,178,311     1,367,679       

Federal Revenue -                -                -                132,590        85,677          -                -                218,267        -                -                218,267        76,750          949,818        218,267          

Other State Revenue 22,404          25,256          139,289        218,127        275,808        135,759        125,298        164,022        137,177        188,047        175,901        137,177        1,879,973     135,707          

Other Local Revenue 676               5,106            6,494            1,480            4,318            4,318            4,318            4,318            4,318            4,318            4,318            4,318            48,300          -                  

Fundraising & Grants -                1,447            64                 -                4,186            4,186            4,186            4,186            4,186            4,186            4,186            4,186            35,000          -                  

TOTAL REVENUE 23,080          31,809          553,457        352,197        926,994        701,267        1,074,467     947,798        724,704        1,271,058     971,578        791,338        10,091,402   1,721,654       

EXPENSES

Certificated Salaries 34,789          25,383          297,361        293,314        306,576        316,191        328,257        328,257        328,257        328,257        334,884        334,884        3,256,410     -                  

Classified Salaries 38,391          65,954          82,563          150,986        113,852        113,852        113,852        113,852        113,852        113,852        113,852        123,852        1,258,708     -                  

Employee Benefits 135,591        81,120          134,129        143,557        136,954        133,326        144,436        136,884        136,884        135,805        137,167        138,114        1,593,967     -                  

Books & Supplies 45,085          73,625          43,917          29,359          35,932          35,932          35,932          35,932          35,932          35,932          35,932          35,932          479,445        -                  

Services & Other Operating Expenses 94,627          74,637          93,717          141,838        219,793        219,793        219,793        219,793        219,793        219,793        219,793        219,793        2,245,715     82,551            

Capital Outlay & Depreciation -                -                -                -                211,738        42,348          42,348          42,348          42,348          42,348          42,348          42,348          508,172        -                  

Other Outflows 6,292            8,304            1,652            (3,592)           (12,656)         -                -                -                -                -                -                -                112,578        112,578          

TOTAL EXPENSES 354,774        329,023        653,339        755,461        1,012,190     861,442        884,618        877,066        877,066        875,987        883,976        894,923        9,454,995     195,129          

Operating Cash Inflow (Outflow) (331,694)       (297,214)       (99,882)         (403,263)       (85,195)         (160,175)       189,848        70,732          (152,362)       395,071        87,602          (103,586)       636,407        1,526,525       

Revenues - Prior Year Accruals -                (274,914)       1,734,610     6,552            336,674        33,151          69,604          69,604          69,604          69,604          69,604          164,908        

Other Assets 61,952          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

Fixed Assets -                -                -                -                211,738        42,348          42,348          42,348          42,348          42,348          42,348          42,348          

Expenses - Prior Year Accruals (81,100)         192,668        (45,775)         -                (224,348)       6,463            6,463            6,463            6,463            6,463            6,463            (237,643)       

Accounts Payable - Current Year 215,250        (227,138)       (3,345)           8,015            2,066            -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

Summerholdback for Teachers (134,894)       (127,583)       30,816          29,099          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

Other Liabilites -                21,870          303               (307,528)       -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

Ending Cash 6,199,351     5,487,040     7,103,765     6,436,640     6,677,575     6,599,361     6,907,624     7,096,771     7,062,824     7,576,309     7,782,326     7,648,353     

2022-23

Actuals & Forecast

62



Language Academy
Balance Sheet

As of Oct FY2023

Jun FY2022 Oct FY2023

ASSETS

Cash Balance 6,469,836         6,436,640         

Accounts Receivable 2,683,000         1,216,752         

Prepaids 61,422 (530) 

Fixed Assets, Net 7,091,078         7,091,078         

TOTAL ASSETS 16,305,336       14,743,940       

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Accounts Payable 357,649 418,682 

Deferred Revenue 442,357 157,002 

Current Loans and Other Payables 259,004 53,984 

Long-Term Loans and Other Liabilities 3,632,951         3,632,951         

Beginning Net Assets 10,479,413       11,613,375       

Net Income (Loss) to Date 1,133,962         (1,132,054)        

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 16,305,336       14,743,940       

63



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

Agenda Item# IVC 

 

Board Meeting Date:  January 27, 2023 

 

Subject: Fiscal Audit 2021-2022 

 

 Information Item Only 

 Approval on Consent Agenda 

 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated:  ) 

 Conference 

 Conference/Action 

 Action 

 

Committee: EdTec/School Leadership 

 

Information: 

 

Charter School’s are required to submit an annual fiscal audit by December 15th to Sacramento City 

Unified School District, Sacramento County Office of Education, California Department of Education, 

and State Treasures office. 

 

The audit includes examining whether financial statements are free of misstatement; review of 

supporting documents; assessing accounting principles, testing of internal controls, accuracy of state 

compliance reports and payroll.  

 

In addition, due to the high number of federal funds received by the Language Academy of 

Sacramento, an additional single audit was necessary to review federal funds. Audit report is 

submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) on behalf of the US Office of Management and 

Budget (OMB).  

 

BakerTilley, US, LLP, have completed their preliminary financial audit of the Language Academy of 

Sacramento.  Per the final audit report no findings were noted for 2021-22 fiscal year. 

 

 

Documents available for review: 

1. Fiscal Audit Report  

 

 

 

 

 

Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 min. 

Submitted By: School Leadership 

Date: 1.23.2023 

Pertinent Pages in  

(  ) Charter, pages   

(  )  MOU, pages    

64



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

 

Agenda Articulo # IVC 

Fecha de la Reunión: 27 de enero del 2023 

 

Tema: Auditoria Fiscal 2021-2022 

  

 Artículo de información 

 Aprobación en la Agenda de Consentimiento 

 Conferencia (solo para discutir) 

 Conferencia/Primera lectura (Acción Anticipada: ________) 

 Conferencia/Acción 

 Acción 

 

Comitée: EdTec/Liderazgo escolar 

 

Información: 

Las escuelas subvencionadas deben presentar una auditoría fiscal anual antes del 15 de diciembre al 

Distrito Escolar Unificado de la Ciudad de Sacramento, a la Oficina de Educación del Condado de 

Sacramento, al Departamento de Educación de California y a la oficina del Tesoro del Estado. 

 

La auditoría incluye el examen de que los estados financieros están libres de errores; la revisión de los 

documentos justificativos; la evaluación de los principios contables, la comprobación de los controles 

internos, la exactitud de los informes de cumplimiento del estado y las nóminas.  

 

Además, debido al elevado número de fondos federales recibidos por la Academia de Idiomas de 

Sacramento, fue necesaria una auditoría única adicional para revisar los fondos federales. El informe 

de auditoría se presenta a la Cámara de Compensación de Auditorías Federales (FAC) en nombre de la 

Oficina de Gestión y Presupuesto de EE.UU. (OMB).  

 

BakerTilley, US, LLP, ha completado su auditoría financiera preliminar de la Academia de Idiomas de 

Sacramento.  Según el informe final de auditoría, no se observaron hallazgos para el ejercicio fiscal 

2021-22. 

 

Documentos disponibles para revisión: 

1. Auditoría Fiscal 

 

 

Tiempo estimado para la presentación: 10 min. 

Entregado por: School Leadership 

Fecha: 1.23.2023 

Pertinent Pages in  

(  ) Charter, pages   

(  )  MOU, pages    

65



The Language Academy of Sacramento 
Charter School #0640 

Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

66



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report  ....................................................................................................................  1 
 
Financial Statements 
 
 Statement of Financial Position  ............................................................................................................  4 
 
 Statement of Activities  .........................................................................................................................  5 
  
 Statement of Functional Expenses ........................................................................................................  6 
 
 Statement of Cash Flows  ......................................................................................................................  7 
 
 Notes to Financial Statements ..............................................................................................................  8 
 
Supplementary Information  

Organization  .......................................................................................................................................  16 
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance…………………………………………………………………………………………….17 
Schedule of Instructional Time  ...........................................................................................................  18 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  ...................................................................................... 19 
Reconciliation of Charter School Unaudited Actuals Financial  

Report – Alternative Form With Audited Financial Statements  ..................................................  20 
 
Other Independent Auditors’ Reports 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and  
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards  ...............................................  21 

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Required by The Uniform Guidance .............................................................................................  23 

Report on State Compliance  ...............................................................................................................  26 
 
Findings and Recommendations  

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs .......................................................................................  28 
Summary Schedule of Prior Findings  ..................................................................................................  30 

 
 
 

67



 

 

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are 
separate and independent legal entities. © 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP 

1 

 
 

Independent Auditors' Report 

 
 
Board of Directors 
The Language Academy of Sacramento 
Sacramento, California 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of Language Academy of Sacramento (the Organization), which 
comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Organization as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
(Government Auditing Standards) issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our 
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.  

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue 
as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.  

68



 
 
 

2 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made 
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:  

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.  

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time.  

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the financial statements as a whole. 

69



 
 
 

3 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
Organization, Schedule of Average Daily Attendance, Schedule of Instructional Time, and Reconciliation of 
Charter School Unaudited Actuals Financial Report Alternative Form with Audited Financial Statements is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a 
whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 15, 2022, 
on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Organization's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
 
San Diego, California 
December 15, 2022 
 
 

70



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 4 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

 
 

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash 6,469,836$    
Accounts receivable 2,683,000       
Prepaid expenses 61,422            

Total current assets 9,214,258       
Fixed assets, net 7,091,077       

TOTAL ASSETS 16,305,335$  

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 15,342$          
Accrued expenses 601,311          
Deferred revenue 442,357          
Loan payable, current portion 132,933          

Total current liabilities 1,191,943       
Long-term liabilities:

Loan payable, net of current portion 3,500,018       

Total long-term liabilities 3,500,018       
Total liabilities 4,691,961       

Net assets:
Net assets without donor restrictions - Undesignated 11,613,374    

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 16,305,335$  

71



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 5 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

 
 

Net Assets 
without donor

restrictions
REVENUES

Revenue limit sources:
State aid 2,759,036$                             
Education protection account 2,012,092                               
In-lieu of property taxes 1,407,801                               

Federal revenues 1,074,577                               
State revenues 1,539,955                               
Local revenues:

Donations 19,434                                     
Miscellaneous 32,767                                     

TOTAL REVENUES 8,845,662                            

EXPENSES
Program services:

Education 5,958,434                               
Support services:

Management and general 1,753,269                               
Total expenses 7,711,703                               

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,133,959                               

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING 10,479,415                             

NET ASSETS, ENDING 11,613,374$                           

72



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 

 
 

Page 6 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

 
 

Program Support
Services Services

Management
Education and General Total

Certificated salaries 3,034,276$           28,553$               3,062,829$           
Classified salaries 638,737                404,352               1,043,089             
Employee benefits 1,166,002             105,613               1,271,615             
Books and supplies 573,056                47,021                 620,077                 
Travel and conferences 17,441                  -                            17,441                   
Dues and memberships 8,173                     -                            8,173                     
Insurance -                             91,074                 91,074                   
Operation and housekeeping services -                             180,187               180,187                 
Rental, leases, repairs, and

non-capitalized improvements 118,649                19,157                 137,806                 
Professional/consulting services and

operating expenditures 383,199                227,758               610,957                 
Communications 18,901                  4,725                    23,626                   
Depreciation -                             508,869               508,869                 
Interest -                             74,616                 74,616                   
Direct support/indirect cost charges -                             61,344                 61,344                   

Total expenses 5,958,434$           1,753,269$          7,711,703$           

73



THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Page 7 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 1,133,959$             
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

 provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 508,869 

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable (331,015)                 
Prepaid expenses (33,228) 

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable 10,101 
Accrued expenses (153,311)                 
Deferred revenue 79,831 

Net cash flows provided by operating activities 1,215,206               

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of fixed assets (2,450) 

Net cash flows used in investing activities (2,450) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on loan payable (130,314)                 

Net cash flows used in financing activities (130,314)                 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 1,082,442               

CASH, BEGINNING 5,387,394               

CASH, ENDING 6,469,836$             

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES:
Cash paid for interest 74,616$                  

74



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 8 

1. ORGANIZATION AND MISSION 
 
The Language Academy of Sacramento (“Organization”) is a non-profit public benefit corporation. The 
Organization was petitioned and approved through the Sacramento City Unified School District for a five-
year period ending on June 30, 2024. The Organization was incorporated in the State of California on 
December 17, 2003. 
 
The Organization commenced operations during the 2004-2005 fiscal year and currently serves 
approximately 634 students in Transitional kindergarten through Grade 8. The Organization is a two-way 
Spanish immersion charter school offering educational programs which develop high academic 
achievement, bilingualism and bi-literacy, multi-cultural competence, social responsibility, background 
knowledge, experiential learning, and home and school partnership. 
 
 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Financial Statement Presentation 
 
In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 
2016-14, Not for Profit Entities (Topic 958), Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, 
the Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes 
of net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. 
 
Net assets without donor restrictions 
 
Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. 
As of June 30, 2022, the Organization has no assets that have been designated by the Board of Directors 
for operating reserves and future program development.  
 
Net assets with donor restrictions 
 
Net assets subject to donor imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in 
nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other 
donor imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be 
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, 
when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted 
has been fulfilled, or both. As of June 30, 2022, the Organization had no net assets with donor restrictions.  
 
Accounting Method – Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (“GAAP”) as applicable to not-for-profit organizations. The Organization uses 
the accrual basis of accounting, under which revenues are recognized when they are earned and 
expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred. 

75



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 9 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). It is, 
however, subject to income taxes from activities unrelated to its tax-exempt purpose. The Organization 
uses the same accounting methods for tax and financial reporting. 
 
GAAP provides accounting and disclosure guidance about positions taken by an entity in its tax returns 
that might be uncertain. Management has considered its tax positions and believes that all of the positions 
taken in its federal and state exempt organization tax returns are more likely than not to be sustained 
upon examination. The Organization’s returns are subject to examination by federal and state taxing 
authorities, generally for three years and four years, respectively, after they are filed. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are from time to time variously composed of cash on hand and liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. At June 30, 2022, the Organization had no 
cash equivalents. 
 
Fixed Assets 
 
Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciated under the straight-line method over their estimated 
useful lives of 3 years. Repair and maintenance costs, which do not extend the useful lives of the asset, 
are charged to expense. The cost of assets sold or retired, and related amounts of accumulated 
depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal, and any resulting gain or loss is 
included in the earnings. Management has elected to capitalize and depreciate all assets costing $5,000 
or more; all other assets are charged to expense in the year incurred. 
 
Revenue Sources and Recognition 
 
The Organization primarily receives funds from the California Department of Education (“CDE”). Revenue 
limit sources and state revenues received from the CDE are determined based on the Organization’s 
average daily attendance (“ADA”) of students and recognized in the period the ADA occurs. 
 
Contributions and Grants 
 
 The Organization receives federal, state and local revenues for the enhancement of various educational 
programs.  This assistance is generally received based on applications submitted to and approved by 
various granting agencies. 
 

76



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 10 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Revenue Sources and Recognition (continued) 
 
The Organization recognizes federal revenue to the extent that eligible expenditures have been incurred. 
 
Revenue from contributions and grant income is evaluated under ASU 2018-08 and is accounted for as 
nonreciprocal transactions. Unconditional contributions and grants received are recorded as net assets 
with donor restrictions or net assets without donor restrictions depending on the existence and nature of 
any donor restrictions. Support that is not restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in net assets 
without restrictions. All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor 
restrictions. When a restriction expires (that is when a stipulated time restrictions ends or purpose 
restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor 
restrictions. 
 
Deferred Revenue  
 
Deferred revenue represents grant funds received, but not expended. These funds must be expended in 
accordance with the provisions of the contract to which they apply or refunded if not expended under the 
terms of the contract. As of June 30, 2022, the Organization had $442,357 in deferred revenue which was 
comprised of In-Person Instruction and Emergency School Closures grant in the amount of $289,289 and  
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief grant in the amount of $153,068 respectively.  
 
Accounts Receivable  
 
Accounts receivable are recorded based on the amount expected to be collected from the federal and 
state government agencies. The amount recorded is based on apportionment schedules issued by the 
California Department of Education throughout the fiscal year. Management believes that collections of 
accounts receivable is reasonably assured based on the nature of the receivable coming from government 
agencies. As such, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided.  
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses 
 
The costs of providing the program services have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement 
of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the program services based on 
employees’ time incurred and management’s estimates of the usage of resources. 
 
New Accounting Pronouncements 
 
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (“Topic 842”). Topic 842 requires a lessee to 
recognize a lease asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term, and a lease 
liability for the present value of payments to be made to lessor, on its statement of financial position for 
all leases greater than 12 months In June 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-05, Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers (Topic 606) and Leases (Topic 842) —Effective Dates for Certain Entities, which deferred 
the effective date of this new guidance for the Company by one year to annual reporting periods beginning 
 
  

77



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 11 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
New Accounting Pronouncements (continued) 
 
after December 15, 2022. Although the full impact of this new guidance on the Organization’s financial 
statements has not yet been determined, the future adoption of this guidance will require the 
Organization’s to record assets and liabilities on its statement of financial position relating to facility and 
other leases currently being accounted for as operating leases (See Note 8). 
 
 
3. CASH 
 
Cash at June 30, 2022, consisted of the following: 
 

 
Cash balances held in banks are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(“FDIC”). The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts that at times may exceed federally 
insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts. At June 30, 2022, the 
Organization had $6,669,943 in excess of FDIC insured limits. 
 
 
4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Accounts receivable at June 30, 2022, consisted of the following: 
 

 
 
5. FIXED ASSETS, NET 
 
Fixed assets, net at June 30, 2022, consisted of the following: 
 

 

Cash in banks 6,469,836$             
Total cash 6,469,836$             

Revenue limit sources:
In-lieu of property taxes 617,378$                 

Federal revenues 706,552                   
State revenues 1,359,070                

Total accounts receivable 2,683,000$             

Construction in progress 449,347$                
Site improvements 8,973,097               
Land improvements 1,253,141               
Equipment 464,162                  

Less: accumulated depreciation (4,048,670)             
Total fixed assets, net 7,091,077$            

78



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 12 

5. FIXED ASSETS, NET (continued) 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, a total of $508,869 was charged to depreciation expense. 
 
 
6. ACCRUED EXPENSES 
 
At June 30, 2022, accrued expenses consisted of the following: 
 

 
 
7. LOAN PAYABLE 
 
Prop 1D Loan 
 
In 2011, the Organization applied to the Prop 1D Bond Program through the State Allocation Board and 
California School Finance Authority for both rehabilitation work and new construction at its current site 
of operations. The application was subsequently approved and between 2012 and 2015, the Organization 
was apportioned and received a total of $11,533,532 in funding. The structure of the Prop 1D Program is 
to provide 50% of the final approved project costs in the form of a grant and 50% in the form of a lease or 
long-term loan. The final project was certified in the amount of $9,159,899. The Organization has paid 
back a total amount of $1,458,502 of the original long-term liability that was recorded.  
 
The long-term loan is to be repaid over 30 years at an interest rate no less than 2%. The interest rate was 
set using the lower of the rate paid on funds in the Pooled Money Investment Account as of the date of 
disbursement of the funding or at a rate equal to 50 percent of the interest rate paid by the state on the 
most recent sale of state general obligation bonds, and the interest rate was computed according to the 
true interest cost method, as stated in the California Education Code, Section 17078.57. The loan is 
secured by the Organization’s future state apportionments. The long-term loan has maturity date of May 
2044.  
  

Payroll and payroll taxes 261,390$                 
District oversight 34,864                     
Pension expense and other 305,057                   
        Total accrued expenses 601,311$                 

79



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 13 

7. LOAN PAYABLE (continued) 
 
Prop 1D Loan (continued) 
 
Future principal payments on the loan are as follows:  
 

 
Changes in loan payable obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are as follows: 

 

 
 

8. OPERATING LEASES 
 
The Organization has two leases for copiers under operating lease agreements. Both lease agreements 
will expire in September 2027. The future minimum payments under the copier and facilities leases are as 
follows:  

 
The Organization has entered a facility use agreement with Sacramento City Unified School District to 
utilize the Marian Anderson School site through Resolution 2589 since June 23, 2011. The Organization 
receives no sublease rental revenues nor pays any contingent rentals associated with this lease. For the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, operating lease expense was $141,836. 
  

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 132,933$               71,998$                  204,931$                
2024 135,605                 69,326                    204,931                  
2025 138,330                 66,600                    204,930                  
2026 139,951                 64,980                    204,931                  
2027 141,350                 63,580                    204,930                  

Thereafter 2,944,782              539,036                  3,483,818               
3,632,951$            875,520$                4,508,471$            

 
     

                          
                        

Balance Balance Due in
June 30, 2021 Payments June 30, 2022 one year

Prop 1D Loan 3,763,265$     (130,314)$      3,632,951$     132,933$        
Total 3,763,265$     (130,314)$      3,632,951$     132,933$        

 
     

                          
                        

Year Ending Lease
June 30, Payments

2023 89,951$                   
2024 63,936                     
2025 63,936                     
2026 63,936                     
2027 63,936                     

Therafter 895,105                   
Total future lease payments 1,240,800$             

80



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 14 

9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 
 
Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by 
agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers' Retirement 
System (STRS). 
 
Plan Description and Funding Policy 
 
STRS 
 
Plan Description 
The Organization contributes to STRS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement 
system defined benefit pension plan administered by STRS. The plan provides retirement, disability and 
survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively 
amended, within the State Teachers’ Retirement Law.  
 
Plan Description 
According to the most recently available actuarial valuation report as of June 30, 2021, total plan net 
assets are $293 billion, the total actuarial present value of projected plan benefits is $414.4 billion, 
contributions from all employers totaled $5.6 billion and the plan is 73.0% funded. The Organization did 
not contribute more than 5% of the total contributions to the plan. 
 
Copies of the STRS annual financial reports may be obtained from STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, 
Sacramento, CA 95826 and www.calstrs.com. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
Active plan members are required to contribute 10.20% (10.205% for plan members classified under 
California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013) of their salary and the Organization is required 
to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for 
determining the rate are those adopted by the STRS Teachers’ Retirement Board. The required employer 
contribution rate for fiscal year 2021-2022 was 16.92% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements 
of the plan members are established by state statute. The contribution requirements of the plan members 
are established by state statute. The Organization ’s contributions to STRS for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2022, were $449,794 and equal 100% of the required contributions for the year. 
 
 
10. JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 
 
The Organization entered into a Joint Powers Agreement (“JPA”) known as the “California Charter Schools 
Association Joint Powers Authority (“CCSA-JPA”),” a self-insurance plan for workers’ compensation, 
property/casualty, and school board liability insurance. The CCSA-JPA is governed by a board consisting of 
a representative from each member organization. The board controls the operation of the CCSA-JPA 
including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by 
the member organizations beyond their representation on the board. Each member organization pays a 
premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and share surpluses and deficits 
proportionate to their participation in the CCSA-JPA. The CCSA-JPA is a separate entity which is audited 
by an independent accounting firm. The Organization paid the CCSA-JPA $91,074 in insurance premiums 
during the year ended June 30, 2022. 

81



THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 

Page 15 

11. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization manages its cash available to meet general expenditures following three guiding 
principles:  

• Operating with a prudent range of financial soundness and stability,
• Maintaining adequate liquid assets, and
• Maintaining sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurance that long term grant

commitments and obligations under endowments with donor restrictions and quasi-
endowments that support mission fulfillment with continue to be met, ensuring the
sustainability of the Organization.

The Organization’s financial assets available within one year of the Statement of Financial Position date 
for general expenditures are as follows: 

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

State Allowances, Awards, and Grants 

The Organization has received state funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by 
the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the 
grants, management believes that any required reimbursement will not be material. 

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization’s management has evaluated events or transactions that may occur for potential 
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements from the balance sheet date through December 15 
2022, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Management has determined 
that there were no subsequent events or transactions that would have a material impact on the current 
year financial statements. 

Cash 6,469,836$  
Accounts receivable 2,683,000     
Total financial assets available within one year 9,152,836$  

82



 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 

 

83



THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
ORGANIZATION 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 16 See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 

The Language Academy of Sacramento [#0640] is a Transitional kindergarten through Grade 8 Charter 
School and was granted its charter renewal by the Sacramento City Unified School District on March 2014, 
pursuant to the terms of the Charter Schools Act of 1992, as amended. 
 
The Board of Directors for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, was comprised of the following members: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Name Office Term Term Expiration

Nailah Kokayi Member 1 year June 30, 2022

Fernando Aceves Vice- President 3 years June 30, 2022

Cristian Garcia Secretary 3 years June 30, 2023

Clark Graham President 3 years June 30, 2022

Gemma Jauregui Member 3 years June 30, 2022

Nadeen Ruiz Member 3 years June 30, 2022

Julissa De Gonzalez Treasurer 3 years June 30, 2022

Nina Sylvains Member 3 years June 30, 2023

Judy Morales Director of Business and Operations

Executive Director

Administration
Name Position

Eduardo de León

84



THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 17 See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 

 
 
 

Second Period Report Annual Report
Transitional Kindergarten/

Kindergarten - Grade 3 261.81                            262.69                            

Grades 4 - 6 185.63                            186.52                            

Grades 7 - 8 122.91                            123.65                            
Total 570.35                            572.86                            

85



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 18 See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 

 
 
 
 

2021-22 Number of Days
Minutes 2021-22 Traditional

Grade Level Requirements Actual Minutes Calendar Status

Transitional 
Kindergarten

36,000 38,500 175 In compliance

Kindergarten 36,000 47,400 175 In compliance

Grade 1 50,400 55,275 175 In compliance

Grade 2 50,400 55,275 175 In compliance

Grade 3 50,400 55,275 175 In compliance

Grade 4 50,400 55,275 175 In compliance

Grade 5 50,400 55,275 175 In compliance

Grade 6 54,000 57,190 175 In compliance

Grade 7 54,000 57,190 175 In compliance

Grade 8 54,000 57,190 175 In compliance

86



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 19 See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 

 
Note 1. Basis of Presentation  
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal 
award activity of Language Academy of Sacramento under programs of the federal government for 
the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
 
Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-122, Cost 
Principles for Non-Profit Organizations, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement.  
 
Note 3. Indirect Cost Rate  
 
Language Academy of Sacramento elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Federal Grantor/ Assistance Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor/ Listing Entity Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education
Passed through California Department of Education

NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants
Low-Income and Neglected 84.010 14329 177,021$        

NCLB: Title II, Part A, Teacher Quality 84.367 14341 25,181            
NCLB: Title IV

Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grant 84.424 15396 13,301            

Elementary  and  Secondary  School  Emergency  Relief  Fund 84.425D 15536 773,912          

Special Education IDEA Cluster
     Special Education: IDEA Basic Local Assistance

Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611 84.027 13379 85,162            
Total Special Education IDEA Cluster 85,162            

COVID-19- Elementary  and  Secondary  School  Emergency  Relief  (ESSER)  Fund 84.425 C 15536 -                  

Total U.S. Department of Education 1,074,577       

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 1,074,577$    

87



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
RECONCILIATION OF CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS 

FINANCIAL REPORT - - ALTERNATIVE FORM WITH 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 20 See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 

 
 
 

.

Charter
School

June 30, 2022, Charter School Unaudited Actuals Financial
Report -- Alternative Form, Ending Fund Balance 11,602,272$      

Adjustments and reclassifications:

Increasing (decreasing) the fund balance:

Accounts payable understatement 11,102                

Net adjustments and reclassifications 11,102                

June 30, 2022, audited financial statement net assets 11,613,374$      

88



 

 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS 
 
 
 

 

89



 

 

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are 
separate and independent legal entities. © 2021 Baker Tilly US, LLP 

21 

Report on Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 

With Government Auditing Standards 

 
Board of Directors 
The Language Academy of Sacramento 
Sacramento, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial statements 
of Language Academy of Sacramento (the Organization), which comprise the Organization's statement of 
financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash 
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated December 15, 2022.  

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  

90



 
 
 

22 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 

 
San Diego, California 
December 15, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

91



Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members 
of which are separate and independent legal entities. © 2021 Baker Tilly US, LLP 

23 

Report on Compliance 
for the Major Federal Program and 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Required by the Uniform Guidance 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Board of Directors 
The Language Academy of Sacramento 
Sacramento, California 

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 

Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

We have audited Language Academy of Sacramento’s (the Organization) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on the Organization's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2022. The 
Organization's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 
2022. 

Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards); and the 
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under 
those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit 
of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above. 

92



 
 

24 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Organization's 
federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the 
Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, 
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it 
exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of 
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by 
a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Organization's compliance with the requirements of 
the major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, 
we 

• exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

• obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on 
a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 

93



 
 

25 

noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors' 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
San Diego, California 
December 15, 2022 
 

94



 
 
 

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are 
separate and independent legal entities. © 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP 

26 

 
 
 
 

REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE 
 
 
Board of Directors 
The Language Academy of Sacramento  
Sacramento, California 
 
Report on Compliance for Each State Program 
 
We have audited The Language Academy of Sacramento’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 2021-22 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State 
Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel, that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of The Language Academy of Sacramento’s state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2022. The Language Academy of Sacramento’s state programs are identified below. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its state programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of The Language Academy of Sacramento’s 
state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State’s Audit Guide, 2021-22 Guide for Annual Audits of 
K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on a state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about The 
Language Academy of Sacramento’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each state program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of The Language Academy of Sacramento’s 
compliance. In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected transactions and records to determine the 
Organization's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following items: 

95



 
 
 
 
 

27 

 
 
The term “Not Applicable” is used above to mean either that the Organization did not offer the program 
during the current fiscal year, or that the program applies only to a different type of local education agency.  
 
Opinion on State Programs 
 
In our opinion, The Language Academy of Sacramento complied, in all material respects, with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
The purpose of this report on state compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of state 
compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 2021-22 Guide for Annual 
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
San Diego, California 
December 15, 2022 

Procedures
Description Performed
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Not Applicable
After/Before School Education and Safety Program Yes
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based Not Applicable
Immunizations Yes
Educator Effectiveness Yes
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Yes
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant Not Applicable
InPerson Instruction Grant Yes
Attendance Yes
Mode of Instruction Yes
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study for Charter Schools Not Applicable
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based Yes
Charter School Facility Grant Program Not Applicable

96



 

28 

 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
 
 

 

97



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 28 See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1 Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X No

2 Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported under section 200.516 Audit Findings
paragraph (a) of OMB Uniform Guidance? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

Assitsance Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.425 D Elementary  and  Secondary  School  Emergency 

Relief Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

Unmodified

Unmodified

$750,000

98



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 29 See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 

 
 
 

A. ASummary of Auditor's Results (continued)

3 State Awards

Internal control over state programs:

One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for state programs:

B. Financial Statement Findings

None

C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

D. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

Unmodified

99



 

THE LANGUAGE ACADEMY OF SACRAMENTO 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Page 30 See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report. 

 

Explanation If
Findings/Recommendations Current Status Not Implemented

N/A N/A N/A

100



Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 
Language Academy of Sacramento

A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

A California Public School

Agenda Item# VID 

Boar Meeting Date:  January 27, 2023 

Subject: November and December Check Register 

Information Item Only 

Approval on Consent Agenda 

Conference (for discussion only) 

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ) 

Conference/Action 

Action 

Committee: School Leadership 

Recommendation:  

School Leadership requests that the Governing Board review and approve the November – December 2022 

check register.  

Documents Attached: 

1. November 2022 Check Register

2. December 2022 Check Register

 

Members November  2022 December 2022 

A
y
e 

N
ay

 

A
b
st

ai
n
 

A
b
se

n
t 

A
y
e 

N
ay

 

A
b
st

ai
n
 

A
b
se

n
t 

Vacant 

Sylvains, Nina 

Vacant 

Rodríguez, José Luis 

García, Crisitian 

Kokayi, Nailah 

Graham, Clark 

Lomelí, Laura 

Luna, Brenda 

Totals: 

Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 min 
Submitted By: School Leadership 
Date: 1.23.23 

Pertinent Pages in 
(  ) Charter, pages 
(  )  MOU, pages 

101



 
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

Agenda Artículo# VID 

 

Fecha de la Reunión: 27 de enero del 2023 

 

Tema: Registro de la cuenta bancaria noviembre and diciembre 

 

Artículo de información 

Aprobación en la Agenda de Consentimiento 

Conferencia (solo para discutir) 

Conferencia/Primera lectura (Acción Anticipado:  ) 

Conferencia/Acción 

Acción 

 

Comité: Liderazgo Escolar  

  

Recomendación: El Liderazgo Escolar solicita que la Mesa Directiva revise y apruebe el registro de la cuenta 

bancaria de noviembre y diciembre de 2022. 

 

Documento adjunto:  
1. Registro de la cuenta bancaria del mes de noviembre 2022 

2. Registro de la cuenta bancaria del mes de diciembre 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

Tiempo estimado para la presentación: 5 min. 
Entregado por: Liderazgo Escolar 
Fecha: 1.23.23 

Páginas pertinentes en: 
(  )  La constitución, páginas  
(  )  MOU, páginas  

102



Check Date

Check 

Number Vendor Inv Description (Bill) Amount

11/4/2022 10037 Veronica Kovats Enrichment classes 643.75

11/10/2022 10038 AP fbo Edlogical Group Corp SPED Services 118.50

11/10/2022 10039 Araceli Sauceda Reimb: ASES instructional materials 47.62

11/10/2022 10040 Ascensus Administrative fees 395.00

11/10/2022 10041 Graciela Castaneda Student council, Student incentives, instructional materials 101.50

11/10/2022 10042 Charter Safe December: Package Premium/ Workers Comp 12,325.00

11/10/2022 10043 Department of Justice Fingerprinting fees 96.00

11/10/2022 10044 Effie Yeaw Nature Center Fieldtrip fees: 3rd grade 1,230.00

11/10/2022 10045 Elevator Industries Elevator maintenance: November 2022 105.00

11/10/2022 10046 Ana Luna Franco Reimb: Instructional materials 143.37

11/10/2022 10047 Erica Frederickson Reimb: Instructional materials/ Fieldtrip fees 222.73

11/10/2022 10048 Gopher Physical Education instructional materials: Gellie 175.51

11/10/2022 10049 Infinite Campus Student Information System Tech Services 2,383.34

11/10/2022 10050 JCL Electronics, LLC Technological support 2,516.44

11/10/2022 10051 K12 Health SPED Services 1,264.00

11/10/2022 10052 Law Office of Jennifer McQuarrie Legal Services 231.00

11/10/2022 10053 Lizette Acosta-Caro Reimb: Instructional materials 166.33

11/10/2022 10054 Michael's Transportation Service Transportation fees: 1st grade field trip - Bishop's 3,058.50

11/10/2022 10055 NCS Pearson Inc SPED Curriculum 419.60

11/10/2022 10056 Ana Novoa Reimb: Instructional materials/classroom libraries 437.48

11/10/2022 10057 Office Depot Instructional materials, office materials 3,780.75

11/10/2022 10058 Pacific Learning Classroom libraries 1,489.26

11/10/2022 10059 Pacific Office Automation Printer supplies: Ink 160.98

11/10/2022 10060 Rosio Perez Reimb: Instructional materials 430.90

11/10/2022 10061 Priscilla Chapa Reimb: Instructional materials 129.25

11/10/2022 10062 Read Naturally SPED Curriculum 232.00

11/10/2022 10063 Irene Rodriguez Reimb: Instructional materials 90.99

11/10/2022 10064 Sacramento City Unified School District Facilities Lease: December 2022/January 2023 15,675.46

11/10/2022 10065 Samuel Fulk Reimb: Fingerprinting fees 45.00

11/10/2022 10066 Scholastic Inc Classroom libraries: Lomeli, R. 282.01

11/10/2022 10067 School Health Corporation Instructional materials: P.E. 387.08

11/10/2022 10068 SchoolMint, Inc. Student Lottery/Enrollment Software 5,760.00

11/10/2022 10069 The Home Depot Pro Custodial supplies 3,087.68

11/15/2022 10070 AP fbo Edlogical Group Corp SPED Services 118.50

11/15/2022 10071 CPM Educational Program Conference fees 3,125.00

11/15/2022 10072 EdTec Inc. Back Office Services (November 2022) 7,650.00

11/15/2022 10073 Sacramento Ballet Enrichment: Ballet 500.00

11/15/2022 10074 U Pay We Travel L.L.C. Enrichment: Basketball 352.50

11/17/2022 10075 Global Industrial Classroom furniture-SPED Acoustic Dividers 3,893.24

11/17/2022 10076 Adriana Gutierrez Reimb: Kinder fieldtrip admission fees 280.00

11/17/2022 10077 Learning Solutions Kids, Inc SPED Services 453.61

11/17/2022 10078 Moises Franco Reimb: P.E. Instructional Materials 30.99

11/17/2022 10079 Office Depot ASES Instructional materials 384.71

11/17/2022 10080 Pedro Miranda Landscaping services 400.00

11/17/2022 10081 Rosio Perez Reimb: Literacy books 115.76

11/17/2022 10083 The Home Depot Pro Custodial supplies 31.80

11/17/2022 10084 Total Education Solutions SPED Services 18,641.25

11/29/2022 10085 Veronica Kovats Enrichment: Art 643.75

11/7/2022 ACH California Credit Union Various 11,200.85

11/8/2022 ACH California Credit Union Various 324.00

11/30/2022 ACH Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc. Health Benefits-December 2022 31,461.98

11/30/2022 ACH Western Health Advantage Health Benefits-December 2022 8,110.10

11/30/2022 ACH Sutter Health Plus Health Benefits-December 2022 11,773.84

11/30/2022 ACH Mutual of Omaha Dental/Life Benefits - December 2022 4,951.78

11/30/2022 ACH Vision Service Plan - CA Vision Benefits - December 2022 1,022.49

163,098.18

Language Academy of Sacramento

Check Register

November 2022

Total 

103



Check Date

Check 

Number Vendor Inv Description (Bill) Amount

12/6/2022 10086 Baker Tilly, US, LLP Audit services 8,398.00

12/6/2022 10087 Graciela Castaneda Reimb: Classroom libraries 87.78

12/6/2022 10088 El Dorado County of Education BTSA Professional Development 10,000.00

12/6/2022 10089 Elevator Industries Elevator maintenance (December 2022) 105.00

12/6/2022 10090 Rebecca Heredia Reimb: Classroom libraries, instructional materials 369.65

12/6/2022 10091 Ann C Hubbell Reimb: Instructional materials 1,103.39

12/6/2022 10092 JCL Electronics, LLC Tech support/ tech services 6,272.25

12/6/2022 10093 K12 Health Health services 1,264.00

12/6/2022 10094 Laura Lomeli Reimb: PAP Incentives 31.97

12/6/2022 10095 Marlin Leasing Corp Copier Contract lease 4,664.58

12/6/2022 10096 Susana Mercado Reimb: Basketball uniforms and supplies 1,343.24

12/6/2022 10097 Michael's Transportation Service Fieldtrip transportation fees: 2nd grade-Sofia Theatre 800.00

12/6/2022 10098 Nancy Castignetti Reimb: Professional development 397.00

12/6/2022 10099 Office Depot Office supplies 788.60

12/6/2022 10100 Pacific Office Automation Printer supplies 762.21

12/6/2022 10101 Perma-Bound Library books 154.34

12/6/2022 10102 Irene Rodriguez Reimb: Instructional materials 117.45

12/6/2022 10103 SCUSD/Accounting Services Facility lease: February 2023 7,837.73

12/6/2022 10104 The Home Depot Pro Custodial supplies 1,157.81

12/6/2022 10105 U Pay We Travel L.L.C. Enrichment: Basketball 510.00

12/6/2022 10106 Veronica Kovats Art Enrichment: Art classes 368.75

12/15/2022 10107 916 Ink Enrichment: Literacy 5,000.00

12/15/2022 10108 Maria Anguiano Reimb: MAP Incentives / Instructional materials 286.66

12/15/2022 10109 AP fbo Edlogical Group Corp SPED Services 237.00

12/15/2022 10110 Benchmark Education Curriculum books (Kinder) 3,150.47

12/15/2022 10111 Graciela Castaneda Reimb: Winter Festival supplies 167.08

12/15/2022 10112 Charter Safe January: Library Premium/ Workers Comp 12,325.00

12/15/2022 10113 Luis Cruz-Llamas Reimb: Instructional materials/ Fieldtrip fees 60.34

12/15/2022 10114 Department of Justice Fingerprinting fees 128.00

12/15/2022 10115 Didax Instructional materials: Vargas 16.30

12/15/2022 10116 EdTec Inc. Back office services: December 2022 7,650.00

12/15/2022 10117 Adriana Gutierrez Reimb: Instructional materials 106.14

12/15/2022 10118 Rebecca Heredia Reimb: Classroom libraries/ instructional materials 1,018.04

12/15/2022 10119 JCL Electronics, LLC Technology supplies 19,184.43

12/15/2022 10120 Xochith Laredo Reimb: PC Winter Festival supplies 347.78

12/15/2022 10121 Law Office of Jennifer McQuarrie Legal services 286.00

12/15/2022 10122 Learning Solutions SPED Services 238.76

12/15/2022 10123 Learning Without Tears (4200) Instructional books: 3rd grade 21/22 1,031.78

12/15/2022 10124 MindWing Concepts, Inc. SPED Instructional Materials 219.95

12/15/2022 10125 NCS Pearson, Inc. SPED Curriculum 451.33

12/15/2022 10126 Salvador Alvarez Staff appreciation luncheon 420.00

12/15/2022 10127 SCUSD/Accounting Services Utility fees (September/October) 36,032.95

12/15/2022 10128 Total Education Solutions SPED Services 14,170.00

12/16/2022 10129 Learningtech.org E-Rate Management Services 4,950.00

12/16/2022 10130 Scholastic Book Fairs Book fairs: December 2022 2,390.60

12/16/2022 10131 The Home Depot Pro Custodial Supplies 50.56

12/16/2022 10132 Nancy Tinajero Reimb: SPED Services: READ Learning Center 625.00

12/16/2022 10133 Ana Luna Franco Reimb: Instructional materials 135.99

12/16/2022 10134 Jessica Santana Reimb: Instructional materials 7.93

12/16/2022 10135 Miguel Perez Reimb: Classroom libraries 1,860.72

12/16/2022 10136 Study Smart Tutors Inc Student Assessment Services 1,195.00

12/16/2022 10137 SYNCB/AMAZON Basketball materials 4,338.16

12/31/2022 ACH California Credit Union Various 5,949.16

12/5/2022 ACH California Credit Union Various 970.56

12/5/2022 ACH California Credit Union Various 8,966.00

12/30/2022 ACH Kaiser Foundation Health Plan Inc Health Benefits - December 2022 33,363.46

12/30/2022 ACH Western Health Advantage Health Benefits - December 2022 8,110.10

12/30/2022 ACH Sutter Health Plus Health Benefits - December 2022 15,539.17

12/30/2022 ACH Vision Service Plan - CA Vision Benefits - December 2022 1,111.83

238,626.00

Language Academy of Sacramento

Check Register

December 2022

Total 

104



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

Agenda Item# VIE 

 

Board Meeting Date:  January 27, 2023 

 

Subject: CALSTRS Pension2 

 

 Information Item Only 

 Approval on Consent Agenda 

 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: January 2023) 

 Conference 

 Conference/Action 

 Action 

 

Committee: School Leadership 

 

Background:  Currently, the Language Academy of Sacramento has six (6) investment funds to which 

employees can contribute to a supplemental pension plan. A 403(b) plan is a retirement account that 

public school employees, employees of tax-exempt organizations and certain ministers can enroll in.  

 

LAS seeks to add a seventh pension plan with CALSTRS (Pension2) 403(b) plan to provide a broader 

range of plans accessible to employees.  

 

Fiscal Implication:  None. Plan is based on employee contributions. However, LAS would be 

responsible for the administration of the plan as well as any required federal reporting.  

 

 

Recommendation: School Leadership recommends adding the additional CALSTRS vendor to the 

approved list of 403(b) providers.  

 

Attachments: CALSTRS Pension2 403(b) Plan  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CALSTRS Pension 2 

 
 
Members 

A
y

e 

N
a

y
 

A
b

st
a

in
 

A
b

se
n

t 

Nailah Kokayi     

Jose Luis Rodriguez     

Cristian García     

Brenda Luna     

Clark Graham     

Laura Lomelí     

Vacant     

Vacant     

Nina Sylvains     

Totals:     

Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 min. 

Submitted By: School Leadership 

Date: 1/23/23 

Pertinent Pages in  

(  ) Charter, pages   

(  )  MOU, pages    
105



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

 

 Artículo# VIE 
 

Fecha de la Reunión: 27 de enero del 2023 

 

Tema: CALSTRS Pension2 

 

 Artículo de información 

 Aprobación en la Agenda de Consentimiento 

 Conferencia (solo para discutir) 

 Conferencia/Primera lectura (Acción Anticipado: enero 2023) 

 Conferencia/Acción 

 Acción 

 

Comité: Dirección de la escuela 

 

Antecedentes: Actualmente, la Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento tiene seis (6) fondos de inversión 

a los que los empleados pueden contribuir a un plan de pensiones complementario. Un plan 403(b) es 

una cuenta de jubilación en la que pueden inscribirse los empleados de escuelas públicas, los 

empleados de organizaciones exentas de impuestos y ciertos ministros.  

 

LAS pretende añadir un séptimo plan de pensiones con el plan 403(b) de CALSTRS (Pension2) para 

ofrecer una gama más amplia de planes accesibles a los empleados.  

 

Implicación fiscal: Ninguna. El plan se basa en las contribuciones de los empleados. Sin embargo, la 

LAS sería responsable de la administración del plan, así como de cualquier informe federal requerido.  

 

 

Recomendación: School Leadership recomienda añadir el proveedor adicional CALSTRS a la lista 

aprobada de proveedores 403(b). 

 

Anexos: Plan CALSTRS Pension2 403(b) 

 

106



Offer Your Employees a Better Way to Save. 

107



Table of Contents

Plan Provisions Section
Section 1: Definition of Terms Used
Section 2: Participation and Contributions
Section 3: Limitations on Amounts Deferred
Section 4: Loans
Section 5: Benefit Distributions
Section 6: Rollovers to the Plan and Transfers
Section 7: Investment of Contributions
Section 8: Amendment and Plan Termination
Section 9: Miscellaneous
Section 10: Employer Contributions
Section 11: Roth 403(b) Contributions

1
6
6
7
8
8
9

11
12
12
13
14

108



I01

403(b) Plan for a Public School

Plan Provisions Section
1. Employer Information

Employer name: _______________________________________________________________________________

Employer address: _____________________________________________________________________________

Person at Employer to contact: ____________________________________________________________________

Contact’s telephone number: _____________________________________________________________________

Contact’s email address: _________________________________________________________________________

2. Plan Name: ______________________________________________________________

3. Plan Effective/Restatement date: _____________________________________________
Note: is this the first document for your plan? If yes, insert date established. If no, enter date plan was restated
to this document.

4. State where Employer is located: ____________________________________________

5. The Administrator (see Section 1.3) shall mean the following person(s) or organization and
shall perform the following administrative service functions for the Plan:
Name                                                                                                      Administrative Services Performed

NOTE: If the Employer chooses not to delegate any administrative services, this section should be left blank.

6. Valuation Date (see Section 1.22) shall mean:
Each business day

The last business day of each month 

7. List of Funding Vehicles that are authorized to receive Elective Deferrals :

CalSTRS Pension2

109



I02

8. List of Vendors that can receive Contract Exchanges :

9. Roth 403(b) Contributions (see Section 11)
shall be permitted under the Plan

shall not be permitted under the Plan

10. (a) Employer Discretionary Contributions (see Section 10):
shall be permitted under the Plan

shall not be permitted under the Plan

If permitted, for each Plan Year, the Employer Discretionary Contribution shall be:

_____ % of each Participant’s Compensation contributed to the Employer Contributions Account of each Participant.

$____________  contributed to the Employer Contributions Account of each Participant.

An amount, determined uniformly with respect to each Employee classification within the applicable collective 
bargaining agreement, to the Employer Contributions Account of each Participant as specified in the applicable 
collective bargaining agreement.

(b) If permitted, Employer Discretionary Contributions shall be made to the following Participants:

All Employees

Collectively bargained employees who participate in the following unions:

_________________________________________________________________________________________

Employees whose employment is NOT governed by a collective bargaining agreement between the Employer

and employee representatives

Management employees

Superintendent

Principals

Treasurer

Administrator

Other (specify):  ____________________________________________________________________________

CalSTRS Pension2

110



I03

11. (a) Employer Matching Contributions (see Section 10):
shall be permitted under the Plan

shall not be permitted under the Plan

If permitted, Employer Matching Contributions shall match a Participant’s (select all that apply):

Elective Deferrals

Roth 403(b) Contributions

If permitted, the amount of Employer Matching Contributions for each Plan Year shall be:

A matching contribution equal to ____ % of each Participant’s contribution to the Plan.

A matching contribution equal to ____ % of the first ____ % of each Participant’s Compensation that is 

contributed to the Plan for the Plan Year.

A matching contribution equal to $ ____ of each Participant’s contribution to the Plan.

A matching contribution equal to a percentage of each Participant’s contribution to the Plan in an amount to be 

determined each Plan Year by the Employer or the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

(b) If permitted, Employer Matching Contributions shall be made to the following Participants:

All Employees

Collectively bargained employees who participate in the following unions:

________________________________________________________________________________________

Employees whose employment is NOT governed by a collective bargaining agreement between the Employer

and employee representatives

Management employees

Superintendent

Principals

Treasurers

Administrator

Other (specify): ____________________________________________________________________________

12. Signature and acknowledgement
• a 403(b) plan document for public schools intended to meet the requirements of the final 403(b) regulations issued

on July 24, 2007 (Federal Register (72 FR 41128));
• a plan document substantially similar to the IRS model plan language under Rev. Proc. 2007-71. Additional features

in this 403(b) plan document are the ability to offer Roth 403(b) and/or Employer Contributions under your 403(b) plan,
which are not addressed by the IRS model plan language. The document has not been reviewed or approved by the
Internal Revenue Service.

A plan sponsor should review this plan document, together with legal counsel to the extent appropriate, to determine 
whether additional modifications to the plan document may be necessary to address specific facts, circumstances, and 
applicable law.

If a plan sponsor elects to adopt this plan document, it must complete the Plan Provisions Section and return the 
Section to CalSTRS Pension2 to the following address:

CalSTRS Pension2 
P.O. Box 15275, MS-44 
Sacramento, CA 95851-0275 

111



I04

If CalSTRS Pension2 does not receive a copy of the completed Plan Provisions Section from the plan sponsor, we cannot 
provide future updates to this plan document as they become available.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned individual, as authorized by the Employer, has caused this Plan to be 
executed this _____  day of ___________________ , ________ .

Employer: ___________________________________________________________________________________

By: ________________________________________________________________________________________

Title: _______________________________________________________________________________________

112



I 05

SECTION 1: Definition of Terms Used
The following words and terms, when used in the Plan, have 
the meaning set forth below.

1.1   “Account”: The account or accumulation maintained for 
the benefit of any Participant or Beneficiary under an 
Annuity Contract or a Custodial Account.

1.2  “Account Balance”: The bookkeeping account 
maintained for each Participant which reflects the 
aggregate amount credited to the Participant’s Account 
under all Accounts, including the Participant’s Elective 
Deferrals, any Employer Contributions, and Roth 403(b) 
Contributions, the earnings or loss of each Annuity 
Contract or a Custodial Account (net of expenses) allocable 
to the Participant, any transfers for the Participant’s benefit, 
and any distribution made to the Participant or the 
Participant’s Beneficiary. If a Participant has more than one 
Beneficiary at the time of the Participant’s death, then a 
separate Account Balance shall be maintained for each 
Beneficiary. The Account Balance includes any account 
established under Section 6 for rollover contributions and 
plan.to.plan transfers made for a Participant, the account 
established for a Beneficiary after a Participant’s death, and 
any account or accounts established for an alternate payee 
(as defined in Section 414(p)(8) of the Code).

1.3  “Administrator”: means the person(s) or organization, 
such as the Vendor, third party administrator or other 
designee, approved by the Employer to administer the 
Plan and perform administrative functions for the Plan as 
identified in the Plan Provisions Section.

1.4  “Annuity Contract”: A nontransferable contract as defined 
in Section 403(b)(1) of the Code, established for each 
Participant by the Employer, or by each Participant 
individually, that is issued by an insurance company 
qualified to issue annuities in the State in which the 
Employer is located as indicated in the Plan Provisions 
Section and that includes payment in the form of an 
annuity.

1.5  “Beneficiary”: The designated person who is entitled 
to receive benefits under the Plan after the death of a 
Participant, subject to such additional rules as may be 
set forth in the Individual Agreements.

1.6  “Custodial Account”: The group or individual custodial 
account or accounts, as defined in Section 403(b)(7) of 
the Code, established for each Participant by the 
Employer, or by each Participant individually, to hold 
assets of the Plan.

1.7  “Code”: The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as now in 
effect or as hereafter amended. All citations to Sections of 
the Code are to such Sections as they may from time to 
time be amended or renumbered.

1.8  “Compensation”: All cash compensation for services to 
the Employer, including salary, wages, fees, commissions, 
bonuses, and overtime pay, that is includible in the 
Employee’s gross income for the calendar year, plus 
amounts that would be cash compensation for services to 
the Employer includible in the Employee’s gross income for 
the calendar year but for a compensation reduction election 
under Section 125, 132(f), 401(k), 403(b), or 457(b) of the 
Code (including an election under Section 2 made to reduce 
compensation in order to have Elective Deferrals under the 
Plan). 

1.9  “Disabled”: The definition of disability provided in the 
applicable Individual Agreement.

1.10  “Elective Deferral”: The Employer contributions made to 
the Plan at the election of the Participant in accordance 
with Section 2 in lieu of receiving cash compensation. 
Elective Deferrals are limited to pre-tax salary reduction 
contributions.

1.11  “Employee”: Each individual, whether appointed or 
elected, who is a common law employee of the Employer 
performing services for a public school as an employee of 
the Employer. This definition is not applicable unless the 
employee’s compensation for performing services for a 
public school is paid by the Employer. Further, a person 
occupying an elective or appointive public office is not an 
employee performing services for a public school unless 
such office is one to which an individual is elected or 
appointed only if the individual has received training, or is 
experienced, in the field of education. A public office 
includes any elective or appointive office of a State or local 
government. 

1.12  “Employer”: The public school adopting this Plan 
indicated in the Plan Provisions Section.

1.13  “Funding Vehicles”: The Annuity Contracts or Custodial 
Accounts issued for funding amounts held under the Plan 
and specifically approved by the Employer for use under 
the Plan and are identified in the Plan Provisions Section.

1.14  “Includible Compensation”: An Employee’s actual 
wages in box 1 of Form W2 for the most recent one year 
period of service for the Employer, but increased (up to the 
dollar maximum) by any compensation reduction election 
under Section 125, 132(f), 401(k), 403(b), or 457(b) of the 
Code (including any Elective Deferral under the Plan). The 
amount of Includible Compensation is determined without 
regard to any community property laws. Pursuant to Reg. 
Section 1.415(c).2(e)(3) of the Income Tax Regulations, 
Includible Compensation will include any payments made 
to a Participant who has had a Severance from 
Employment, provided that the Includible Compensation 
is paid by the later of 2 months after the Participant’s 

113



I 06

Severance from Employment or the end of the Plan Year 
that contains the date of such Participant’s Severance from 
Employment. In addition, pursuant to Reg. Section 
1.415(c).2(e)(4) of the Income Tax Regulations, Includible 
Compensation will include payments made to an 
individual who does not currently perform services for the 
Employer by reason of qualified military service 
(as defined in Section 414(u)(5) of the Code) to the extent 
those payments do not exceed the amount the individual 
would have received if the individual had continued to 
perform services for the Employer rather than enter 
qualified military service. If the Plan permits Employer 
Contributions pursuant to Section 10, then such Employer 
Contributions shall be subject to a maximum of $200,000 
(or such higher maximum as may apply under Section 
401(a)(17) of the Code).

1.15  “Individual Agreement”: The agreements between 
a Vendor and the Employer or a Participant that 
constitutes or governs a Custodial Account or an 
Annuity Contract with respect to that Participant’s 
Account.

1.16  “Participant”: An individual for whom Elective Deferrals 
(or Roth 403(b) Contributions) are currently being 
made, or for whom Elective Deferrals (or Roth 403(b) 
Contributions) have previously been made, under the 
Plan and who has not received a distribution of his or 
her entire benefit under the Plan.

1.17  “Plan”: The name of the plan as indicated in the Plan 
Provisions Section.

1.18  “Plan Year”: The calendar year.

1.19  “Related Employer”: The Employer and any other entity 
which is under common control with the Employer under 
Section 414(b) or (c) of the Code. For this purpose, the 
Employer shall determine which entities are Related 
Employers based on a reasonable, good faith standard and 
taking into account the special rules applicable under 
Notice 89.23, 1989.1 C.B. 654.

1.20  “Severance from Employment”: For purpose of the 
Plan, Severance from Employment means Severance from 
Employment with the Employer and any Related Entity. 
However, a Severance from Employment also occurs on 
any date on which an Employee ceases to be an 
employee of a public school, even though the Employee 
may continue to be employed by a Related Employer that 
is another unit of the State or local government that is 
not a public school or in a capacity that is not 
employment with a public school (e.g., ceasing to be an 
employee performing services for a public school but 
continuing to work for the same State or local 
government employer).

1.21  “Vendor”: The provider of an Annuity Contract or 
Custodial Account.

1.22  “Valuation Date”: The date(s) selected in the Plan 
Provisions Section.

SECTION 2: Participation and 
Contributions
2.1  Eligibility. Each Employee shall be eligible to participate 

in the Plan and elect to have Elective Deferrals or Roth 
403(b) Contributions in accordance with Section 11 made 
on his or her behalf hereunder immediately upon 
becoming employed by the Employer.

2.2  Compensation Reduction Election General Rule. 
 An Employee elects to become a Participant by executing 
an election to reduce his or her Compensation (and have 
that amount contributed as an Elective Deferral and/or 
Roth 403(b) Contributions in accordance with Section 11 
on his or her behalf) and filing it with the Administrator. 
This Compensation reduction election shall be made on 
the agreement provided by the Administrator under 
which the Employee agrees to be bound by all the terms 
and conditions of the Plan. The Administrator may 
establish an annual minimum deferral amount no higher 
than $200, and may change such minimum to a lower 
amount from time to time. The participation election shall 
also include designation of the Funding Vehicles and 
Accounts therein to which Elective Deferrals (and/or Roth 
403(b) Contributions) are to be made and a designation of 
Beneficiary. Any such election shall remain in effect until a 
new election is filed. Only an individual who performs 
services for the Employer as an Employee may reduce his 
or her Compensation under the Plan. Each Employee will 
become a Participant in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Individual Agreements. All Elective 
Deferrals shall be made on a pre-tax basis. All Roth 403(b) 
Contributions shall be made in accordance with the terms 
of Section 11. An Employee shall become a Participant as 
soon as administratively practicable following the date 
applicable under the Employee’s election. 

2.3  Information Provided by the Employee. Each Employee 
enrolling in the Plan  should provide to the Administrator 
at the time of initial enrollment, and later if there are any 
changes, any information necessary or advisable for the 
Administrator to administer the Plan, including any 
information required under the Individual Agreements.

2.4  Change in Elective Deferrals Election. Subject to the 
provisions of the applicable Individual Agreements, an 
Employee may at any time revise his or her participation 
election, including a change of the amount of his or her 
Elective Deferrals (and/or Roth 403(b) Contributions), his or 
her investment direction, and/or his or her designated 
Beneficiary. A change in the amount of Elective Deferrals 
(and/or Roth 403(b) Contributions) investment direction 
shall take effect as of the date provided by the 
Administrator on a uniform basis for all Employees. A 
change in the Beneficiary designation shall take effect 
when the election is accepted by the Vendor.

114



I 07

2.5  Contributions Made Promptly. All contributions under 
the Plan shall be transferred to the applicable Funding 
Vehicle within 15 business days following the end of the 
month in which the amount would otherwise have been 
paid to the Participant.

2.6  Leave of Absence. Unless an election is otherwise revised, 
if an Employee is absent from work by leave of absence, 
Elective Deferrals (and/or Roth 403(b) Contributions) 
under the Plan shall continue to the extent that 
Compensation continues.

SECTION 3: Limitations on Amounts 
Deferred
3.1  Basic Annual Limitation. Except as provided in Sections 

3.2 and 3.3, the maximum amount of the Elective Deferrals 
(and/or Roth 403(b) Contributions to the extent permitted 
under Section 11) under the Plan for any calendar year shall 
not exceed the lesser of (a) the applicable dollar amount or 
(b) the Participant’s Includible Compensation for the 
calendar year. The applicable dollar amount is the amount 
established under Section 402(g)(1)(B) of the Code, which is 
$15,500 for 2008, and is adjusted for cost-of-living 
thereafter to the extent provided under Section 415(d) of 
the Code.

3.2  Special Section 403(b) Catch-up Limitation for 
Employees With 15 Years of Service. Because the Employer 
is a qualified organization (within the meaning of Section 
1.403(b)-4(c)(3)(ii) of the Income Tax Regulations), the 
applicable dollar amount under Section 3.1(a) for any 
“qualified employee” is increased (to the extent provided in 
the Individual Agreements) by the least of:

3.3  (a) $3,000; 
(b) The excess of:

(1)$15,000, over
(2)The total special 403(b) catch-up elective 
deferrals made for the qualified Employee by the 
qualified organization for prior years; or

(c) The excess of:
(1)$5,000 multiplied by the number of years of 
service of the Employee with the qualified 
organization, over
(2)The total Elective Deferrals and, if applicable, 
Roth 403(b) Contributions made for the Employee 
by the qualified organization for prior years made 
pursuant to this subsection. 

2.6  For purposes of this Section 3.2, a “qualified employee” 
means an Employee who has completed at least 15 
years of service taking into account only employment 
with the Employer. 

3.3  Age 50 Catch-up Elective Deferral Contributions. An 
Employee who is a Participant who will attain age 50 

or more by the end of the calendar year is permitted to 
elect an additional amount of Elective Deferrals (and/or 
Roth 403(b) Contributions), up to the maximum age 50 
catch-up Elective Deferrals (or Roth 403(b) Contributions) 
for the year. The maximum dollar amount of the age 50 
catch-up Elective Deferrals (or Roth 403(b) Contributions) 
for a year is $5,000 for 2008, and is adjusted for cost-of-
living thereafter to the extent provided under the Code. 

3.4  Coordination. Amounts in excess of the limitation set 
forth in Section 3.1 shall be allocated first to the special 
403(b) catch-up under Section 3.2 and next as an age 50 
catch-up contribution under Section 3.3.

3.5  Special Rule for a Participant Covered by Another 
Section 403(b) Plan. For purposes of this Section 3, if the 
Participant is or has been a participant in one or more other 
plans under Section 403(b) of the Code (and any other plan 
that permits elective deferrals under Section 402(g) of the 
Code), then this Plan and all such other plans shall be 
considered as one plan for purposes of applying the 
foregoing limitations of this Section 3. For this purpose, the 
Administrator shall take into account any other such plan 
maintained by any Related Employer and shall also take 
into account any other such plan for which the 
Administrator receives from the Participant sufficient 
information concerning his or her participation in such 
other plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, another plan 
maintained by a Related Entity shall be taken into account 
for purposes of Section 3.2 only if the other plan is a Code 
Section 403(b) plan.

3.6  Correction of Excess Elective Deferrals. If the Elective 
Deferrals (or Roth 403(b) Contributions) on behalf of a 
Participant for any calendar year exceeds the limitations 
described above, or the Elective Deferral s (and/or Roth 
403(b) Contributions) on behalf of a Participant for any 
calendar year exceeds the limitations described above 
when combined with other amounts deferred by the 
Participant under another plan of the employer under 
Section 403(b) of the Code (and any other plan that permits 
elective deferrals under Section 402(g) of the Code for 
which the Participant provides information that is accepted 
by the Administrator), then the Elective Deferral (and to the 
extent applicable, Roth 403(b) Contributions), to the extent 
in excess of the applicable limitation (adjusted for any 
income or loss in value, if any, allocable thereto), shall be 
distributed to the Participant. Excess Deferrals (and, if 
applicable, Roth 403(b) Contributions) will be distributed to 
the Participant, with allocable net income, no later than 
April 15 of the following taxable year or otherwise in 
accordance with Section 402(g) of the Code. 

3.7  Protection of Persons Who Serve in a Uniformed Service. 
An Employee whose employment is interrupted by 
qualified military service under Section 414(u) of the 
Code or who is on a leave of absence for qualified 
military service under Section 414(u) of the Code 

115



I 08

may elect to make additional Elective Deferrals upon 
resumption of employment with the Employer equal to 
the maximum Elective Deferrals that the Employee could 
have elected during that period if the Employee’s 
employment with the Employer had continued (at the 
same level of Compensation) without the interruption or 
leave, reduced by the Elective Deferrals, if any, actually 
made for the Employee during the period of the 
interruption or leave. Except to the extent provided under 
Section 414(u) of the Code, this right applies for five years 
following the resumption of employment (or, if sooner, for 
a period equal to three times the period of the 
interruption or leave).

SECTION 4: Loans
4.1  Loans. Loans shall be permitted under the Plan to 

the extent permitted by the Individual Agreements 
controlling the Account assets from which the loan is 
made and by which the loan will be secured.

4.2  Information Coordination Concerning Loans. Each 
Vendor is responsible for all information reporting 
and tax withholding required by applicable federal 
and state law in connection with distributions and loans. To 
minimize the instances in which Participants have taxable 
income as a result of loans from the Plan, the Administrator 
shall take such steps as may be appropriate to coordinate 
the limitations on loans set forth in Section 4.3, including 
the collection of information from Vendors, and 
transmission of information requested by any Vendor, 
concerning the outstanding balance of any loans made to 
a Participant under the Plan or any other plan of the 
Employer. The Administrator shall also take such steps as 
may be appropriate to collect information from Vendors, 
and transmission of information to any Vendor, concerning 
any failure by a Participant to repay timely any loans made 
to a Participant under the Plan or any other plan of the 
Employer.

4.3  Maximum Loan Amount. No loan to a Participant under 
the Plan may exceed the lesser of:

3.3  (a) $50,000, reduced by the greater of (i) the outstanding 
balance on any loan from the Plan to the Participant on 
the date the loan is made or (ii) the highest outstanding 
balance on loans from the Plan to the Participant during 
the one.year period ending on the day before the date the 
loan is approved by the Administrator (not taking into 
account any payments made during such one.year period); 
or 
(b) one half of the value of the Participant’s vested
Account Balance (as of the Valuation Date immediately
preceding the date on which such loan is approved by the
Administrator). For purposes of this Section 4.3, any loan
from any other plan maintained by the Employer

and any Related Employer shall be treated as if it were a 
loan made from the Plan, and the Participant’s vested 
interest under any such other plan shall be considered a 
vested interest under this Plan; provided, however, that the 
provisions of this paragraph shall not be applied so as to 
allow the amount of a loan to exceed the amount that 
would otherwise be permitted in the absence of this 
paragraph.

SECTION 5: Benefit Distributions
5.1  Benefit Distributions At Severance from Employment 

or Other Distribution Event. Except as permitted under 
Section 3.6 (relating to excess Elective Deferrals), Section 5.3 
(relating to withdrawals of amounts rolled over into the 
Plan), Section 5.4 (relating to hardship), or Section 8.3 
(relating to termination of the Plan), distributions from a 
Participant’s Account may not be made earlier than the 
earliest of the date on which the Participant has a Severance 
from Employment, dies, becomes Disabled, or attains age 
59.. Distributions shall otherwise be made in accordance 
with the terms of the Individual Agreements. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Elective Deferrals made to 
an Annuity Contract and corresponding earnings as of 
December 31, 1988 are “grandfathered” and withdrawal 
restrictions do not apply to the extent that such amounts 
can be appropriately identified by the Vendor.

5.2  Minimum Distributions. Each Individual Agreement shall 
comply with the minimum distribution requirements 
of Section 401(a)(9) of the Code and the regulations 
thereunder. For purposes of applying the distribution rules 
of Section 401(a)(9) of the Code, each Individual 
Agreement is treated as an individual retirement account 
(IRA) and distributions shall be made in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 1.408-8 of the Income Tax 
Regulations, except as provided in Section 1.403(b)-6(e) of 
the Income Tax Regulations.

5.3  In-Service Distributions From Rollover Account. If a 
Participant has a separate account attributable to rollover 
contributions to the Plan, to the extent permitted by the 
applicable Individual Agreement, the Participant may at 
any time elect to receive a distribution of all or any portion 
of the amount held in the rollover account.

5.4  Hardship Withdrawals. 
 (a) Hardship withdrawals shall be permitted under the
Plan in accordance with the financial need safe harbor
rules described in Section 1.401(k)-1(d)(3)(iii)(B) of the
Income Tax Regulations to the extent permitted by the
Individual Agreements controlling the Account assets to
be withdrawn to satisfy the hardship. If applicable
under an Individual Agreement, no Elective Deferrals
(or Roth 403(b) Contributions) shall be allowed under the
Plan during the 6.month period beginning on the date the
Participant receives a distribution on account of hardship.

116



I 09

(b) The Individual Agreements shall provide for the
exchange of information among the Employer and the
Vendors to the extent necessary to implement the
Individual Agreements, including, in the case of a
hardship withdrawal that is automatically deemed to be
necessary to satisfy the Participant’s financial need
(pursuant to Section 1.401(k)-1(d)(3)(iv)(E) of the Income
Tax Regulations), the Vendor notifying the Employer of
the withdrawal in order for the Employer to implement
the resulting 6-month suspension of the Participant’s
right to make Elective Deferrals (or Roth 403(b)
Contributions) under the Plan.
(c) An Individual Agreement may make distributions to a
Participant for expenses described in Section 1.401(k)-1(d)
(3)(iii)(B)(1), (3), or (5) of the Income Tax Regulations for a
primary Beneficiary. For this purpose, a “primary
Beneficiary” is an individual who is named as a Beneficiary
and has an unconditional right to all or a portion of the
Account balance upon the death of the Participant.

5.5  Rollover Distributions. 

3.3  (a) A Participant or the Beneficiary of a deceased 
Participant (or a Participant’s spouse or former spouse 
who is an alternate payee under a domestic relations 
order, as defined in Section 414(p) of the Code) who is 
entitled to an eligible rollover distribution may elect to 
have any portion of an eligible rollover distribution (as 
defined in Section 402(c)(4) of the Code) from the Plan 
paid directly to an eligible retirement plan (as defined in 
Section 402(c)(8)(B) of the Code) specified by the 
Participant in a direct rollover. In the case of 
a distribution to a Beneficiary who at the time of the 
Participant’s death was neither the spouse of the 
Participant nor the spouse or former spouse of the 
participant who is an alternate payee under a domestic 
relations order, a direct rollover is payable only to an 
individual retirement account or individual retirement 
annuity (IRA) that has been established on behalf of the 
Beneficiary as an inherited IRA (within the meaning of 
Section 408(d)(3)(C) of the Code). 
(b) Each Vendor shall be separately responsible for
providing, within a reasonable time period before
making an initial eligible rollover distribution, an
explanation to the Participant of his or her right to elect
a direct rollover and the income tax withholding
consequences of not electing a direct rollover.
(c) A Participant or a spouse who is the designated
Beneficiary of the Participant may elect to roll over
amounts in accordance with Section 408A(e) of the
Code directly to a Roth IRA.

SECTION 6: Rollovers to the Plan and 
Transfers
6.1  Eligible Rollover Contributions to the Plan. 

3.3  (a) Eligible Rollover Contributions. To the extent provided 
in the Individual Agreements, an Employee who is a 
Participant who is entitled to receive an eligible rollover 
distribution from another eligible retirement plan may 
request to have all or a portion of the eligible rollover 
distribution paid to the Plan. Such rollover contributions 
shall be made in the form of cash only. The Vendor may 
require such documentation from the distributing plan as it 
deems necessary to effectuate the rollover in accordance 
with Section 402 of the Code and to confirm that such plan 
is an eligible retirement plan within the meaning of Section 
402(c)(8)(B) of the Code. However, in no event does the Plan 
accept a rollover contribution from a Roth elective deferral 
account under an applicable retirement plan described in 
Section 402A(e)(1) of the Code or a Roth IRA described in 
Section 408A of the Code.
(b) Eligible Rollover Distribution. For purposes of Section
6.1(a), an eligible rollover distribution means any
distribution of all or any portion of a Participant’s benefit
under another eligible retirement plan, except that an
eligible rollover distribution does not include
(1) a payment if it is part of a series of equal (or almost
equal) payments that are made at least once a year and that
will last for (i) the life of the Participant (or the joint lives of
the Participant and the Participant’s Beneficiary),(ii) the life
expectancy of the Participant (or the joint life and last
survivor expectancy of the Participant and the Participant’s
Beneficiary), or (iii) any installment payment for a period of
10 years or more; (2) any distribution made as a result of an
unforeseeable emergency or other distribution which is
made upon hardship of the Participant; (3) for any other
distribution, the portion, if any, of the distribution that is a
required minimum distribution under Section 401(a)(9) of
the Code; (4) corrective distributions of excess contributions
under a qualified cash or deferred arrangement described
in Section 1.401(k).2(b)(2) of the Income Tax Regulations
and excess aggregate contributions described in Section
1.401(m).2(b)(2) of the Income Tax Regulations, together
with the income allocable to these distributions;(5) loans
that are treated as deemed distributions pursuant to
Section 72(p) of the Code and (6) similar items designated
by the Commissioner in revenue rulings, notices, and other
guidance published in the Internal Revenue Bulletin. In
addition, an eligible retirement plan means an individual
retirement account described in Section 408(a) of the Code,
an individual retirement annuity described in Section 408(b)
of the Code, a qualified trust described in Section 401(a) of

117



I 10

the Code, an annuity plan described in Section 403(a) or 
403(b) of the Code, or an eligible governmental plan 
described in Section 457(b) of the Code, that accepts the 
eligible rollover distribution.  
(c) Separate Accounts. The Vendor shall establish and
maintain for the Participant a separate account for any
eligible rollover distribution paid to the Plan.

6.2  Plan-to-Plan Transfers to the Plan. 

3.3  (a) At the direction of the Employer, for a class of 
Employees who are participants or beneficiaries in another 
plan under Section 403(b) of the Code, the Administrator 
may permit a transfer of assets to the Plan as provided in 
this Section 6.2. Such a transfer is permitted only if the 
other plan provides for the direct transfer of each person’s 
entire interest therein to the Plan and the participant is an 
employee or former employee of the Employer. The 
Administrator and any Vendor accepting such transferred 
amounts may require that the transfer be in cash or other 
property acceptable to it. The Administrator or any Vendor 
accepting such transferred amounts may require such 
documentation from the other plan as it deems necessary 
to effectuate the transfer in accordance with Section 
1.403(b).10(b)(3) of the Income Tax Regulations and to 
confirm that the other plan is a plan that satisfies Section 
403(b) of the Code. 
(b) The amount so transferred shall be credited to the
Participant’s Account Balance, so that the Participant
or Beneficiary whose assets are being transferred has an
accumulated benefit immediately after the transfer at least
equal to the accumulated benefit with respect to that
Participant or Beneficiary immediately before the transfer in
accordance with Section 1.414(l)(1) of the Code.
(c) To the extent provided in the Individual Agreements
holding such transferred amounts, the amount transferred
shall be held, accounted for, administered and otherwise
treated in the same manner as an Elective Deferral by the
Participant under the Plan, except that
(1) the Individual Agreement which holds any amount
transferred to the Plan must provide that, to the extent 
any amount transferred is subject to any distribution 
restrictions required under Section 403(b) of the Code, 
the Individual Agreement must impose restrictions on 
distributions to the Participant or Beneficiary whose 
assets are being transferred that are not less stringent 
than those imposed on the transferor plan and (2) the 
transferred amount shall not be considered an Elective 
Deferral under the Plan in determining the maximum 
deferral under Section 3.

6.3  Plan-to-Plan Transfers from the Plan. 

3.3  (a) At the direction of the Employer, the Administrator 
may permit a class of Participants and Beneficiaries to 
elect to have all or any portion of their Account Balance 

transferred to another plan that satisfies Section 403(b) of 
the Code in accordance with Section 403(b).10(b)(3) of 
the Income Tax Regulations. A transfer is permitted under 
this Section 6.3(a) only if the Participants or Beneficiaries 
are employees or former employees of the employer (or 
the business of the employer) under the receiving plan 
and the other plan provides for the acceptance of 
plan.to.plan transfers with respect to the Participants and 
Beneficiaries and for each Participant and Beneficiary to 
have an amount deferred under the other plan 
immediately after the transfer at least equal to the 
amount transferred in accordance with Section 1.414(l)(1) 
of the Code. 
(b) The other plan must provide that, to the extent
any amount transferred is subject to any distribution
restrictions required under Section 403(b) of the Code, the
other plan shall impose restrictions on distributions to the
Participant or Beneficiary whose assets are transferred that
are not less stringent than those imposed under the Plan.
In addition, if the transfer does not constitute a complete
transfer of the Participant’s or Beneficiary’s interest in the
Plan, the other plan shall treat the amount transferred as a
continuation of a pro rata portion of the Participant’s or
Beneficiary’s interest in the transferor plan (e.g., a pro rata
portion of the Participant’s or Beneficiary’s interest in any
after tax employee contributions).
(c) Upon the transfer of assets under this Section 6.3, the
Plan’s liability to pay benefits to the Participant or
Beneficiary under this Plan shall be discharged to the
extent of the amount so transferred for the Participant or
Beneficiary. The Administrator may require such
documentation from the receiving plan as it deems
appropriate or necessary to comply with this Section 6.3
(for example, to confirm that the receiving plan satisfies
Section 403(b) of the Code and to assure that the transfer
is permitted under the receiving plan) or to effectuate the
transfer pursuant to Section 1.403(b)-10(b)(3) of the
Income Tax Regulations.

6.4  Contract and Custodial Account Exchanges. 

3.3  (a) A Participant or Beneficiary is permitted to change 
the investment of his or her Account Balance among the 
Vendors identified in the Plan Provisions Section. However, 
an investment change that includes an investment with a 
Vendor that is not eligible to receive contributions under 
Section 2 (referred to below as an exchange) is not 
permitted unless the conditions in paragraphs (b) through 
(d) of this Section 6.4 are satisfied.
(b) The Participant or Beneficiary must have an Account
Balance immediately after the exchange that is at least
equal to the Account Balance of that Participant or
Beneficiary immediately before the exchange (taking into
account the Account Balance of that Participant or
Beneficiary under both Section 403(b) contracts or

118



I 11

custodial accounts immediately before the exchange). 
(c) The Individual Agreement with the receiving 
Vendor has distribution restrictions with respect to the 
Participant that are not less stringent than those 
imposed on the investment being exchanged.
(d) The Employer enters into an agreement with the 
receiving Vendor for the other contract or custodial 
account under which the Employer and the Vendor will 
from time to time in the future provide each other with 
the following information: 

(1) Information necessary for the resulting contract or 
custodial account, or any other contract or custodial 
accounts to which contributions have been made by the 
Employer, to satisfy Section 403(b) of theCode, including 
the ollowing: (i) the Employer providing information as 
to whether the Participant’s employment with the 
Employer is continuing, and notifying the Vendor when 
the Participant has had a Severance from Employmen
(for purposes of the distribution restrictions
Section 5.1); (ii) the Vendor notifying the Employer
of any hardship withdrawal under Section 5.4 if the 
withdrawal results in a 6.month suspension of the 
Participant’s right to make Elective Deferrals
(and, if applicable, Roth 403(b) Contributions) under the 
Plan; and (iii) the Vendor providing information to the 
Employer or other Vendors concerning the Participant’s 
or Beneficiary’s Section 403(b) contracts or custodial 
accounts or qualified employer plan benefits (to enable 
a Vendor to determine the amount of any plan loans 
and any  rollover accounts that are available to the 
Participant under the Plan in order to satisfy the 
financial need under the hardship withdrawal rules of 
Section 5.4); and
(2) Information necessary in order for the resulting 
contract or custodial account and any other contract or 
custodial account to which contributions have been 
made for the Participant by the Employer to satisfy other 
tax requirements, including the following: 
(i) the amount of any plan loan that is outstanding to 
the Participant in order for a Vendor to determine 
whether an additional plan loan satisfies the loan 
limitations of Section 4.3, so that any such additional 
loan is not a deemed distribution under Section
72(p)(1); and (ii) information concerning the 
Participant’s or Beneficiary’s after-tax employee 
contributions in order for a Vendor to determine the 
extent to which adistribution is includible in gross 
income.

(e) If any Vendor ceases to be eligible to receive Elective 
Deferrals (or Roth 403(b) Contributions) under the Plan as 
indicated in the Plan Provisions Section, the Employer will 
enter into an information sharing agreement as described 
in Section 6.4(d) to the extent the Employer’s contract with 
the Vendor does not provide for the exchange of 

information described in Section 6.4(d)(1) and (2) in order 
for such Vendor to be listed in the Plan Provisions 
Section.

6.5  Permissive Service Credit Transfers. 

3.3  (a) If a Participant is also a participant in a tax-qualified 
defined benefit governmental plan (as defined in Section 
414(d) of the Code) that provides for the acceptance 
of plan-to-plan transfers with respect to the Participant, 
then the Participant may elect to have any portion of the 
Participant’s Account Balance transferred to the defined 
benefit governmental plan. A transfer under this Section 
6.5(a) may be made before the Participant has had a 
Severance from Employment. 
(b) A transfer may be made under Section 6.5(a) only
if the transfer is either for the purchase of permissive 
service credit (as defined in Section 415(n)(3)(A) of the 
Code) under the receiving defined benefit governmental 
plan or a repayment to which Section 415 of the Code does 
not apply by reason of Section 415(k)(3) of the Code.
(c) In addition, if a plan-to-plan transfer does not constitute 
a complete transfer of the Participant’s or Beneficiary’s 
interest in the transferor plan, the Plan shall treat the 
amount transferred as a continuation of a pro rata portion 
of the Participant’s or Beneficiary’s interest in the transferor 
plan (e.g., a pro rata portion of the Participant’s or 
Beneficiary’s interest in any after-tax employee 
contributions). 

SECTION 7: Investment of 
Contributions
7.1  Manner of Investment. All Elective Deferrals or other 

amounts contributed to the Plan, all property and rights 
purchased with such amounts under the Funding 
Vehicles, and all income attributable to such amounts, 
property, or rights shall be held and invested in one or 
more Annuity Contracts or Custodial Accounts. Each 
Custodial Account shall provide for it to be impossible, 
prior to the satisfaction of all liabilities with respect to 
Participants and their Beneficiaries, for any part of the 
assets and income of the Custodial Account to be used 
for, or diverted to, purposes other than for the exclusive 
benefit of Participants and their Beneficiaries.

7.2  Investment of Contributions. Each Participant or 
Beneficiary shall direct the investment of his or her Account 
among the investment options available under the Annuity 
Contract or Custodial Account in accordance with the 
terms of the Individual Agreements. Transfers among 
Annuity Contracts and Custodial Accounts may be made to 
the extent provided in Section 6.4 of the Plan, the 
Individual Agreements and permitted under applicable 
Income Tax Regulations.

119



I 12

7.3  Current and Former Vendors. The Administrator shall 
maintain a list of all Vendors under the Plan, including 
those eligible to receive Elective Deferrals, Roth 
403(b) Contributions, and Employer Contributions, as 
applicable, and, those only eligible to receive contract 
exchanges made under Section 6.4, if applicable, which 
shall be listed in the Plan Provisions Section. Such list is 
hereby incorporated as part of the Plan. Each Vendor and 
the Administrator shall exchange such information as may 
be necessary to satisfy Section 403(b) of the Code or other 
requirements of applicable law. In the case of a Vendor 
which is not eligible to receive Elective Deferrals (or Roth 
403(b) Contributions) under the Plan (including a Vendor 
which has ceased to be a Vendor eligible to receive 
Elective Deferrals (or Roth 403(b) Contributions) under the 
Plan and a Vendor holding assets under the Plan in 
accordance with Section 6.2 or 6.4), the Employer shall 
keep the Vendor informed of the name and contact 
information of the Administrator in order to coordinate 
information necessary to satisfy Section 403(b) of the Code 
or other requirements of applicable law.

SECTION 8: Amendment and Plan 
Termination
8.1  Termination of Contributions. The Employer has 

adopted the Plan with the intention and expectation 
that contributions will be continued indefinitely. 
However, the Employer has no obligation or liability 
whatsoever to maintain the Plan for any length of time 
and may discontinue contributions under the Plan at 
any time without any liability hereunder for any such 
discontinuance.

8.2  Amendment and Termination. The Employer reserves 
the authority to amend or terminate this Plan at any time.

8.3  Distribution upon Termination of the Plan. The Employer may
provide that, in connection with a termination of the Plan 
and subject to any restrictions contained in the Individual 
Agreements, all Accounts will be distributed as soon as 
administratively practicable under the Plan, provided that 
the Employer and any Related Employer on the date of 
termination do not make contributions to an alternative 
Section 403(b) contract that is not part of the Plan during 
the period beginning on the date of plan termination and 
ending 12 months after the distribution of all assets from 
the Plan, except as permitted by the Income Tax 
Regulations.

SECTION 9: Miscellaneous
9.1  Non-Assignability.  Except as provided in Section 9.2

and 9.3, the interests of each Participant or Beneficiary 
under the Plan are not subject to the claims of the 
Participant’s or Beneficiary’s creditors; and neither the 
Participant nor any Beneficiary shall have any right to sell, 
assign, transfer, or otherwise convey the right to receive any 
payments hereunder or any interest under the Plan, which 
payments and interest are expressly declared to be non-
assignable and non-transferable. 

9.2  Domestic Relation Orders. Notwithstanding Section 
9.1, if a judgment, decree or order (including approval of a 
property settlement agreement) that relates to the 
provision of child support, alimony payments, or the 
marital property rights of a spouse or former spouse, child, 
or other dependent of a Participant is made pursuant to 
the domestic relations law of any State (“domestic 
relations order”) and Section 414(p) of the Code, then the 
amount of the Participant’s Account Balance shall be paid 
in the manner and to the person or persons so directed in 
the domestic relations order. Such payment shall be made 
without regard to whether the Participant is eligible for a 
distribution of benefits under the Plan. The Administrator 
shall establish reasonable procedures for determining the 
status of any such decree or order and for effectuating 
distribution pursuant to the domestic relations order.

9.3  IRS Levy. Notwithstanding Section 9.1, if a Participant or 
Beneficiary is entitled to a distribution in accordance with 
Section 5, the Administrator may pay from a Participant’s or 
Beneficiary’s Account Balance the amount that the 
Administrator finds is lawfully demanded under a levy 
issued by the Internal Revenue Service with respect to that 
Participant or Beneficiary or is sought to be collected by the 
United States Government under a judgment resulting 
from an unpaid tax assessment against the Participant or 
Beneficiary.

9.4  Tax Withholding. Contributions to the Plan are subject 
to applicable employment taxes (including, if applicable, 
Federal Insurance Contributions Act (FICA) taxes with 
respect to Elective Deferrals (and, if applicable, Roth 
403(b) Contributions), which constitute wages under 
Section 3121 of the Code). Any benefit payment made 
under the Plan is subject to applicable income tax 
withholding requirements (including Section 3401 
of the Code and the Employment Tax Regulations 
thereunder). A payee shall provide such information as the 
Administrator may need to satisfy income tax withholding 
obligations, and any other information that may be 
required by guidance issued under the Code.

120



I 13

9.5  Payments to Minors and Incompetents. If a Participant or 
Beneficiary entitled to receive any benefits hereunder is a 
minor or is adjudged to be legally incapable of giving valid 
receipt and discharge for such benefits, or is deemed so by 
the Administrator, benefits will be paid to such person as 
the Administrator may designate for the benefit of such 
Participant or Beneficiary. Such payments shall be 
considered a payment to such Participant or Beneficiary 
and shall, to the extent made, be deemed a complete 
discharge of any liability for such payments under the Plan.

9.6  Mistaken Contributions. If any contribution (or any 
portion of a contribution) is made to the Plan by a good 
faith mistake of fact, then within one year after the 
payment of the contribution, and upon receipt in good 
order of a proper request approved by the Administrator, 
the amount of the mistaken contribution (adjusted for any 
income or loss in value, if any, allocable thereto) shall be 
returned directly to the Participant or, to the extent 
required or permitted by the Administrator, to the 
Employer.

9.7  Procedure When Distributee Cannot Be Located. The 
Administrator shall make all reasonable attempts to 
determine the identity and address of a Participant or a 
Participant’s Beneficiary entitled to benefits under the 
Plan. For this purpose, a reasonable attempt means (a) 
the mailing by certified mail of a notice to the last known 
address shown on the Employer’s or the Administrator’s 
records, (b) notification sent to the Social Security 
Administration or the Pension Benefit Guaranty 
Corporation (under their program to identify payees 
under retirement plans), and (c) the payee has not 
responded within 6 months. If the Administrator is 
unable to locate such a person entitled to benefits 
hereunder, or if there has been no claim made for such 
benefits, the funding vehicle shall continue to hold the 
benefits due such person.

9.8  Incorporation of Individual Agreements. The Plan, 
together with the Individual Agreements, is intended to 
satisfy the requirements of Section 403(b) of the Code and 
the Income Tax Regulations thereunder. Terms and 
conditions of the Individual Agreements are hereby 
incorporated by reference into the Plan, excluding those 
terms that are inconsistent with the Plan or Section 403(b) 
of the Code.

9.9  Governing Law. The Plan will be construed, administered 
and enforced according to the Code and the laws of the 
State in which the Employer has its principal place of 
business.

9.10  Headings. Headings of the Plan have been inserted for 
convenience of reference only and are to be ignored in 
any construction of the provisions hereof.

9.11  Gender. Pronouns used in the Plan in the masculine 
or feminine gender include both genders unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise.

SECTION 10: Employer Contributions
10.1  Definitions. 

3.3  (a) “Employer Contributions Account” means the account 
established and maintained by the Administrator for each 
Participant with respect to his total vested interest 
(including any earnings and losses attributable thereon) 
under the Plan resulting from Employer Discretionary 
Contributions and/or Employer Matching Contributions. 
(b) “Employer Discretionary Contributions” means the
Employer’s discretionary contributions to the Plan in
accordance with the formula selected by the Employer in
the Plan Provisions Section.
(c) “Employer Matching Contribution” means the
Employer’s contributions to the Plan that match
a Participant’s Elective Deferrals or Roth 403(b)
Contributions in accordance with the formula selected in
the Plan Provisions Section.
(d) “Vested” means the nonforfeitable portion of any
Account maintained on behalf of a Participant.

10.2  Employer Contributions. For each Plan Year, the 
Employer will contribute to the Plan the amount and form 
of contributions as specified in the Plan Provisions 
Section, subject to any limitations imposed under 
applicable law or under any applicable collective 
bargaining agreement. Such contributions will be 
allocated to the Participant’s Employer Contributions 
Account.

10.3  Maximum Annual Additions.

3.3  (a) The maximum permissible Annual Additions that may 
be contributed or allocated to each Participant’s Account 
under the Plan for any Plan Year will not exceed the lesser 
of: 

(i) $40,000, as adjusted for increases in the cost of
living under Section 415(d) of the Code, or
(ii) 100 percent of the Participant’s Includible
Compensation for the Plan Year.

(b) For purposes of this Section, “Annual Additions” means,
for any Plan Year, the sum of Elective Deferrals, Roth 403(b)
Contributions, and Employer Contributions to the Plan
made to the Participant’s Account and the sum of any
employee and employer contributions made on behalf of
such individual under any other 403(b) plan, whether or not
sponsored by the Employer.
(c) If a Participant has a “controlling interest” in another
employer and participates in that employer’s qualified
401(a) defined contribution plan, a welfare benefit
fund (as defined in Section 419(e) of the Code), an
individual medical account (as defined in Section 415(l)
(2) of the Code) or a simplified employee pension (as

121



I 14

defined in Section 408(k) of the Code) which provides 
Annual Additions, the amount of Annual Additions which 
may be credited to a Participant’s Account for any Plan Year 
will not exceed the maximum permissible amount 
described in subsection (a), taking into account employer 
contributions that have been allocated to such other plans 
as described in this subsection.a complete discharge of any 
liability for such payments under the Plan. 
(d) If the Annual Additions are greater than the maximum
permissible amount described in subsection (a) in a Plan
Year, no amount will be contributed to the Participant’s
Account under the Plan for that Plan Year. If there is any
such excess amount under the Plan, the Employer or its
delegate will direct the Vendor as to the appropriate
method of correction of such excess amounts in
accordance with the Income Tax Regulations. If timely
correction of such excess is not made, such excess will
remain in the Plan and will be separately accounted for in
accordance with Section 403(c) of the Code.

10.4  Vesting. A Participant will be 100% Vested in any 
Employer Discretionary Contributions and Employer 
Matching Contributions.

SECTION 11: Roth 403(b) Contributions

11.1  Definitions. 

3.3  (a) “Roth 403(b) Contributions” means, if so elected 
by the Employer in the Plan Provisions Section, 
contributions that are: 

(i) made by the Employer to the Plan pursuant to a
Compensation reduction agreement entered into by
a Participant, which qualifies as a
“designated Roth contribution” within the meaning of
Code Section 402A;
(ii) irrevocably designated by the Participant at the
time of the cash or deferred election as a Roth elective
deferral that is being made in lieu of all or a portion of
the Elective Deferrals the Participant is otherwise
eligible to make under the Plan; and
(iii) treated by the Employer as includible in the
Participant’s income at the time the Participant would
have received that amount in cash if the Participant
had not made a cash or deferred election.

(b) “Roth 403(b) Contributions Account” means
the account established and maintained by the
Administrator for each Participant with respect to
his total interest (including and earnings and losses
attributable thereon) under the Plan resulting from Roth
403(b) Contributions.

11.2  Roth 403(b) Contributions. For each Plan Year, each 
Participant may elect to make Roth 403(b) Contributions to 
the Plan up to the applicable limit under Code Section 
402(g) and as aggregated with Elective Deferrals as 
described in Section 3.1, 3.2, and 3.3, and subject to any 
limitations imposed under applicable law or under any 
applicable collective bargaining agreement. Such 
contributions will be allocated to the Participant’s Roth 
403(b) Contributions Account.

11.3  Distribution of Roth 403(b) Contributions. 

3.3  (a) Qualified Distributions: Distributions from a Roth 
403(b) Contributions Account will be tax free for federal 
income tax purposes if: 

(i) The amounts are held for a 5 year holding period,
measured from the first year that the initial
Roth 403(b) Contribution was made on behalf of the
Participant to a Roth 403(b) Contributions Account,
and
(ii) The distribution is due to a Participant’s attainment
of age 59 ½, death, or in the event of the Participant’s 
becoming Disabled. 

(b) Non qualified Distributions: Amounts distributed from a 
Roth 403(b) Contributions Account that are not considered 
“Qualified Distributions” as defined in Section 11.3(a), may 
be distributed from a Roth 403(b) Contributions Account 
subject to the distribution rules applicable to Elective 
Deferrals as described in Section 5.1. Such nonqualified 
distributions shall be subject to federal income tax to the 
extent that the amount distributed exceeds the value of 
the Roth 403(b) Contributions.
(c) In no event shall amounts held in a Roth 403(b) 
Contributions Account shall be used for a loan in 
accordance with Section 4, distributed due to a hardship 
withdrawal under Section 5.4, transferred in accordance 
with Sections 6.3 or 6.5, or exchanged in accordance with 
Section 6.4.
(d) Participant may elect to have certain portions of the 
Participant's Vested Account Balance under the Plan 
treated as being distributed to the Participant as an eligible 
rollover distribution that is credited via an in-Plan direct 
rollover to a Roth After-Tax Employee Contribution 
Account under this Plan. 

122



For more information, contact: 

John Schiffler 
Pension Program Manager 

916-414-1007
Jschiffler@calstrs.com 

COM 1681 (10/15) 

123



Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 
Language Academy of Sacramento

A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

A California Public School

Agenda Item VIF 

Board Meeting Date:  January 27, 2023 

Subject: Board Development: Nomination & Elections Update; Executive Member Interim 

Elections  

Information Item Only 

Approval on Consent Agenda 

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ) 

Conference (for discussion only) 

Conference/Action 

Action 

Nomination & Elections Update  
The following are the vacancies that need be filled in the current year and the number of applications that 

have been received to date:  

- Community Vacancy (2022-2025): 0 applications, 2 vacancies

- Certificated Staff (2022-2025): 2 applications

i. Elections and results expected prior to February Governing Board Meeting

Executive Member Interim Elections 

It is recommended that the board hold elections for executive member positions (President, Vice 

President, Treasurer, and Secretary). Given that there are two additional community members that will 

join the board in the future, it is recommended that the current position be considered interim until there is 

a full board.  

Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 min 

Submitted By: Bylaws/Policy Committee 

Date: 01242023 

Pertinent Pages in  

(  ) Charter, pgs _______ (  ) Bylaws, pgs ______ 

(  )  MOU, pgs ________  (  ) Policy ___________

124



 
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

Agenda Articulo# VIF 

 

Fecha de la Reunión: 27 de enero de 2023 

 

Tema: Desarrollo de la mesa directiva: Actualización de nominaciones y elecciones; Elecciones 

provisionales de miembros ejecutivos  

 

 Artículo de información 

 Aprobación en la Agenda de Consentimiento 

 Conferencia (solo para discutir) 

 Conferencia/Primera lectura (Acción Anticipado:  ) 

 Conferencia/Acción 

 Acción 

 

Actualización de nominaciones y elecciones  

Las siguientes son las vacantes que deben cubrirse en el año siguiente y el número de solicitudes que se 

han recibido hasta la fecha: 

 

- Vacante de comunidad (2022-2025): 0 aplicaciones, 2 vacantes  

- Vacante de personal certificado (2022-2025): 0 aplicaciones  

i. Elecciones y resultados esperados antes de la reunión de la mesa directiva de 

febrero  

Elecciones provisionales de miembros ejecutivos 
Se recomienda que la junta celebre elecciones para los puestos de miembros ejecutivos (presidente, 

vicepresidente, tesorero y secretario). Dado que hay dos miembros adicionales de la comunidad que se 

unirán a la junta en el futuro, se recomienda que el puesto actual se considere interino hasta que haya una 

junta completa. 

 

 

Tiempo estimado para la presentación: 10 min. 

Entregado por: Comité de Estatutos/Pólizas  

Fecha: 01242023 

Pertinent Pages in  

(  ) Charter, pgs _______ (  ) Bylaws, pgs ______ 

(  )  MOU, pgs ________  (  ) Policy ___________  

125



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

Agenda Item #VIG 

Board Meeting Date: January 27, 2023 

 

Subject: Resolution Authorizing Use of Remote Teleconferencing Provisions Pursuant to AB 361  

 

 Information Item Only 

 Approval on Consent Agenda 

 Conference (for discussion only) 

 Conference/First Reading  

 Conference/Action 

 Action 

 

Committee: School Leadership 

 

Resolution Authorizing Use of Remote Teleconferencing Provisions Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361  

 

Attachments: 

 

 Resolution Authorizing Use of Remote Teleconferencing Provisions Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361 
 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Resolution 

 

 

Members 

A
y

e 

N
ay

 

A
b

st
ai

n
 

A
b

se
n

t 

Vacant     

Vacant     

Sylvains, Nina      

Kokayi, Nailah     

Rodríguez, José Luis     

García, Cristian      

Luna, Brenda     

Graham, Clark     

Lomelí, Laura     

Totals:     

Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 min 

Submitted By: de León 

Date: 01242023 

Pertinent Pages in  

(  ) Charter, pages   

(  )  MOU, pages    

126



  
Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Language Academy of Sacramento 
A Two-Way Spanish Immersion Charter School 

 
 

 

  

 
A California Public School 

 

Agenda Artículo #VIG 

 

Fecha de la Reunión: 27 de enero de 2023 

 

Tema: Resolución que autoriza el uso de teleconferencias remotas de conformidad con AB 361  

 

 Artículo de información 

 Aprobación en la Agenda de Consentimiento 

 Conferencia (solo para discutir) 

 Conferencia/Primera lectura  

 Conferencia/Acción 

 Acción 

 

Comité: Liderazgo escolar 

 

Resolución que autoriza el uso de teleconferencias remotas de conformidad con el proyecto de ley 361 de la 

Asamblea. 

 

Documentos adjunto:  

 

 Resolución que autoriza el uso de teleconferencias remotas de conformidad con el proyecto de ley 

361 de la Asamblea 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 min 

Submitted By: de León 

Date: 01242023 

 

Pertinent Pages in  

(  ) Charter, pages   

(  )  MOU, pages    

127



 

 

The Language Academy of Sacramento 

Resolution Regarding Teleconferenced Board Meetings 

 

 

WHEREAS, The Language Academy of Sacramento (LAS) Governing Board held 

teleconferenced board meetings from March 2020 through September 2021 in compliance with 

the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 which relaxed certain legal requirements for board 

meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic. These legal requirements for public meetings are 

found in California Government Code sections 54950, et seq. and called the “Brown Act.” 

 

WHEREAS, Executive Order N-29-20 was recently rescinded, but Assembly Bill 361 was 

signed into law and it amended elements of the Brown Act effective October 1, 2021. 

 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act as amended by AB 361 permits the LAS Governing Board to 

continue holding board meetings under abbreviated teleconference procedures in three 

circumstances: 

 

1. When the meeting is held during a proclaimed state of emergency, and state or local 

officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; 

2. When the meeting is held during a proclaimed state of emergency and the meeting is held 

for the purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, 

meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; OR 

3. When the meeting is held during a proclaimed state of emergency and the board has 

determined, by majority vote, that, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would 

present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

(Gov’t. Code sec. 54953(e)(1).) 

 

WHEREAS, the LAS Governing Board may continue holding board meetings under AB 361’s 

abbreviated teleconference procedures if it adopts certain findings by majority vote of the Board 

and readopts findings every thirty days thereafter. Those findings are: 

 

1. The board has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency, AND 

2. The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of members to meet safely 

in person, OR  

3. State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social 

distancing. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the LAS Governing Board adopts the 

following findings: 

 

 The LAS Governing Board has determined that as a result of the proclaimed state of 

emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 

attendees.  

 The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of board members and 

other meeting attendees to meet safely in person. 

128



 

 

 State and local public health officials continue to recommend measures to promote social 

distancing. 

 That the actions taken by the LAS Governing Board through this Resolution may be 

applied to all board committees governed by the Brown Act unless otherwise desired by 

the committee. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the LAS Governing Board on this 27th day of January 2023, by 

the following vote: 

 

AYES __________ 

NOES __________ 

ABSENT __________ 

ABSTAIN __________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

129



 

 

Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento 

Resolución sobre las juntas de la Mesa Directiva por teleconferencia 

 

 

CONSIDERANDO que, la Mesa Directiva de la Academia de Idiomas de Sacramento (LAS) 

tuvo juntas de la Mesa por teleconferencia desde marzo de 2020 hasta septiembre de 2021 en 

cumplimiento de la Orden Ejecutiva N-29-20 del Gobernador, que relajó ciertos requisitos 

legales para las juntas de la Mesa durante la pandemia de COVID-19. Estos requisitos legales 

para las reuniones públicas se encuentran en las secciones 54950 y siguientes del Código de 

Gobierno de California y se denominan "Ley Brown". 

 

CONSIDERANDO que la Orden Ejecutiva N-29-20 fue recientemente rescindida, pero el 

Proyecto de Ley de la Asamblea 361 fue convertido en ley y modificó elementos de la Ley 

Brown a partir del 1 de octubre de 2021. 

 

CONSIDERANDO que, la Ley Brown, modificada por el Proyecto de Ley de la Asamblea 361, 

permite a la Mesa Directiva de LAS a seguir teniendo juntas de la Mesa mediante 

procedimientos de teleconferencia abreviados en tres circunstancias: 

 

1. Cuando la junta se tiene durante un estado de emergencia proclamado, y los funcionarios 

estatales o locales hayan impuesto o recomendado medidas para promover el 

distanciamiento social; 

2. Cuando la junta se tiene durante un estado de emergencia proclamado y la junta se tenga 

con el fin de determinar, por mayoría, si como resultado de la emergencia, la junta en 

persona presentaría riesgos inminentes para la salud o la seguridad de los asistentes; O 

3. Cuando la junta se tenga durante un estado de emergencia proclamado y la mesa haya 

determinado, por mayoría de votos, que, como resultado de la emergencia, la junta en 

persona presentaría riesgos inminentes para la salud o la seguridad de los asistentes. 

 (Sección del código de gobierno 54953(e)(1).) 

 

CONSIDERANDO que, la Mesa Directiva de LAS puede seguir teniendo juntas de la Mesa con 

arreglo a los procedimientos de teleconferencia abreviados del Proyecto de Ley de la Asamblea 

361 si adopta ciertas conclusiones por mayoría de votos de la Mesa y vuelve adoptar las 

conclusiones cada treinta días a partir de entonces. Dichas conclusiones son: 

 

1. La mesa directiva ha reconsiderado las circunstancias del estado de emergencia, Y 

2. El estado de emergencia sigue afectando directamente a la capacidad de los miembros 

para reunirse en persona de forma segura, O  

3. Los funcionarios estatales o locales siguen imponiendo o recomendando medidas para 

promover el distanciamiento social. 

 

POR TANTO, SE RESUELVE que, la Mesa Directiva de LAS adopte las siguientes 

conclusiones: 

 

130



 La Mesa Directiva de LAS ha determinado que, como resultado del estado de emergencia

proclamado, reunirse en persona presentaría riesgos inminentes para la salud o la

seguridad de los asistentes.

 El estado de emergencia sigue afectando directamente a la capacidad de los miembros de

la Mesa y de otras plataformas de reuniones para reunirse en persona de forma segura.

 Los funcionarios de salud pública estatales y locales siguen recomendando medidas para

promover el distanciamiento social.

 Que las medidas adoptadas por la Mesa Directiva de LAS mediante esta Resolución

pueden aplicarse a todos los comités de la Mesa regidos por la Ley Brown, a menos que

el comité desee lo contrario.

PASADO Y APROBADO por la Mesa Directiva de LAS en este día 27 de enero de 2023, por la 

siguiente votación: 

SÍ __________ 

NO __________ 

AUSENTE __________ 

ABSTENCIÓN __________ 

131


	IC. Board Agenda_01272023
	IDa. Minutes_12022022
	V1. PA.PC
	V2. Student Council_01272023
	VIA.1.Board Summary SARC v0122723
	VIA.2.FY22 LAS SARC draft 012323 for board packet word version
	The Language Academy of Sacramento (LAS) School Accountability Report Card  2021–22 School Year
	About This School
	TABLE 1 NAME: District Contact Information (School Year 2022–23)
	TABLE 2 NAME: School Contact Information (School Year 2022–23)
	TABLE 3 NAME: School Description and Mission Statement
	TABLE 4 NAME: Student Enrollment by Grade Level (School Year 2021–22)
	TABLE 5 NAME: Student Enrollment by Student Group (School Year 2021–22)

	State Priority: Basic
	TABLE 6 NAME: Teacher Preparation and Placement (School Year 2020–21) The 2021-22 date is anticipated to be posted by the end of February 2023 (per CDE)
	TABLE 7 NAME: Teacher Preparation and Placement (School Year 2021–22) The 2021-22 date is anticipated to be posted by the end of February 2023 (per CDE)
	TABLE 9 NAME: Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field
	TABLE 10 NAME: Class Assignments The 2021-22 date is anticipated to be posted by the end of February 2023 (per CDE)
	TABLE 12 NAME: School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	TABLE 13 NAME: School Facility Good Repair Status
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes
	State Priority: Pupil Achievement
	Table 15: CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students
	Table 17: CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group
	Table 18: CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	Table 21: Career Technical Education (CTE) Participation (School Year 2021–22) Not Applicable to LAS
	Table 22: Course Enrollment/Completion of University of California (UC) and/or California State University (CSU) Admission Requirements Not Applicable to LAS
	State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes

	C. Engagement
	State Priority: Parental Involvement
	Table 24: Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2022–23)
	State Priority: Pupil Engagement
	Table 25: Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate)                    Not Applicable to LAS
	Table 26: Graduation Rate by Student Group (Four-Year Cohort Rate)(School Year 2021–22) Not Applicable to LAS
	State Priority: School Climate
	Table 28: Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019–20 Only
	Table 29: Suspensions and Expulsions
	Table 30: Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	Table 31: School Safety Plan (School Year 2022–23)

	D. Other SARC Information
	Table 32: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary)
	Table 33: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary)
	Table 34: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary)
	Table 35: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary)
	Table 36: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary)
	Table 37: Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary)
	Table 38: Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2021–22)
	Table 39: Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2021–22)
	Table 40: Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	Table 41: Types of Services Funded (Fiscal Year 2021–22)
	Table 42: Teacher and Administrative Salaries (Fiscal Year 2020–21)
	Table 43: Advanced Placement (AP) Courses (School Year 2021–22) Percent of Students in AP Courses: Not Applicable to LAS
	Table 44: Professional Development



	VIB. First Interim
	VIBa. Financial Update Presentation_012723
	VIBb. LAS - FY23 1st Interim Alt Form - Detial_12.12.2022
	VIBc. LAS - FY23 1st Interim Alt Form - MYP_12.12.2022 (1)
	VIBd. LAS-October Financials_YTD_01.23.2023.xlsm
	VIBe. LAS-October Financials_CashFlow_01.23.2023
	VIBf. LAS-October Financials_BalanceSheet_01.23.2023
	VIC. Fiscal Audit 21-22
	VICa. Language Academy of Sacramento FS - 6.30.22 - FINAL
	The Language Academy of Sacramento Charter School #0640
	Financial Statements
	Independent Auditors’ Report   1
	Financial Statements
	Statement of Financial Position   4
	Statement of Activities   5
	Statement of Functional Expenses  6
	Statement of Cash Flows   7
	Notes to Financial Statements   8
	Supplementary Information
	Organization   16
	Schedule of Average Daily Attendance…………………………………………………………………………………………….17
	Schedule of Instructional Time   18
	Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  19
	Reconciliation of Charter School Unaudited Actuals Financial  Report – Alternative Form With Audited Financial Statements   20
	Other Independent Auditors’ Reports
	Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and  on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards   21
	Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by The Uniform Guidance  23
	Report on State Compliance   26
	Findings and Recommendations
	Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs   28
	Summary Schedule of Prior Findings   30
	The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award activity of Language Academy of Sacramento under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedul...
	Language Academy of Sacramento elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

	VID. Check Register_November and December 2022
	VIDa. November 2022 Check register
	VIDb. December 2022 Check Register
	VIE. CALSTRS 403b
	VIEa. CALSTRS Pension2 Plan
	VIF. Board Development Summary_01242023
	VIG. 1.Resolution Authorizing Teleconferencing_01272023
	VIG. 2.Draft AB 361 Resolution_LASv01272023_legal
	VIG. 3.Draft AB 361 Resolution_LASv01272023_legal SPANISH

	Text1: 
	Employer name: Language Academy of Sacramento
	Employer address: 2850 49th Street, Sacramento, CA 95758
	Person at Employer to contact: Judy Morales/Eduardo de León
	Contacts telephone number: (916) 277-7137
	Contacts email address: jmorales@lasac.info/edeleon@lasac.info
	2 Plan Name: Language Academy of Sacramento
	3 Plan EffectiveRestatement date: February 1, 2023
	4 State where Employer is located: California 
	Row1: Judy Morales 
	Row1_2: Plan Administrator
	Row2: Eduardo de León
	Row2_2: Plan Administrator
	Row3: 
	Row3_2: 
	Row4: 
	Row4_2: 
	Each business day: Off
	The last business day of each month: On
	CalSTRS Pension2: On
	CalSTRS Pension2_2: On
	shall be permitted under the Plan: Off
	shall not be permitted under the Plan: On
	shall be permitted under the Plan_2: On
	shall not be permitted under the Plan_2: Off
	If permitted for each Plan Year the Employer Discretionary Contribution shall be: 
	of each Participants Compensation contributed to the Employer Contributions Account of each Participant: 
	contributed to the Employer Contributions Account of each Participant: 
	undefined: Off
	An amount determined uniformly with respect to each Employee classification within the applicable collective: Off
	All Employees: On
	Collectively bargained employees who participate in the following unions: Off
	Employees whose employment is NOT governed by a collective bargaining agreement between the Employer: Off
	Management employees: Off
	Superintendent: Off
	Principals: Off
	Treasurer: Off
	Administrator: Off
	Other specify: Off
	undefined_2: 
	undefined_3: 
	shall be permitted under the Plan_3: Off
	shall not be permitted under the Plan_3: On
	Elective Deferrals: Off
	Roth 403b Contributions: Off
	of each Participants contribution to the Plan: 
	A matching contribution equal to: Off
	A matching contribution equal to_2: Off
	A matching contribution equal to_3: Off
	A matching contribution equal to a percentage of each Participants contribution to the Plan in an amount to be: Off
	contributed to the Plan for to the Plan Year: 
	of the first: 
	of each Participants contribution to the Plan_2: 
	All Employees_2: Off
	Collectively bargained employees who participate in the following unions_2: Off
	Employees whose employment is NOT governed by a collective bargaining agreement between the Employer_2: Off
	Management employees_2: Off
	Superintendent_2: Off
	Principals_2: Off
	Treasurers: Off
	Administrator_2: Off
	Other specify_2: Off
	undefined_4: 
	undefined_5: 
	executed this: 
	day of: 
	undefined_6: 
	Employer: 
	By: 
	Title: 
	undefined_7: 


